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The pro forma financial information includes operating results of AXENT Technologies as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of

fiscal year 1999 and excludes operating results from Visual Café and ACT! product lines divested on December 31, 1999, one-time charges

and acquisition-related amortization charges.

This annual report should be read in conjunction with Symantec Corporation’s previously filed Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2002.
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revenue by segment FY 2001 FY 2002 FY 2001 FY 2002

enterprise security 33% 42% 37% 42%

consumer products 39% 35% 35% 35%

enterprise administration 27% 21% 25% 21%

services 0% 1% 1% 1%

other 1% 1% 2% 1%

US/international 52/48% 53/47% 53/47% 53/47%

GAAP pro forma

SELECTED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Despite a challenging economic environment, fiscal 2002 was a year of remarkable
accomplishments for our worldwide team. During one of the most destructive malicious
code environments in the history of the security industry, a growing number of cus-
tomers worldwide turned to Symantec as their trusted partner. Our performance far
outpaced the technology sector and many of our competitors, allowing us to provide
our customers with a whole new level of security when they need it most. 

Together, our broad portfolio of award-winning security and administration tech-
nologies and our diverse base of enterprise customers and individual consumers are 
at the heart of our ability to deliver consistent, predictable results. We expect these
combined strengths to be an important factor in our continued success, even during
these uncertain times. 

fiscal year 2002 review As we celebrate our twentieth year of operation, Symantec
surpassed the $1 billion revenue mark and achieved record pro forma results.
Revenues grew 13% to $1.071 billion, with almost half of those sales coming from
outside the U.S. Net income, excluding acquisition-related amortization and one-
time charges, grew 9% to $200.7 million and earnings per diluted share grew 11% 
to $1.30. Deferred revenue grew 81% to $331 million and cash flow from operations
generated $511 million. Going forward, our financial strength gives us the opportunity
to drive our own destiny. 

The enterprise security segment of our business grew 29%, shifting the mix of 
revenues by five points and accounting for 42% of total sales—well in line with 
expectations. We integrated our award-winning LiveUpdate™ technology into all of 
our high-end security solutions. This makes Symantec the only provider to deliver
security updates directly to the desktop, gateway or server through a common, easy-
to-use method. We also integrated our antivirus and content filtering technologies to
enhance gateway and mail server protection with Symantec™ Web Security, which
plugs the holes on a company’s network perimeter to block blended threats such as
the Nimda worm. 

We expanded our firewall appliance offering with a new appliance series aimed at
small businesses; Symantec™ Firewall/VPN received PC Magazine’s Editor’s Choice
award. And, we delivered Symantec™ Gateway Security, the first-of-its-kind, fully inte-
grated security appliance that provides a simple solution to combat complex threats at
the gateway. This advance in security integrates firewall, VPN, virus protection, content
filtering and intrusion detection capabilities, demonstrating the value of our AXENT
Technologies acquisition. 

Dear shareholders
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Our consumer products continue to lead in market share and command premium
prices. Despite a challenging start, consumer revenue grew 14% in what was predicted
to be a declining market. Symantec was the first to deliver XP-compatible products.
Creative in-store promotions won us the prestigious “Vendor of the Year” award by
Staples. We also delivered OEM products in 13 different languages, shipping on 35
million computers worldwide for the home and small office segments. Our products
continue to receive top accolades from industry magazines.

Our 100 million customers around the world provide an early warning system for
new security threats. Furthermore, the strength of our consumer support enhances our
response capability for enterprise customers and underpins our overall support strategy. 

operational highlights We launched our first-ever global brand campaign and established
Symantec’s “People in Yellow” as recognizable leaders in enterprise security. We are
identified as one of the most trusted brands in the industry—not only among security
companies, but across the entire IT sector. In a study conducted by The Wall Street
Journal, Symantec’s reputation in the software sector rose to #2. 

We invested in our future by improving our own systems infrastructure to support 
a multibillion-dollar business. To ensure that we stay ahead of emerging security
threats, we invested 15% of revenues in research and development. We continue to
build strong customer relationships supported by a new CRM system and a more 
experienced enterprise sales force. I’m convinced the investments we’re making will
not only show near-term results, but will position Symantec for future growth and
increased customer satisfaction. 

building an ecosystem of partners We continue to focus on increasing our technology
and sales partnerships to better align business and growth plans and drive stronger
customer relationships. We’re committed to providing our partners with the resources
they need for success—training and certification to implement our complete product
offerings. We have tens of thousands of partners worldwide and, in a very short time,
have certified hundreds of them in 128 countries. Top-tier partners such as IBM and
PriceWaterhouseCoopers are also an important part of our coverage strategy. 

changing the rules of the game In this increasingly connected world, customers are
struggling to protect hundreds of network servers, thousands of desktops and a vast
array of mobile devices from new security threats. The complexity of the information
flowing from numerous security products has customers longing for an easy-to-manage
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solution that gives them a unified view of their network’s security status. To that end,
Symantec is altering the way companies protect themselves from Internet attacks. We
are developing an integrated approach with a tangible payoff: more robust security with
lower cost of ownership. 

Tighter coordination is the new paradigm for effective defense. Symantec’s ability
to integrate core security technologies with a single deployment of timely updates is
what differentiates us. Our management system will not only consolidate security data
from Symantec solutions, but will collect information from other vendors’ products to
give customers a holistic view of their security environment. We are also delivering an
integrated solution for the enterprise desktop that combines intrusion detection, fire-
wall and virus protection with optional VPN capability. 

response is a key differentiator The true value of a security solution is measured 
when the inevitable outbreak occurs. Customers expect rapid response and tools that
protect all tiers of the network. Our world-class security response team supports 
customers around the world on a 24/7 basis, sends alerts, posts new software updates
and provides repair tools to clean up the damage caused by the growing number of
new threats.

As the frequency and complexity of threats continue to grow, the depth and
breadth of Symantec’s product portfolio positions us to serve the needs of customers
better than anyone else in the security segment. As companies use more e-business
applications across networks and more individuals connect to the Internet, we are
uniquely positioned to take advantage of the long-term growth potential that lies ahead.

I look forward to sharing another year of successes with you as we lead this 
industry to new heights. Our entire team appreciates your continued support.

John W. Thompson
chairman of the board and chief executive officer
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things have changed
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and fell in lovethe world met the web
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perimeters began to dissolve
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to the boardroomsecurity decisions moved from the desktop 



peace of mind moved from being 
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a luxury to a necessity

From banking and buying groceries to power generation and air traffic control, a 
growing web of global connectivity drives the business of daily life. We count on PCs,
handheld devices and mobile phones to stay in touch. Home PCs connect us to the
office network. Laptops leverage wireless networks in hotels, airports—wherever we go.

There’s no end in sight to the accelerating importance and impact of connectivity.
By 2006, the number of Internet users is projected to reach nearly 1 billion world-
wide. At the same time, this global marketplace will drive e-commerce to more than
$6 trillion—more than 80% of it business-to-business, according to industry analyst
firm IDC. 

In addition, the types of devices people will use to connect to the Internet are
increasing and changing drastically. IDC also estimates that in the same period more
than 60% of users connecting to the Internet will do so by mobile phone. 

As consumers, businesses and governments have come to rely on growing connec-
tivity, they’ve discovered it’s only as secure as the weakest link that makes it possible.
The world’s increasing reliance on electronic connections puts awesome power into the
hands of potential attackers. Without proper security, any of these systems can be
taken over and manipulated. 

With more sophisticated attackers launching ever more complex attacks, Internet
security has become a whole new game.

blended threats are bigger threats A single virus, intrusion or denial-of-service attack
can cause significant disruption and damage on its own. Put them together, as sabo-
teurs did in 2001, and the connected world faces a much more destructive threat.

Last year, in the world’s first major outbreaks of blended threats, Code Red and
Nimda, followed in 2002 by Klez, combined a number of attack methods to prey on a
wide array of weaknesses. Spreading faster than any previous threat, they did billions
of dollars in damage, with immeasurable cost to corporate brands and reputations.
This recent emergence of blended threats has heightened the business world’s aware-
ness of the need for a better, more sophisticated approach to security.

It’s a new game. The world is more connected than ever. Securing the Internet is 
more vital than ever to protecting the way we work, play and do business. As the 
global leader in Internet security, Symantec is helping customers stay ahead of the
game—even as it changes.
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security is mission-critical Gone are the days when Internet security was an isolated IT
concern. Companies now consider it a pivotal requirement critical to business continu-
ity and privacy protection. Executives held accountable to shareholders, customers and
employees are taking ownership of the issue. More than 52% of CEOs, presidents and
managing directors now approve security spending, compared to just 39% only a year
ago (InformationWeek Global Information Security Survey, 2001).

companies want trusted security partners As threats become more complex, so do the
solutions to address them. Complexity drives up cost—both in implementation and
management. Companies are looking to simplify the solution with fewer security part-
ners who can provide a breadth of complementary products and services on a global
scale. They’re looking for trustworthy partners who understand how fast the world of
security is changing and what it takes to stay on top of it. 

More and more of them are looking to Symantec. With operations in more than 
38 countries, we are the global leader in Internet security—and the security partner 
of choice for a growing number of the world’s leading enterprises. 

the rules of the new game

For the last 20 years, Symantec has provided global solutions that anticipate emerging
customer issues. Now we’re joining forces with customers and partners to lay the foun-
dation for the next generation of Internet security—where it takes new rules to win.

shifting to proactive security Symantec is helping companies make a fundamental
shift in their security paradigm—from reactive to proactive. Our solutions integrate risk
management and security protection technologies into the underlying infrastructure of
any network environment—at home, on the road, in the enterprise. And because secu-
rity issues are dynamic, so are our solutions, allowing users to actively manage the
evolution of security as their needs change.

it pays to think holistically Companies victimized by blended threats have learned that
securing the network perimeter is no longer enough. To be effective, security solutions
must be active and comprehensive at the gateway, server and client systems across the
enterprise. There must be active security policies and sensors deployed at all tiers for
antivirus, intrusion detection, firewall and vulnerability management. 

fig. 01 EVOLVING THREATS—Last year saw the emergence of a new, more insidious “blended” threat.

polymorphic viruses mass mailer viruses blended threatszombies denial of service
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integration: the new mantra Piecemeal security solutions compromise overall network
performance. They can be more costly to implement and manage. Most important,
they’re not up to the task of securing against blended threats.

Symantec’s new generation of network security integrates core security functions,
including firewall, antivirus, content filtering, intrusion detection and VPN, into single,
easy-to-use solutions in order to provide maximum protection with minimal impact on
performance. Symantec’s solutions help eliminate the costs and difficulties of imple-
menting and managing disparate point products at the multiple tiers of the network.

Based on industry standards, Symantec’s comprehensive security architecture 
provides a common platform for horizontally integrating security functionality at the
gateway, server and client levels. These solutions plug into a common management
infrastructure that provides a unified view of policy and incident management. 

Symantec launched its integrated security strategy in February 2002 with the
Symantec™ Gateway Security appliance, the first comprehensive gateway protection
solution in the industry. It combines five essential network security functions in a sin-
gle, resource-efficient and easy-to-manage appliance that simplifies security for small
companies and branch offices of larger enterprises. The fully integrated unit protects
against multifaceted, blended threats such as Klez, Nimda and Code Red through a
powerful combination of firewall, antivirus, content filtering, intrusion detection and
VPN technologies. 

However, with the increasing number of remote and mobile workers, protection at
the gateway must be complemented with comprehensive security at the client level as
well. In 2002, we will offer an integrated, comprehensive client security product for
the enterprise. Symantec™ Client Security will combine Symantec’s antivirus and con-
tent filtering capabilities with our client firewall/VPN and intrusion detection applica-
tions into a single, scalable management tool. The result: the single deployment of
timely definitions, rules and signatures critical to addressing blended threats.

Symantec’s enterprise administration solutions are primed for rolling out security
updates throughout the enterprise and for providing a secure solution for automatic 
PC state management.

integrated management works smarter In addition to integration at the application level,
integrated management is key to maintaining a successful security posture. It can make
a heterogeneous point product environment into a cohesive whole. It also reduces com-
plexity and the high, labor-intensive costs of on-site integration and ongoing mainte-
nance of disparate products.

fig. 02 INTEGRATED SECURITY—Integrated applications and management reduce complexity and TCO.
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Symantec’s security management system will give information security profession-
als and IT executives a total view of their security infrastructure. It will provide a com-
prehensive response plan for managing outbreaks by prioritizing threats and offering
response techniques. Through event management consolidation and incident manage-
ment workflow, it will be able to reduce to essentials the amount of data reported to
the administrator, allowing security outbreaks to be resolved quickly. It will sort false
positives from real threats and correlate high volumes of alert information in real time
to automate the detection and analysis of security incidents.

Symantec’s security management system will collect data from a variety of third-
party security applications and relay it to third-party network management applica-
tions, using its unique architecture, built on industry standards. Symantec contributes
to the ongoing evolution of these standards.

Integrated enterprise security becomes a risk management tool that allows enter-
prises to balance protection, performance and cost associated with growing a business
in a connected world. In order to minimize the complexities that tax administrators
and managers, IT departments are moving toward fewer vendors and fewer products,
demanding more integrated and complete solutions from their IT suppliers. 

The bottom line? Our customers protect the investment they’ve made in their
infrastructure and reduce total cost of ownership.

the best defense: a dynamic offense

The first line of defense against cyber attack is the security technology deployed
throughout a network. But that defense must be backed by ongoing, offensive counter-
measures providing proactive intelligence to prevent an outbreak before it happens. 

Symantec™ Security Response brings together one of the world’s largest and most
experienced teams of dedicated intrusion experts, security engineers, virus hunters 
and global technical support teams. The group works together to provide global, 24/7
coverage to help protect business continuity and reduce downtime for enterprises and
individuals around the world. 

automation ensures rapid response Symantec’s automated response system handles
more than 150,000 submissions a month. Any potential threats submitted to Symantec
are rapidly turned around with comprehensive preventive measures that can be 

fig. 03 SECURITY COUNTERMEASURES—Symantec Security Response provides proactive intelligence around the clock.

24 / 7
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quickly and easily deployed across the portfolio of Symantec products using patented
LiveUpdate™ technology. Our customers around the world launch more than 12 million
LiveUpdate sessions every day.

reliable threat assessment is a huge asset Our team of security experts is strategically
deployed across the North American, European and Asia Pacific regions to provide cus-
tomers with around-the-clock information on emerging threats. We classify every threat
into a clearly defined category of risk to computer users based on a comprehensive
assessment of its severity. 

For computer viruses, worms and Trojan horses, these severity ratings are based on
our analysis of the extent to which a malicious program is in circulation, the damage
that program causes if encountered and the rate at which it spreads. The team also
issues alerts and advisories on security threats and vulnerability risk assessments
based on an analysis of potential damage and access as well as the impact of the loss
of confidentiality, integrity and availability of computer assets.

timing can be everything Security is not only what you know—but when you know it.
Symantec security experts deliver knowledgeable, proactive advice through product
security policies and best practice guidelines to our enterprise customers and partners
that can be updated and distributed through automated processes. We also provide
rapid reactive security protection through our incident response program, which
includes emergency signatures, definitions, customized repair tools and policies, along
with outbound communications such as wireless alerting services or personal phone
calls from technical account managers.

With several hundred certified experts in information security, desktop and net-
work management, Symantec’s global technical support team serves customers in eight
languages around the world. Technical support experts provide customers with informa-
tion on product implementation and usage, as well as countermeasures and identifica-
tion tools for new threats. 

conquering nimda The Nimda worm illustrates Symantec’s comprehensive response in
action. Within 25 minutes of the first notification about Nimda, Symantec security
experts completed an analysis with initial recommendations, which was immediately
posted to the Symantec Security Response web site and sent out via a wireless broad-
cast alert. 

Symantec was the first company to release a working repair tool that, in one step,
simultaneously detected the worm and repaired damaged files. We were also the first

security operations center

support center

response center

fig. 04 GLOBAL REACH—With operations around the world, Symantec provides consistent coverage to global customers.
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to provide comprehensive updates across a broad range of solutions, from antivirus to
firewall to intrusion detection at both the enterprise and consumer levels to ensure
protection at all tiers. 

experience: the ultimate security 

To meet and exceed our customers’ expectations as security demands grow, we are
continuously fine-tuning our team of security experts to be the best in the industry. In
2001, we began to establish a network of business and channel partners to help aug-
ment and deliver Symantec’s expertise, technologies and services. These partnerships
are creating synergies that enhance our customers’ security—now, and in the long term. 

strength through alliances Our partners include some of the world’s top strategic soft-
ware and hardware companies, including CacheFlow, EMC, IBM, Inktomi and Network
Appliance. Together, we’re creating interoperable and integrated solutions that secure
information passing through all elements of the IT infrastructure, including storage
servers, web security and acceleration appliances, caching applications and databases.
Working with systems management players, we’re improving the implementation of
security management across the enterprise.

In addition, under agreements with nine of the top ten PC brands, including Dell,
HP, Compaq, MicronPC and Toshiba, Symantec will ship security solutions on an esti-
mated 35 million desktop and/or laptop computers worldwide in 2002 alone. Our
security presence is available on approximately 65% of all desktop and portable sys-
tems shipped to the home and small office segments. 

We continue to expand our relationship with key platform partners, including
Microsoft Corporation. Symantec was a partner in the launch of Windows XP. Our con-
sumer security solutions were among the first to earn the “Designed for Windows XP”
logo certification from Microsoft after passing a rigorous set of requirements. We also
work closely with Microsoft on its security initiatives and Microsoft .NET technologies.

To ensure the broadest delivery of our security solutions, Symantec teams with
service providers, large systems integrators and top consulting firms. We provide vary-
ing levels of antivirus protection for millions of computer users through Internet service
providers and other infrastructure providers around the world, including Yahoo!; Planet
Internet, the largest Internet service provider in The Netherlands; and Brightmail’s 

fig. 05 A LEADING PRESENCE—In 2002, 65% of PCs worldwide will ship with Symantec security solutions.

35,000,000  desktops
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fig. 06 EXPERIENCE REQUIRED—Symantec celebrates 20 years of meeting and exceeding customer expectations.

customers such as Critical Path™, AT&T WorldNet Service and ALLTEL. Symantec also
works with service providers to offer Norton AntiVirus™, Norton™ Personal Firewall and
Norton Internet Security™ for “lease” to their subscribers. 

Whether it is through retail, OEM agreements or service providers, Symantec gives
customers the flexibility to access their security solutions in a way that makes sense
for them.

we train the experts Security is as much about highly skilled people as it is about tech-
nology. To meet the rising demand for security experts, Symantec has created a world-
wide channel program that gives partners the opportunity to expand their business in
Internet security—and fill the need for qualified experts on Symantec security solutions. 

With more than 17,000 partners signed up worldwide, our channel partner pro-
gram provides resources and fee-based training and certification on basic product
knowledge as well as critical technologies and processes in four technical areas: virus
protection and content management, firewall and VPN technologies, intrusion detec-
tion systems and vulnerability management. 

we make outsourcing good business Rather than maintaining security expertise on
their internal staff, some companies prefer to outsource ongoing security management.
For such businesses, Symantec™ Managed Security Services offers cost-effective out-
sourced solutions that allow organizations to protect their e-business infrastructure and
focus on core business issues. Our services include ongoing management of vulnerabil-
ity assessment, policy compliance, antivirus, intrusion detection and response, and
firewall and VPN systems. 

Providing around-the-clock service from our Security Operations Centers in Texas,
England and Germany, Symantec security analysts currently manage thousands of
devices for customers worldwide, monitoring an average of 22 million events a month.
This generates significant intelligence about the ongoing security environment from
which all our customers can benefit.

making the Internet more secure Securing the networked environment so enterprises
and individuals feel comfortable conducting more and more business online—no mat-
ter how they connect—is an ever-changing game. In the days ahead, the winners will
be organizations that can align their security strategy with their business strategy and
understand that security decisions are also business decisions. Working hand-in-hand
with our global customers and partners, Symantec is leading a new generation of solu-
tions that enable today’s connected world. And tomorrow’s.

1982 2002



20 CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tania Amochaev

Retired Chief Executive Officer, 

QRS Corporation 

Dr. Per-Kristian Halvorsen

Center Director, Solutions & 

Services Technologies Center, 

Hewlett-Packard Laboratories

Robert S. Miller 

Chairman of the Board and Chief 

Executive Officer, Bethlehem Steel 

William A. Owens

Co-Chief Executive Officer and 

Vice Chairman, Teledesic LLC 

George Reyes

Former Vice President and Treasurer, 

Sun Microsystems

Daniel H. Schulman

Chief Executive Officer, Virgin Mobile USA

John W. Thompson

Chairman of the Board and Chief 

Executive Officer, Symantec Corporation

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

John W. Thompson

Chairman of the Board and 

Chief Executive Officer 

John G. Schwarz

President and Chief Operating Officer

Arthur F. Courville

Senior Vice President, General Counsel 

and Secretary

Donald E. Frischmann

Senior Vice President, Communications and

Brand Management

Dieter Giesbrecht

Senior Vice President, Worldwide Sales 

and Professional Services

Gail E. Hamilton

Executive Vice President, Product 

Delivery and Response

Gregory E. Myers

Senior Vice President, Finance and 

Chief Financial Officer

Rebecca A. Ranninger

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Robert A. Clyde

Vice President, Chief Technology Officer 

Stephen G. Cullen

Senior Vice President, Consumer Products

Lily C. De Los Rios

Vice President, Product Delivery and

Response

Gregory M. Gotta

Vice President, Product Delivery 

Charles A. Johnson

Vice President, Worldwide Security Services

Steven B. Messick

Vice President, North America Sales 

and Marketing

Akihiko Narita

President SKK and Vice President, Japan

Mark L. Nittler

Vice President, Strategic Marketing

Cecil Perez

Vice President, Latin America

Garry D. Sexton

Vice President, Asia Pacific 

Russell D. Stay

Vice President, Product Delivery

Giuseppe Verrini

Vice President, Europe, Middle East, 

Africa Sales and Marketing

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Symantec Corporation

20330 Stevens Creek Blvd. 

Cupertino, CA  95014 

(408) 517-8000

www.symantec.com

Transfer Agent

EquiServe, LP 

P.O. Box 43010 

Providence, RI  02940-3010 

(800) 733-5001

Delrina Shareholders Should Contact:

CIBC Mellon Trust 

PO BOX 7010 

Adelaide St. Postal Station 

Attn: Courier Window 

Toronto, Ontario M5C2W9 

Canada 

(800) 387-0825

Investor Relations

Please contact the Investor Relations

Hotline at (800) 682-0082. Additional

investment-oriented questions may be

directed to:

Helyn Corcos 

Investor Relations 

20330 Stevens Creek Blvd. 

Cupertino, CA  95014 

(408) 517-8324 

www.symantec.com/invest/

A copy of the Company’s Form 10-K 

and exhibits for the period ended 

March 31, 2002, as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission, 

is available without charge upon request 

or can be accessed at www.sec.gov

Information on the Company, its products

and services can be obtained by calling

(800) 441-7234 or (541) 335-5000, 

or can be accessed at www.symantec.com

Outside Counsel

Fenwick & West LLP

Two Palo Alto Square 

Palo Alto, CA  94306 

(650) 494-0600

Independent Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP 

303 Almaden Blvd. 

San Jose, CA  95110

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders 

will be held on September 12, 2002, 

at Symantec’s worldwide headquarters 

in Cupertino, California

Common Stock 

The Company’s stock is traded on the

Nasdaq under the symbol SYMC 

D
E

S
IG

N
: 

M
E

T
H

O
D

O
L

O
G

IE
, 

IN
C

. 
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
Y:

 M
IS

H
A

 G
R

A
V

E
N

O
R

  
P

R
IN

T
IN

G
: 

W
O

O
D

S
 L

IT
H

O
G

R
A

P
H

IC
S



company profile

Symantec, the world leader in Internet security technology, provides a broad range of content

and network security software and appliance solutions to enterprises, individuals and service

providers. The company is a leading provider of client, gateway and server security solutions 

for virus protection, firewall and virtual private network, vulnerability management, intrusion

detection, Internet content and e-mail filtering, remote management technologies and security

services to enterprises and service providers around the world. Symantec’s Norton brand of

consumer security products is a leader in worldwide retail sales and industry awards. Head-

quartered in Cupertino, Calif., Symantec has worldwide operations in 38 countries. For more

information, please visit www.symantec.com.

Symantec, the Symantec logo, LiveUpdate and Norton AntiVirus are U.S. registered trademarks of Symantec

Corporation. Norton Internet Security, Norton Personal Firewall, Symantec AntiVirus, Symantec Client Security,

Symantec Gateway Security, Symantec Firewall/VPN, Symantec Intruder Alert, Symantec Managed Security Services,

Symantec Security Response, and Symantec Web Security are trademarks of Symantec Corporation. Other brands

and products are trademarks of their respective holder/s. 

© 2002 Symantec Corporation. All rights reserved. 10026855

forward-looking statements 

This annual report contains forward-looking statements that involve known and unknown risks,

uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, levels of activity, performance or

achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking state-

ments of this report. Such risk factors include, among others: the sustainability of recent

growth rates, particularly in consumer products; the anticipation of the growth of certain mar-

ket segments, particularly enterprise security; the positioning of Symantec’s products in those

segments; the competitive environment in the software industry; general market conditions,

fluctuations in currency exchange rates, changes to operating systems and product strategy 

by vendors of operating systems; acquisition risks; and whether Symantec can successfully

develop new products and the degree to which these gain market acceptance. These and other

risks are detailed in reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including

Symantec’s Form 10-K for the period ended March 31, 2002. Symantec assumes no obliga-

tion to update any forward-looking information contained in this report except as otherwise

required by law.
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""Symantec,'' ""we,'' ""us,'' and ""our'' refer to Symantec Corporation and all of its subsidiaries. This
document contains references to trademarks and trade names of other companies.

All Symantec share and per share amounts in this Form 10-K have been adjusted to reÖect the two-for-
one stock split eÅected as a stock dividend, which became eÅective January 31, 2002.

PART I

Item 1. Business

Forward-Looking Statements

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to be materially diÅerent from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others things, those
risk factors set forth under Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Information and Results of
Operations Ì Business Risk Factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We identify forward-looking state-
ments by words such as ""may,'' ""will,'' ""should,'' ""could,'' ""expects,'' ""plans,'' ""anticipates,'' ""believes,''
""estimates,'' ""predicts,'' ""potential,'' or ""continue'' or similar terms that refer to the future. We cannot
guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.

Introduction

Symantec provides a broad range of content and network security software and appliance solutions to
enterprises, individuals and service providers. We are a leading provider of client, gateway and server security
solutions for virus protection, Ñrewall and virtual private network, vulnerability management, intrusion
detection, Internet content and e-mail Ñltering, remote management technologies and security services to
enterprises and service providers around the world. Founded in 1982, we have oÇces in 38 countries
worldwide.

Business Overview

We currently view our business in Ñve operating segments: Enterprise Security, Enterprise Administra-
tion, Consumer Products, Services and Other. For Ñnancial information related to our operating segments, see
Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Enterprise Security

Our Enterprise Security segment focuses on providing Internet security technology, global response and
services necessary for organizations to manage their information security needs. Our comprehensive solutions
oÅer products to protect gateways, servers, and clients (desktop PCs, laptops, mobile devices and PDAs) with
virus protection and Ñltering, intrusion detection, vulnerability management, Ñrewall security and virtual
private networking, or VPN. In addition, we have expanded our technology oÅerings to include an integrated
solution at the gateway level combining several of our individual technology solutions. At the gateway level,
our products run on Windows NT », Solaris», and Linux» platforms. Our products at the server level operate
on Windows NT, UNIX, Linux and other key server platforms. At the client level, our products run on the
Windows» platform.

Integrated Solution

SymantecTM Gateway Security combines Ñrewall, antivirus, Internet content Ñltering, intrusion detection,
and VPN technologies into one appliance. This integrated solution provides a second level of protection
against multi-faceted security threats that antivirus and Ñrewall protection alone cannot provide. It is a Öexible
solution for small and medium-sized oÇces for securing the gateway between the Internet and corporate
networks or between network segments.
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Virus Protection and Filtering

Our virus protection and Ñltering technologies are core elements of Internet security that combine multi-
tier protection against viruses with the management of Internet communications for sensitive content or
misuse of data. Users of our virus protection and Ñltering products are able to take action to protect their
enterprise from risks associated with using Internet resources. This includes scanning or monitoring data that
enters, leaves or travels inside the organization, as well as detecting and eliminating malicious code that may
be introduced into a company's network. Our virus protection and e-mail and Internet content Ñltering
technologies protect gateways, servers and clients at multiple entry points from known and unknown threats.
Protection from virus attacks is the most well-known and largest market component of the enterprise security
area.

Symantec AntiVirusTM oÅers the Öexibility of a bundled, multi-tiered antivirus solution to protect the
enterprise's network, including Internet gateways, desktops, Ñle and print servers, mail servers and Ñrewalls.
Symantec AntiVirus also enables corporations to keep their virus deÑnitions up to date via LiveUpdate.

Symantec CarrierScanTM Server provides advanced, high-performance virus scanning and repair services
for the NetApp» Ñler and NetCache» devices from Network Appliance. Symantec CarrierScan server
employs Symantec antivirus technologies to detect viruses, worms, and Trojan horses in all major Ñle types,
including mobile code and compressed Ñle formats. Virus deÑnitions and engines are updated automatically
with no interruption in virus scanning. Symantec CarrierScan accommodates growing scan volumes and
additional servers, and provides automatic load balancing across multiple servers.

Firewalls/VPN

We oÅer Ñrewall and VPN solutions that protect throughout the network, including at Internet gateways,
gateways to sensitive internal networks and at client devices.

SymantecTM Enterprise Firewall, a gateway software Ñrewall product, protects enterprise assets and
business transactions. As a comprehensive full inspection Ñrewall, Symantec Enterprise Firewall enables fast,
but controlled connectivity, providing protection against unwanted intrusion while enabling the Öow of
approved traÇc for oÇces with 25 to 25,000 nodes. Through its optional VPN, it can also provide high-speed
and cost eÅective remote connectivity between mobile workers and the oÇce.

SymantecTM Desktop Firewall enables administrators to quickly roll out an eÅective solution that works
intelligently in the background, monitoring both inbound and outbound communications. Since Symantec
Desktop Firewall is optimized for always-on broadband connections such as DSL and cable modems, it is a
highly eÅective solution for securing remote communications.

SymantecTM Enterprise VPN is a full inspection VPN gateway, enabling high speed, cost-eÅective and
secure connectivity between oÇces and with partners and mobile users. With its integrated, full inspection
ProxySecured VPN technology and integrated client-side personal Ñrewall, companies can securely extend
networks beyond their physical perimeter.

SymantecTM Firewall/VPN Appliance is an integrated security and networking device that provides
Internet connectivity and secure VPN connections between locations. Symantec Firewall/VPN Appliance
provides high-speed access, reliable connectivity, substantial bandwidth and remote management and
monitoring ideal for remote locations and small oÇces with up to 40 users.

Symantec VelociRaptorTM Ñrewall appliance is an integrated hardware and software Ñrewall and VPN
appliance that employs our full-inspection technology to provide fast and secure Internet connectivity.
Symantec VelociRaptor delivers enterprise-class network security for oÇces with 30 to 5,000 users.

Intrusion Detection

Organizations must protect information from unwanted users and hackers and control access to
information to maintain business integrity. At the gateway and server level, our intrusion detection products
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monitor systems for patterns of misuse and abuse and can warn organizations before systems are misused or
information is stolen.

Symantec Intruder AlertTM is a host-based, real-time intrusion detection system that detects security
breaches and automatically responds according to pre-established security policies. By alerting administrators
of potential problems, it enables enterprises to develop precautionary security policies that prevent hackers or
authorized users with malicious intent from misusing systems, applications, and data.

Symantec NetProwlerTM complements existing security countermeasures and fortiÑes a company's
e-business initiatives by oÅering dynamic network intrusion detection that transparently examines network
traÇc. It is designed to instantly identify, log, and terminate unauthorized use, misuse and abuse of computer
systems by internal saboteurs and external hackers.

Vulnerability Management

At the gateway and server level, our vulnerability management products Ñnd system vulnerabilities and
help to ensure security policy compliance to proactively reduce business risk. The initial step to reduce
corporate risk is to eÅectively measure compliance to a business security policy and detect vulnerabilities
where critical information resides. It is important to understand the eÅectiveness of a security policy in order
to properly deÑne, manage and enforce business policies and assess possible threats.

Symantec Enterprise Security ManagerTM gives enterprises the ability to automate the discovery of
security vulnerabilities and deviations of the security policy in mission critical e-business applications and
servers across the enterprise from a single location. Symantec Enterprise Security Manager provides
intelligent tools that allow administrators to create a pre-deÑned security baseline for every system on the
network and measure performance against that baseline.

Symantec NetReconTM provides network vulnerability assessment with progressive scanning technology.
Its root-cause analysis engine illustrates the exact sequence of steps taken to uncover vulnerabilities. Symantec
NetRecon displays vulnerability data as it scans, then provides the appropriate reports so administrators do not
have to search through volumes of data.

Enterprise Administration

Our Enterprise Administration segment oÅers products that enable companies to be more eÅective and
eÇcient within their information technology departments. Remote management solutions help professionals
remain productive while away from the oÇce, while also providing companies access to information,
applications and data from any location.

Symantec pcAnywhereTM oÅers secure, reliable, fast and Öexible point-to-point remote computing via a
multitude of communications media including Internet, serial, LAN, ISDN, DSL, cable modems and
infrared. Symantec pcAnywhere enables a remote PC user to control and transfer data to and from a host PC.
In addition, the remote PC, laptop or PC terminal controls the operation of the often-distant host PC and
allows users at the host machine to view the operations being conducted from the remote site.

Symantec GhostTM Corporate Edition is a tool for PC deployment, recovery, cloning and migration. It
reduces information technology costs by streamlining the conÑguration of networked workstations. Adminis-
trators can deploy or restore an operating system image or application onto a PC in minutes and migrate user
settings and proÑles to customize the PC.

Consumer Products

Our Consumer Products segment focuses on delivering our security and problem-solving products to
individual users, home oÇces and small businesses. The segment's charter is to ensure that consumers and
their information are secure and protected in a connected world. Most of the products that we are currently
marketing or developing feature LiveUpdateTM. This feature enables users to subscribe to easily downloadable
content updates including virus deÑnitions, Ñrewall rules, URL databases and uninstall scripts. Our consumer
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products run primarily on Windows and Macintosh» operating systems. Symantec AntiVirus also runs on
Palm OS».

Norton AntiVirusTM provides antivirus protection with automatic repair of many virus infections without
interrupting work. It scans and cleans both incoming and outgoing mail and defends against new script-based
viruses even between virus deÑnition updates. For those customers that subscribe to them, the latest virus
deÑnitions are downloaded automatically through LiveUpdate, created by Symantec Security Response, when
the PC is connected to the Internet. Symantec Security Response provides 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
research and analysis capability to ensure that customers have the highest level of protection available.

Norton Internet SecurityTM is a fully integrated suite that is designed to provide total Internet protection
for the home computer. The suite includes Norton AntiVirus, NortonTM Personal Firewall and NortonTM

Privacy Control. Norton AntiVirus repairs many virus infections automatically, without interrupting work.
Norton Personal Firewall prevents hackers from accessing the computer's Ñles or using the computer in other
Internet-based attacks. Norton Privacy Control helps keep email addresses, credit-card numbers and other
personal information private. NortonTM Parental Control helps keep children safe on the Internet through
website blocking and individual access privileges.

Norton SystemWorksTM is a fully integrated suite of problem-solving utilities that protects PC users from
virus threats, optimizes performance, cleans out Internet clutter, and provides quick and easy system recovery.
Included in this suite are the latest complete versions of our products: Norton AntiVirus, Norton UtilitiesTM

and Norton CleanSweepTM.

Services

SymantecTM Security Services provides information security solutions that incorporate best-of-breed
technology, security expertise and global resources to help enable e-business success. Through its comprehen-
sive oÅerings, Symantec Security Services oÅers industry best practices, solutions for security management
and response, and knowledge transfer to develop internal security skills.

Consulting Services enables organizations to implement best-practices security measures across the
enterprise through comprehensive security assessments and holistic planning and design. Consulting Services
develops strategies for managing and reducing risks to help organizations protect business-critical information
assets.

Managed Security Services provides comprehensive outsourced security management, monitoring and
response services that help organizations solve security problems cost eÅectively. Managed Security Services
allows organizations to leverage the knowledge of Internet security experts in order to protect the value of their
networked assets and infrastructure. The around-the-clock delivery of managed services is provided remotely
from our global Security Operation Centers located in San Antonio, Texas and Epsom, United Kingdom.
Among the services oÅered are the ongoing management of vulnerability, policy compliance, antivirus,
intrusion detection and response, and Ñrewall and VPN systems.

Education Services provides a full range of training, skills development and certiÑcations that enable
organizations to optimize the selection, implementation, operation and administration of their security
systems. By developing, enhancing and maintaining internal staÅ knowledge, organizations can maximize the
return on their security investments and improve the eÇciency of their security solutions.

Other

Our Other segment is comprised of sunset products, products nearing the end of their life cycle, and
operations from our web access management, Visual Caf πeTM and ACT!TM divested product lines.
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Recent Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisitions

Since our initial public oÅering on June 23, 1989, we have completed acquisitions of 25 businesses.

Our recent acquisitions were as follows:

‚ Lindner & Pelc Consult GmbH in the September 2001 quarter;

‚ Foster-Melliar Limited's enterprise security management division also in the September 2001 quarter;

‚ AXENT Technologies, Inc. in the December 2000 quarter;

‚ 20/20 Software, Inc. in the March 2000 quarter;

‚ L-3 Network Security's operations, also in the March 2000 quarter; and

‚ URLabs in the September 1999 quarter.

We accounted for each of these acquisitions as a purchase and, accordingly, we have included the
operating results of these businesses in our consolidated Ñnancial statements since their respective dates of
acquisition. We have acquired several businesses in the past, including Peter Norton Computing, Inc. on
August 31, 1990. We continue to use the Norton brand name for certain consumer products developed and
marketed by us.

Divestitures

We divested our web access management product line on August 24, 2001 and the Visual Caf πe and
substantially all of the ACT! product lines on December 31, 1999. We have included the operating results of
these product lines prior to disposition in our Other segment. The divestiture of the Visual Caf πe and ACT!
product lines enabled us to focus our eÅorts and resources on our Internet security business. The Visual Caf πe
and ACT! product lines comprised a signiÑcant part of our business prior to their disposition.

For further discussion on our recent acquisitions and divestitures, see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Sales and Marketing

We license our corporate and enterprise products through our distributors, corporate resellers, value-
added resellers and system integrator channels, in addition to our direct sales force.

We sell our consumer products to individuals and small oÇces/home oÇces around the world through a
multi-tiered distribution network. Our products are available to customers through channels that include:
distributors, retailers, mail order resellers, Internet-based resellers or ""e-tailers,'' original equipment manufac-
turers, educational institutions and Internet service providers. We also sell some of our products and product
upgrades through direct mail and over the Internet, in conjunction with channel partners.

We maintain distribution relationships with major independent distributors. Our indirect sales force
works closely with our major distributor and reseller accounts to manage the Öow of orders, inventory levels
and sales to customers. We also work closely with them to execute channel promotions and other marketing
activities associated with these promotions.

Our agreements with distributors are generally nonexclusive and may be terminated by either party
without cause. These distributors are not within our control and are not obligated to purchase products from
us. They also distribute other vendors' product lines. For information with respect to distributors that represent
more than 10% of our net revenues, see Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Form 10-K.
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Our marketing activities include:

‚ advertising in trade, technical and business publications;

‚ on-line advertising;

‚ radio broadcast advertising (consumer only);

‚ public relations;

‚ cooperative marketing with distributors, resellers and industry partners;

‚ direct mailings and e-mailings to existing end-users;

‚ the use of tools such as trialware and Symantec Security Check, a web-based tool for users to assess
the security vulnerabilities on their computers (consumer only);

‚ participation in focused trade and computer shows; and

‚ primary market research to understand evolving customer need and buying behaviors (consumer only).

For our consumer products, we typically oÅer two types of rebate programs within most countries: volume
incentive rebates to channel partners and promotional rebates to end-users. The distributor or reseller earns a
volume incentive rebate based upon the volume of their purchases and their sale of products to end-users.
From time to time, we also make rebates available to individual users of various products acquired through
major retailers. We regularly oÅer upgrade rebates to existing customers purchasing a new version of a
product. Both volume incentive rebates and end-user rebates are accrued as an oÅset to revenue when revenue
is originally recorded.

Product returns occur when we introduce upgrades and new versions of products or when distributors or
retailers have excess inventories, subject to various contractual limitations. Our return policy allows
distributors, subject to these contractual limitations, to return purchased products in exchange for new
products or for credit towards future purchases. End users may return our products through dealers and
distributors for a full refund within a reasonably short period from the date of purchase. We estimate and
record reserves for such product returns. For further discussion, see Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, ""Critical Accounting Policies'' and the Summary of
SigniÑcant Accounting Policies in the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

International Sales

Revenues outside of the United States represented approximately 47%, 48% and 45% of our net revenues
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The majority of our net revenues from Europe are derived from sales by aÇliates of our major United
States distributors. Additionally, we sell our products through authorized distributors, which may be restricted
to speciÑed territories. For most of our consumer products, we translate the documentation, software and
packaging into the local language and prepare marketing programs for each local market.

We have marketing oÇces in Australia, Austria, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, China, Czech Republic,
Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Hong Kong, Hungary, India, Israel, Italy, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico,
The Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Poland, Russia, Singapore, South Africa, South Korea, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, Taiwan, Turkey, United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom. These local oÇces
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facilitate our marketing and distribution in international markets. Our international operations are subject to
various risks common to international operations, including:

‚ government regulations;

‚ import restrictions;

‚ currency Öuctuations;

‚ repatriation restrictions; and

‚ in some jurisdictions, reduced protection for our copyrights and trademarks.

Symantec
TM

 Security Response

Symantec Security Response is a team of dedicated intrusion experts, security engineers, virus hunters
and global technical support teams that work in tandem to provide extensive coverage for enterprise businesses
and consumers. Symantec Security Response provides customers with comprehensive, global, 24x7 Internet
security expertise to guard against today's blended Internet threats, threats that are multi-faceted in their
operating methods and eÅects.

Symantec Security Response addresses blended threats by providing a thorough analysis of Internet
security threats, evaluating how threats work together, then oÅering recommendations on protection. This
allows us to respond to complex security threats in a more holistic, preventive manner. A Symantec Security
Response analysis can show how multiple threats work together, how this could impact a customer, and how to
protect against these threats.

Symantec Security Response delivers knowledgeable, proactive security protection through product
security policies and best practice guidelines that can be updated and distributed through automated
processes. Additionally, Symantec Security Response provides rapid reactive security protection through its
incident response program, including emergency antivirus signatures, deÑnitions and policies, as well as
outbound communications such as alerting services.

Research Centers

The research centers of Symantec Security Response are focused on collecting and analyzing the latest
malware threats from network security threats and vulnerabilities to viruses and worms. When a new threat or
vulnerability is discovered, Symantec Security Response experts provide rapid emergency response, focusing
on communication with customers and delivery of security updates for our security products.

Symantec Security Response researchers represent a cross-section of many of the most highly regarded
security experts in the industry. Research centers are located around the world, including North America,
Asia, Australia and Europe.

To ensure that customers are utilizing the most recent technologies available for addressing security
issues, Symantec Security Response experts leverage our sophisticated back-end product architecture. This
architecture allows users to receive the latest security updates Ì including virus deÑnitions and intrusion
detection signatures Ì automatically in the event of a new security threat or outbreak. LiveUpdate technology
simpliÑes and speeds the process of receiving and implementing security updates for our security product
oÅerings at the server, gateway and desktop levels.

Communication Methods

Symantec Security Response not only provides time-sensitive security advisories using web updates, but
also provides alerting services, technical support and media alerts. Symantec Security Response is committed
to educating the general public about key security threats and trends through published white papers and
speaking engagements worldwide.
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Technical Support

With more than 300 experts in Internet security and desktop and network management, as well as our
complete product solutions, our global technical support team is available around the clock. Our technical
support experts provide customers with information on product implementation and usage, as well as
countermeasures and identiÑcation tools for new threats.

We maintain centralized support facilities throughout the world to drive rapid response to complex
queries. Support is available in multiple languages, including Dutch, English, French, German, Italian,
Japanese, Korean, Mandarin, Portuguese and Spanish.

Enterprise Security Support

Our enterprise security support program oÅers annual support contracts to all enterprise customers
worldwide. Our standard annual support contracts provide 1) hot-line service delivered by telephone, fax,
e-mail and over the Internet; 2) immediate patches for severe problems; 3) periodic software updates;
4) access to our technical knowledge base and FAQ facility; and 5) an invitation to the annual user group
meeting. Inclusive in these standard annual support contracts are virus deÑnitions and intrusion detection
signatures created by Symantec Security Response. Customers may augment their standard annual support
contract with services such as 24x7x365 hour telephone and web support, advanced alerting services,
additional designated callers (contacts) and additional language support, as well as a Technical Account
Manager, assigned to work closely with an organization and act as a focal point for all issues.

Consumer Product Support

Our product support program provides free self-help online services to all consumer customers worldwide.
In some countries, access to free telephone support is provided for a limited period of 30 to 90 days, depending
upon the country. After the initial period, telephone support is provided for a fee throughout North America,
as well as portions of Asia PaciÑc and Europe. For some of our international customers, we continue to
transition our product support to be entirely fee based telephone support, along with free self-help online
support. For customers that subscribe to them, the latest virus deÑnitions and application bug Ñxes and/or
patches for most of our currently marketed and developed products are downloaded automatically through
LiveUpdate, created by Symantec Security Response.

We revise these fee-based support programs from time to time as customer requirements change and as
market trends dictate.

Product Development, Partnerships, Investments and Acquisitions

We use a multiple product sourcing strategy that includes, as necessary:

‚ internal development;

‚ licensing from third parties;

‚ investment in companies; and

‚ acquisitions of technologies, product lines or companies.

We develop software products that are designed to operate on a variety of operating systems. We typically
develop new products and enhancements of existing products through focused product development groups
with support from our core technology group. Each segment is responsible for its own design, development,
documentation and quality assurance.

Independent contractors are used for aspects of the product development process. In addition, elements of
some of our products are licensed from third-party developers.

We invest in companies with emerging technologies and companies that promote the sale and use of our
products. These investments are made in lieu of an acquisition when timing is inappropriate or when the
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business models and sectors fall out of our strategic requirements. We pursue investments, which we believe
will be complementary and which we believe can enhance both Ñnancial returns and market growth.

We use strategic acquisitions as necessary to provide certain technology, people and products for our
overall product strategy. We consider both timeliness to market and potential market share growth when
evaluating acquisitions of technologies, product lines or companies. We have completed a number of
acquisitions of technologies, companies and products, in the past, and have also disposed of technologies and
products. We may acquire and/or dispose of other technologies, companies and products in the future. For
further discussion on our acquisitions and divestitures, see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of this Form 10-K.

Competition

Our markets are intensely competitive and are subject to rapid changes in technology. They are
inÖuenced by the rapid change in Internet security threats and the strategic direction of major computer
hardware manufacturers, Internet service providers, application service providers, key application software
vendors and operating system providers. Our competitiveness depends on our ability to deliver products that
meet our customers' needs by enhancing our existing solutions and oÅering reliable, scalable and standardized
new solutions on a timely basis. We have limited resources, and as a result, we must deploy our available
resources thoughtfully. The principal competitive factors in our Enterprise Security and Administration and
Consumer Products segments are quality, employment of the most advanced technology, time to market,
price, reputation, breadth of product oÅerings, customer support, brand recognition, and sales and marketing
teams. In our Services segment, the principal competitive factors include technical capability, customer
responsiveness, price, ability to attract and retain talented and experienced personnel, and reputation within
the industry.

In the enterprise security and administration market, we compete against several companies who oÅer
competing products to our technology solutions and to our Symantec Ghost and pcAnywhere products and
competing services to our response and support. Some of the companies that we compete against are Altiris,
BindView, Checkpoint, Cisco, Computer Associates, Internet Security Services, Netopia, NetScreen, Net-
work Associates, Okena, PentaSafe, PowerQuest, Stac Software, SonicWALL, Sophos, Traveling Software,
Trend Micro, Watchguard and WebSense. Some of the companies that oÅer competing products to our
Consumer Products oÅerings include Internet Security Services, McAfee.com, Network Associates, Norman,
OnTrack (now owned by Kroll), Panda, Trend Micro and ZoneLabs. With the recent outbreaks of viruses and
other Internet-based security threats, several other companies have entered the market and may become
signiÑcant competitors in the future.

Our Symantec Security Services competes with companies such as Counterpane, Internet Security
Services, Network Associates and Riptech.

Price competition is intense with most of our products and services. We expect price competition to
continue to increase and become even more signiÑcant in the future, which may reduce our proÑt margins.

We also face competition from a number of other products that oÅer levels of functionality diÅerent from
those oÅered by our products, or that were designed for a somewhat diÅerent group of end-users than those
targeted by us. Operating system vendors such as Microsoft have added security features to new versions of
their products that provide some of the same functions oÅered in our products. In addition, several other
operating systems are gaining market acceptance, such as Red Hat» Linux, Solaris and Unix-based operating
systems, and they may also incorporate some of the advanced utilities or other functionality oÅered in our
products. While we plan to continue to improve our products with a view toward providing enhanced
functionality over that provided in current and future operating systems, these eÅorts may be unsuccessful and
any improved products may not be commercially accepted by users. We will also continue to attempt to
cooperate with operating system vendors to make our products compatible with those operating systems, while
at the same time, diÅerentiating our utility products from features included in those operating systems. Our
eÅorts in this regard may be unsuccessful.
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The demand for some of our products, including those currently under development, may decrease if,
among other reasons:

‚ Microsoft includes additional product features in future releases of Windows;

‚ hardware vendors, including Cisco, incorporate additional server-based network management and
security tools into network operating systems; or

‚ competitors license certain of their products to Microsoft or original equipment manufacturers for
inclusion in their operating systems or products.

In addition, we compete with other computer software companies for access to retail distribution
channels and for the attention of customers at the retail level and in corporate accounts. We also compete with
other software companies to acquire products or companies and to publish software developed by third parties.

Many of our existing and potential competitors may have greater Ñnancial, marketing or technological
resources than we do. We believe that competition in the industry will continue to intensify as other major
software companies expand their product lines into additional product categories.

Manufacturing

Our product development groups produce a set of master CD-ROMs or diskettes and documentation for
each product that are then duplicated or replicated and packaged into products by our logistics organization.
Purchasing of all raw materials is done by Symantec personnel in our Cupertino, California and Dublin,
Ireland facilities for products manufactured in those countries. All of our domestic manufacturing and order
fulÑllment is performed by an outside contractor under the supervision of our domestic logistics organization.
These manufacturing steps that are subcontracted to outside organizations include the replication of CD-
ROMs, printing of documentation materials and retail boxes, and assembly of the Ñnal packages. For most
products distributed outside of North and South America, our Dublin, Ireland manufacturing facility performs
diskette duplication, assembly of the Ñnal packages, and order fulÑllment. Our Dublin, Ireland manufacturing
facility also subcontracts to outside organizations for the replication of CD-ROMs and printing of documenta-
tion materials and retail boxes.

Intellectual Property

We regard our software as proprietary. We attempt to protect our software technology by relying on a
combination of copyright, patent, trade secret and trademark laws, restrictions on disclosure and other
methods. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect trade secrets or
trademarks or to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Furthermore, other
parties have asserted and may, in the future, assert infringement claims against us. For further discussion on
our current litigation, see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K. These
claims and any litigation may result in invalidation of our proprietary rights. Litigation, even if not meritorious,
could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention.

Employees

As of March 31, 2002, we employed approximately 3,900 people worldwide, including approximately
2,100 in sales, marketing and related staÅ activities, 890 in product development, 150 in consulting services,
and 760 in management, manufacturing, administration and Ñnance. In connection with the relocation of our
Leiden, Netherlands operations to Dublin, Ireland in early Ñscal year 2003, a group of employees in the
Leiden facility have joined a union to negotiate the proposed terms of the transfer of operations to our Dublin
facility, focusing primarily on severance beneÑts for employees that do not relocate to Dublin. Except for these
employees in our Leiden facility, no other employees are represented by a labor union. We believe that
relations with our employees are good.
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Item 2. Properties

Our principal locations are as follows:

Approximate Expiration
Size of

Location Purpose (in square feet) Lease

North America

SpringÑeld, Oregon Customer service, technical 198,000 2007
support and administration

Cupertino, California
Emerging Business Administration and sales 161,000 2006

(City Center 1)

Corporate Headquarters Administration, sales and marketing 138,000 2006
(City Center 2)

Santa Monica, California Research and development, sales, 108,000 2007
marketing and administration

Newport News, Virginia Research and development, sales 89,000 2007
and administration

Beaverton, Oregon Research and development, sales, 81,000 2005
marketing and administration

Waltham, Massachusetts Research and development, sales, 50,000 2004
and technical support

Toronto, Canada Administration, sales and technical 41,000 2005
support

Rockville, Maryland Administration, sales and marketing 34,000 2004

American Fork, Utah Research and development, and sales 30,000 2008

San Antonio, Texas Research and development, marketing 27,000 2007
and managed security services

International

Dublin, Ireland Administration, manufacturing 108,000 Owned
and localization

Maidenhead, UK Sales and administration 54,000 Owned

Leiden, The Netherlands Administration, sales, marketing 36,000 2003
and technical support

Tokyo, Japan Administration, sales, marketing 34,000 2003
and technical support

Our principal administrative, sales and marketing facilities are located in Cupertino, California. We lease
a number of additional facilities for administrative, marketing, localization and technical support in the United
States, China, Ireland, Japan, the Netherlands, New Zealand and Taiwan; for administration, marketing and
technical support in Australia, Brazil, India, Malaysia, Singapore and South Korea; and for administration and
marketing in Austria, Belgium, Canada, Czech Republic, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Hong Kong,
Hungary, Israel, Italy, Mexico, Norway, Poland, Russia, South Africa, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey,
United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom.

We believe that our facilities are adequate for current needs and that additional or substitute space will be
available as needed to accommodate any future expansion of our operations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information with respect to this Item may be found in Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements of this Form 10-K, which information is incorporated into this Item 3 by reference.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders during the quarter ended March 31, 2002.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the Nasdaq symbol ""SYMC.'' The
high and low closing sales prices set forth below are as reported on the Nasdaq National Market. All closing
sales prices have been adjusted to reÖect the two-for-one stock dividend, which became eÅective January 31,
2002.

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30,

2002 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $42.40 $34.88 $25.17 $36.71 $26.34 $22.62 $31.84 $35.75

Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31.83 17.39 17.33 19.45 16.78 14.90 20.69 26.28

Delrina exchangeable stock has been traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol ""DE.TO''
since the acquisition of Delrina by Symantec on November 22, 1995. The high and low closing sales prices set
forth below are in Canadian dollars as reported on the Toronto Stock Exchange. Delrina exchangeable stock is
exchangeable at the option of the stockholders on a one-for-one basis into Symantec common stock until
November 2002, at which point the Delrina exchangeable shares will be required to be exchanged for
Symantec common stock and, accordingly, the Delrina exchangeable shares will cease to exist.

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30,

2002 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000

High ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $66.50 $55.25 $37.94 $54.25 $40.00 $33.50 $46.50 $52.50

Low ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 51.00 29.04 25.00 30.00 29.02 21.25 31.50 39.50

As of March 31, 2002, there were approximately 862 stockholders of record, including approximately 20
holders of record of Delrina exchangeable shares.

We have not paid cash dividends in the last two Ñscal years. We presently intend to retain future earnings,
if any, for use in our business, and therefore we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our capital
stock in the foreseeable future.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected Ñnancial data is qualiÑed in its entirety by and should be read in conjunction with
the more detailed consolidated Ñnancial statements and related notes included elsewhere herein.

During Ñscal 2002, we acquired Lindner & Pelc and Foster-Melliar. During Ñscal 2001, we acquired
AXENT. During Ñscal 2000, we acquired 20/20 Software, L-3 Network Security's operations and URLabs.
Each of these acquisitions was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, the operating results of these
businesses have been included in our consolidated Ñnancial statements since their respective dates of
acquisition.

On August 24, 2001, we divested our web access management product line. On December 31, 1999, we
divested our Visual Caf πe and ACT! product lines. These product lines are included in the results of operations
prior to disposition and are included in our Other segment.

Five-Year Summary

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

(In thousands, except net income (loss) per share)

Statements of Operations Data:

Net revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,071,438 $853,554 $745,725 $592,628 $532,940

Amortization of goodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 196,806 71,336 17,884 6,175 Ì

Acquired in-process research and
development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 22,300 4,300 27,465 Ì

Restructuring, site closures and other
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20,428 3,664 9,018 5,105 Ì

Litigation judgment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,055 Ì Ì 5,825 Ì

Operating incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,041 109,600 135,203 27,841 54,924

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (28,151) 63,936 170,148 50,201 85,089

Net income (loss) per share Ì basic ÏÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.49 $ 1.47 $ 0.44 $ 0.76

Net income (loss) per share Ì dilutedÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.47 $ 1.37 $ 0.42 $ 0.71

Shares used to compute net income
(loss) per share Ì basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 129,474 115,740 113,202 112,194

Shares used to compute net income
(loss) per share Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 136,474 124,428 118,578 120,562

March 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:

Working capitalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 983,721 $ 369,184 $319,020 $94,036 $175,537

Total assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,502,605 1,791,581 846,027 563,476 476,460

Convertible subordinated debentures ÏÏÏÏ 600,000 Ì Ì Ì Ì

Other long-term obligations, less current
portion ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,631 2,363 1,553 1,455 5,951

Stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,319,876 1,376,501 617,957 345,113 317,507
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements and Factors That May AÅect Future Results

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to be materially diÅerent from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among others things, those
risk factors set forth in this section and elsewhere in this report. We identify forward-looking statements by
words such as ""may,'' ""will,'' ""should,'' ""could,'' ""expects,'' ""plans,'' ""anticipates,'' ""believes,'' ""estimates,''
""predicts,'' ""potential,'' or ""continue'' or similar terms that refer to the future. We cannot guarantee future
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.

Overview

Symantec provides a broad range of content and network security software and appliance solutions to
enterprises, individuals and service providers. We are a leading provider of client, gateway and server security
solutions for virus protection, Ñrewall and virtual private network, vulnerability management, intrusion
detection, Internet content and e-mail Ñltering, remote management technologies and security services to
enterprises and service providers around the world. Founded in 1982, we have oÇces in 38 countries
worldwide.

We have a 52/53-week Ñscal accounting year. Accordingly, all references as of and for the periods ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 reÖect amounts as of and for the periods ended March 29, 2002, March 30,
2001 and March 31, 2000, respectively. The Ñscal accounting years ended March 29, 2002, March 30, 2001
and March 31, 2000 each comprised 52 weeks of operations.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue primarily from sales of packaged software products, perpetual software license
agreements, product maintenance and professional services, and recognize this revenue in accordance with
Statement of Position, or SOP, 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as modiÑed by SOP 98-9, and StaÅ
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, when the following conditions
have been met:

‚ persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

‚ passage of title occurs;

‚ delivery has occurred or services have been rendered;

‚ if applicable, customer acceptance has been received;

‚ collection of a Ñxed or determinable license fee is considered reasonably assured; and

‚ if appropriate, reasonable estimates of future product returns have been made.

We sell packaged products through a multi-tiered distribution channel. We defer revenue on all
distribution and reseller channel inventory in excess of speciÑed inventory levels in these channels. We oÅer
the right of return of our products under various policies and programs with our distributors, resellers and end-
user customers. We estimate and record reserves for end-user product returns and channel and end-user
rebates, and we account for these reserves as an oÅset to revenue.

We enter into perpetual software license agreements through direct sales to customers and indirect sales
with distributors and resellers. The license agreements generally include product maintenance agreements, for
which the related revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the period of the agreements.

Our professional services include consulting, education, and managed security services. We recognize
consulting services revenue as services are performed or upon written acceptance from customers, if
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applicable. We recognize education services revenue as services are performed. We recognize managed
security services revenue ratably over the period that such contracted services are provided.

In arrangements that include software licenses and maintenance and/or professional services, and
packaged products with content updates (""multiple elements''), we allocate and defer revenue for the
undelivered items based on vendor-speciÑc objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value of the undelivered
elements, and recognize the diÅerence between the total arrangement fee and the amount deferred for the
undelivered items as revenue. VSOE of each element is based on the price for which the undelivered element
is sold separately. If VSOE does not exist for undelivered items such as maintenance or professional services,
then the entire arrangement fee is recognized over the performance period.

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing our consolidated Ñnancial statements, we make estimates, assumptions and judgments that
can have a signiÑcant impact on our net revenue, operating income and net income (loss), as well as on the
value of certain assets on our consolidated balance sheet. We believe that the estimates, assumptions and
judgments involved in the accounting policies described below have the greatest potential impact on our
consolidated Ñnancial statements, so we consider these to be our critical accounting policies. See ""Summary
of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies'' beginning on page 50 in the consolidated Ñnancial statements for more
information about these critical accounting policies, as well as descriptions of other signiÑcant accounting
policies. We have engaged in discussions with our audit committee of the Board of Directors regarding the
development, selection and disclosure of our critical accounting policies.

Channel Revenue Deferrals

We defer revenue relating to products, primarily in our Consumer and Enterprise Administration
segments, that we have shipped into our distribution and reseller channels to the extent that such shipments
result in there being inventory in excess of certain speciÑed inventory levels for these channels. We defer this
revenue as an oÅset to accounts receivable. We estimate the excess of inventory levels in these channels by
analyzing channel inventory level and distribution sell-through trends obtained from our channel partners, as
well as various historical trends on a product basis. In addition, we consider other factors in assessing these
speciÑed inventory levels, such as product seasonality, current market conditions, economic trends, existing
security threats and timing of new product releases. On the same basis, we estimate the associated cost of
revenues related to the channel revenue deferral. If we made diÅerent judgments or utilized diÅerent
estimates, material diÅerences may result in the amount and timing of our net revenues and cost of revenues
for any period presented.

Reserves for Product Returns

End-users may return our products, primarily within our Enterprise Administration and Consumer
segments, through distributors and resellers or to us directly for a full refund within a reasonably short period
from the date of purchase. Our estimated reserves for such end-user product returns are based primarily on
historical trends. Product returns by distributors and resellers principally relate to stock balancing and the
replacement of obsolete products. Our return policy allows distributors and resellers, subject to certain
contractual limitations, to return purchased products in exchange for new products or for credit towards future
purchases. Channel revenue deferrals, as discussed above, are designed to take into account any distributor
and reseller stock balancing returns. In addition, we fully reserve for obsolete products in the distribution
channels. We also consider other factors such as the timing of upgrades and new versions of products, current
market conditions, economic trends and changes in technology. If we made diÅerent judgments or utilized
diÅerent estimates, material diÅerences may result in the amount and timing of our net revenues for any
period presented.
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Reserves for Rebates

We estimate and record reserves for channel and end-user rebates, related primarily to products within
our Enterprise Security, Enterprise Administration and Consumer segments. Our estimated reserves for
channel volume incentive rebates are based on distributors' and resellers' actual performance against the terms
and conditions of volume incentive rebate programs, which are typically entered into quarterly. Our reserves
for end-user rebates are estimated on the terms and conditions of the promotional program, actual sales during
the promotion, amount of actual redemptions received, historical redemption trends by product and by type of
promotional program and the value of the rebate. We also consider current market conditions and economic
trends when estimating our reserve for rebates. If we made diÅerent judgments or utilized diÅerent estimates,
material diÅerences may result in the amount and timing of our net revenues for any period presented.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for potential uncollectible trade receivables.
We review our trade receivables by aging category to identify speciÑc customers with known disputes or
collectibility issues. We exercise judgment when determining the adequacy of these reserves as we evaluate
historical bad debt trends, general economic conditions in the U.S. and internationally, and changes in
customer Ñnancial conditions. If we made diÅerent judgments or utilized diÅerent estimates, material
diÅerences may result in additional reserves for trade receivables, which would be reÖected by charges in
general and administrative expenses for any period presented.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, including property, equipment, leasehold improvements, acquired product
rights and goodwill, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the
undiscounted future net cash Öows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is
less than the assets carrying amount. Such impairment loss would be measured as the diÅerence between the
carrying amount of the asset and its fair value based on the present value of estimated future cash Öows.
SigniÑcant judgment is required in the forecasting of future operating results, which are used in the
preparation of projected cash Öows. If we made diÅerent judgments or utilized diÅerent estimates, material
diÅerences may result in write-downs of net long-lived assets, which would be reÖected by charges to our
operating results for any period presented.

EÅective April 1, 2002, impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets will be assessed according to
new accounting guidelines (see Recent Accounting Pronouncements below).

Restructuring and Site Closures

During Ñscal 2002, we incurred expenses related to consolidating, moving and relocating various groups or
sites. In determining the charge related to our excess facilities, certain estimates were used, such as potential
ability to sublease and sublease terms upon the negotiation of future subleases, broker commissions, costs of
tenant improvements and related exit costs. In developing our estimates, we obtained information from third
party leasing agents to calculate anticipated third party sublease income and the vacancy period prior to
Ñnding a sub-leasee. Market conditions will aÅect our ability to sublease facilities on terms consistent with our
estimates. Our ability to sublease facilities ahead of schedule or the negotiation of lease terms resulting in
higher or lower sublease income than estimated will aÅect our accrual and the related charge for restructuring,
site closures and other expenses. DiÅerence between estimates of related broker commissions, tenant
improvements and related exit costs may increase or decrease our accrual upon Ñnal negotiation. If we
employed diÅerent assumptions regarding these various components of our exit costs, the costs recorded for
any period presented could vary materially from those actually recorded.
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Deferred Income Taxes

On a quarterly basis we evaluate our deferred tax asset balance for realizability. To the extent we believe
it is more likely than not that some portion or all of our deferred tax assets will not be realized, we will
establish a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets. Realization of our deferred tax assets is
dependent upon future U.S. taxable income and future taxable income in certain foreign jurisdictions, as well
as our implementation of prudent and feasible tax planning strategies. Our judgments regarding future
proÑtability may change due to future market conditions, changes in U.S. or international tax laws and other
factors. These changes, if any, may require possible material adjustments to these deferred tax assets, resulting
in a reduction in net income or an increase in net loss in the period when such determinations are made.

Recent SigniÑcant Acquisitions and Divestitures

In August 2001, we divested our web access management product line, which we acquired in our
acquisition of AXENT, to PassGo Technologies Ltd. for approximately $1.1 million. We also entered into an
exclusive license and option agreement with PassGo whereby they will license our web access management
technology products. In consideration for the license, PassGo is required to pay us quarterly royalties based on
their net revenue over a four-year period. PassGo also has an option to purchase this technology at a price
starting at $18.8 million and declining to $3.3 million over a four-year period.

In December 2000, we acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of AXENT, an enterprise
security software company, in exchange for Symantec common stock. We also assumed all of the outstanding
AXENT employee stock options. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase and was initially recorded
for approximately $924.7 million, which included goodwill of $699.7 million, tangible and intangible assets of
$220.8 million, in-process research and development of $22.3 million, deferred compensation of $992,000,
oÅset by $19.1 million in deferred income taxes. During the December 2001 quarter, we recorded additional
deferred tax assets of $5.0 million attributable to carryforward tax beneÑts, with a corresponding oÅset to
goodwill. During the June 2001 quarter, we increased the purchase price and goodwill by $4.5 million, as we
resolved certain pre-acquisition contingencies.

EÅective April 1, 2002, the related net balance of goodwill and workforce-in-place for the AXENT
acquisitions and other acquisitions completed prior to July 1, 2001 will no longer be amortized, but will be
subject to an annual impairment test. See Recent Accounting Pronouncements. For further discussion on our
recent signiÑcant acquisitions and divestitures, see Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
of this Form 10-K.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth each item from our consolidated statements of operations as a percentage of
net revenues and the percentage change in the total amount of each item for the periods indicated. Please note
that these results reÖect our acquisition of AXENT commencing on December 18, 2000, the date of that
acquisition.

Period-to-Period
Percentage

Increase (Decrease)

2002 2001
Year Ended March 31, compared compared

2002 2001 2000 to 2001 to 2000

Net revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 100% 100% 100% 26% 14%

Cost of revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18 15 16 57 2

Gross marginÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 82 85 84 20 17

Operating expenses:

Research and development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15 15 15 29 17

Sales and marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 40 41 41 22 14

General and administrative ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5 5 6 20 6

Amortization of goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 19 8 2 176 299

Amortization of other intangibles from acquisitions ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì * *

Acquired in-process research and developmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 3 1 Ì 419

Restructuring, site closures and other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2 Ì 1 458 (59)

Litigation judgment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì * Ì

Total operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 81 72 66 40 27

Operating income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 13 18 (93) (19)

Interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3 4 2 (5) 148

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1) Ì Ì * *

Income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and
product lines ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 2 15 (24) (81)

Other income (expense), net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (3) Ì * *

Income before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4 16 35 (68) (45)

Provision for income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7 9 12 (4) (12)

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3)% 7% 23% (144) (62)

* Percentage change is not meaningful.

Net Revenues

Net revenues increased 26% to approximately $1.1 billion during Ñscal 2002 from $853.6 million during
Ñscal 2001. Net revenues increased 14% to approximately $853.6 million during Ñscal 2001 from $745.7 mil-
lion during Ñscal 2000. The increase during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001 was due primarily to
increased sales of our enterprise security products and a signiÑcant increase in sales of our consumer products
during the second half of Ñscal 2002. The increase in enterprise security products during Ñscal 2002 was
attributable to a full year of sales related to AXENT solutions as compared to approximately three months
during Ñscal 2001. From a regional standpoint, this increase was primarily due to growth in net revenues in the
United States and to a lesser extent in Europe.

The increase during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal 2000 was largely due to sales of our enterprise
security products, including introductions of new products and increased sales outside of the United States.
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The increase in enterprise security products during Ñscal 2001 was attributable to approximately three months
of sales related to AXENT solutions, as a result of our acquisition of AXENT in December 2000.

Segments

Enterprise Security

Our Enterprise Security segment revenue comprised approximately 42%, 33% and 22% of total net
revenues during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net revenues increased $172.1 million, or 61%, to
approximately $454.9 million during Ñscal 2002 from $282.8 million during Ñscal 2001 and increased $116.0
million, or 70%, to $282.8 million during Ñscal 2001 from $166.8 million during Ñscal 2000. The increase
during Ñscal 2002 over Ñscal 2001 was primarily due to our Ñrst full year of sales of intrusion detection,
vulnerability management and Ñrewall product solutions, as a result of our acquisition of AXENT in
December 2000, and in particular, signiÑcant growth in sales of virus protection product solutions.

Enterprise Administration

Our Enterprise Administration segment represented approximately 21%, 27% and 29% of total net
revenues during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net revenues decreased by approximately $8.1 mil-
lion, or 4%, during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001 due to a decline in sales of our pcAnywhere product,
partially oÅset by growth in sales of our Ghost Corporate Edition product. The decline in our pcAnywhere
product was the result of a decrease in small business and home oÇce sales, which was partially oÅset by an
increase in corporate sales.

Net revenues increased by approximately $13.9 million, or 6%, during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal
2000 primarily due to the release of our Ghost Corporate Edition product.

Consumer Products

Our Consumer Products segment represented approximately 35%, 39% and 43% of total net revenues
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net revenues increased by approximately $45.8 million, or
14%, during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001. This increase was primarily related to an increase in sales
of our Norton AntiVirus and Norton Internet Security products, mostly as a result of strong consumer and
small business spending, and an increase in the renewal subscription pricing of our antivirus products. This
increase was oÅset by a decline in sales of our Winfax and Macintosh products. In particular, we experienced a
signiÑcant increase in sales of consumer products over the second half of Ñscal 2002, and we do not expect
sales to continue to grow at the same rate going forward. Over the last six years, our sales to individual
consumers, home oÇces and small businesses have been seasonal, with higher sales generally in our December
and March quarters.

Net revenues increased by approximately $11.3 million, or 4%, during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal
2000. This increase was primarily due to the increase in customer focus on protecting their home computers
from Internet related attacks. This factor contributed to growth in sales of our Norton Internet Security
product, which was introduced in the March 2000 quarter.

Services and Other

Our Services and Other segments represented approximately 2%, 1% and 6% of total net revenues during
Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Net revenues increased in absolute dollars during Ñscal 2002 as
compared to Ñscal 2001, due primarily to our services segment as the demand for our consulting services
increased. Net revenues decreased in absolute dollars during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal 2000, due to our
divestiture of the Visual Caf πe and ACT! product lines in December 1999, which is included in the Other
segment.
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International

Net revenues outside of the United States represented approximately 47%, 48% and 45% of total net
revenues during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. International net revenues increased by $91.6 mil-
lion, or 22%, to approximately $504.6 million during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001. This increase in
net revenues was the result of increased sales in Europe and Asia, primarily from increased sales of our
enterprise security and consumer products. International revenues increased by $77.3 million, or 23%, to
approximately $413.0 million during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal 2000. This increase was largely due to
stronger sales in Europe and Japan.

Weakness in international currencies during Ñscal 2002 negatively impacted our international revenue
growth by approximately $14.0 million as compared to the impact of average international currency rates
during Ñscal 2001. The negative impact during Ñscal 2001 as compared to the impact of average international
currency rates during Ñscal 2000 was approximately $43.8 million.

Product Returns

We estimate and record channel deferrals and obsolescence reserves to cover exposures related to product
returns. Product returns principally relate to stock balancing and the replacement of obsolete products, which
are oÅset by orders of equal or greater value for the current versions of the products. The mix of products
returned from our distributors/resellers as compared to products sold to our distributors/resellers does not
impact our gross margin, as our gross margin is materially consistent across our various product families.
Changes in the level of product returns and related product returns provision are generally oÅset by a change
in the level of gross revenue. As a result, the product returns provision did not have a material impact on
reported net revenues in any period presented.

Gross Margin

Gross margin represents net revenues less cost of revenues. Cost of revenues consists primarily of
manufacturing expenses, costs for producing manuals and CDs, packaging costs, royalties paid to third parties
under publishing contracts, costs of consulting services, technical support costs and amortization and write-oÅ
of acquired product rights.

Gross margin was approximately 82%, 85% and 84% of net revenues during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decline in gross margin during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001 was mostly driven by
increased amortization of acquired product rights from our acquisition of AXENT and technical support costs
as a result of an increase in related enterprise sales. In addition, consulting service costs included in costs of
revenue increased along with the related increase in consulting service revenues. This contributed to the
decline in gross margin during Ñscal 2002, as consulting services typically have lower margins than our
products.

Gross margin improved slightly during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal 2000 due primarily to higher
margins associated with the increase in enterprise related sales and cost savings achieved in reduced packaging
costs.

Acquired Product Rights

Acquired product rights are comprised of purchased product rights, technologies and workforce-in-place.
During Ñscal 2001, we recorded approximately $86.2 million in acquired product rights in connection with our
acquisition of AXENT, and during Ñscal 2000, we recorded approximately $11.3 million in acquired product
rights in connection with other acquisitions.

During Ñscal 2002, amortization of acquired product rights totaled approximately $32.2 million, of which
$31.1 million and $1.1 million was recorded in cost of revenues and income (net of expense) from sale of
technologies and product lines, respectively. During Ñscal 2001 and 2000, amortization of acquired product
rights totaled $17.3 million and $9.7 million, respectively, and was recorded in cost of revenues. Acquired
product rights, with the exception of workforce-in-place, will be amortized over the next four years. EÅective
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April 1, 2002, the net balance of workforce-in-place of approximately $3.9 million, net of a deferred tax
liability, will be included with goodwill and will no longer be amortized but will be subject to an annual
impairment test.

For further discussion on acquired product rights and related amortization, see Notes 3 and 4 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Research and Development Expenses

We charge research and development expenditures to operations as incurred. As a percentage of net
revenues, research and development expenses remained Öat at 15% during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Although research and development expenses remained Öat as a percentage of net revenues, absolute
dollars increased 29% to approximately $164.0 million during Ñscal 2002 from $126.7 million during Ñscal
2001. The increase was primarily a result of salary increases and other employee related expenses,
infrastructure related expenditures and a full year of AXENT related research and development expenses as
compared to approximately three months during Ñscal 2001.

Research and development expenses increased 17% to approximately $126.7 million during Ñscal 2001
from $108.4 million during Ñscal 2000. The increase was a result of Enterprise Security segment hiring, salary
increases and other employee related expenses and AXENT related research and development expenses that
were included from the date of acquisition. This increase was partially oÅset by the lack of expenses during
Ñscal 2001 associated with the divested Visual Caf πe and ACT! product lines and the patent claim settlements
in the Consumer Products segment.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of net revenues were 40% during Ñscal 2002 and were Öat
at 41% during Ñscal 2001 and 2000. Sales and marketing expenses were approximately $428.5 million,
$350.0 million and $306.8 million during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The absolute dollar increase
in sales and marketing expenses during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001 was primarily related to
Enterprise Security segment hiring, salary and commission increases, outside services for consultants and
contractors, infrastructure related expenditures, and a full year of AXENT related sales and marketing
expenses as compared to approximately three months during Ñscal 2001.

The absolute dollar increase in sales and marketing expenses during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal
2000 was also due to increased Enterprise Security segment hiring, increase in salaries, commissions and other
performance based compensation, and AXENT related sales and marketing expenses which were included
from the date of acquisition.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenues remained Öat at 5% during Ñscal
2002 and 2001 and were 6% during Ñscal 2000.

General and administrative expenses were approximately $53.9 million, $44.8 million and $42.2 million
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The absolute dollar increase in general and administrative
expenses during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001 was primarily due to a full year of AXENT related
general and administrative expenses as compared to approximately three months during Ñscal 2001, salary
increases, legal fees, infrastructure related expenditures and bad debt expense, oÅset by a reduction of other
general and administrative expenses.

General and administrative expenses in absolute dollars increased during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal
2000, primarily due to an increase in salary related expenses and other general and administrative expenses,
oÅset by a reduction in bad debt expenses.
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Amortization of Goodwill and Other Intangibles from Acquisitions

Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles from acquisitions increased 176% to approximately
$196.8 million during Ñscal 2002 from $71.3 million during Ñscal 2001, and increased 299% to approximately
$71.3 million during Ñscal 2001 from $17.9 million during Ñscal 2000. These increases were related primarily
to the amortization of goodwill and other intangibles associated with the acquisition of AXENT in December
2000.

EÅective April 1, 2002, the net balance of goodwill of approximately $521.9 million will no longer be
amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment test. As a result, amortization charges will decrease
signiÑcantly going forward; however, our operating results may be subject to increased volatility as a result of
periodic goodwill impairment charges. Other intangibles from acquisitions will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives.

Acquired In-Process Research and Development Expenses

We recorded no acquired in-process research and development charges during Ñscal 2002. During Ñscal
2001, we acquired AXENT and during Ñscal 2000, we acquired URLabs and L-3 Network Security's
operations. We wrote oÅ approximately $22.3 million and $4.3 million of acquired in-process research and
development associated with these acquisitions during Ñscal 2001 and 2000, respectively. These write-oÅs
were necessary because the acquired technologies had not yet reached technological feasibility and there were
no alternative uses.

The eÅorts required to develop the acquired in-process technology principally related to the completion of
all planning, design, development and testing activities that are necessary to establish that the product or
service can be produced to meet its design speciÑcations including features, functions and performance. We
expect the acquired in-process technology to be developed into commercially feasible products. However,
there are no assurances that this will occur. If we fail to complete these products in their entirety, or in a
timely manner, we may not continue to attract new users, we may be unable to retain our existing users and
the value of the other intangible assets may become impaired.

We determined the fair value of the acquired in-process technology for each of the purchases by
estimating the projected cash Öows related to these projects, including the cost to complete the acquired in-
process technologies and future revenues to be earned upon commercialization of the products. We discounted
the resulting cash Öows back to their net present values. We based the net cash Öows from such projects on our
analysis of the respective markets and estimates of revenues and operating proÑts related to these projects.

A valuation specialist used our estimates to establish the amount of acquired in-process research and
development to be written oÅ for these acquisitions during Ñscal 2001 and 2000. Actual spending on these
product development projects since our acquisition of the companies discussed below did not diÅer materially
from the original assumptions and projections discussed in prior Ñlings.

AXENT

The in-process technology acquired in the AXENT acquisition consisted primarily of research and
development related to the next generation of ESM, Intruder Alert, Raptor Firewall, Webthority and other
projects. AXENT's research and development was focused on providing more robust features in its
development of these next generation products. We have added these projects to our product oÅerings, with
the exception of Webthority, which was divested with our web access management product line in
August 2001.

L-3 Network Security

The in-process technology acquired in the L-3 Network Security purchase consisted primarily of research
and development related to the next generation of Retriever and Expert. We have integrated this technology
into our vulnerability management products.
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URLabs

The in-process technology acquired in the URLabs purchase consisted primarily of research and
development related to the next generation of URLabs' two main products, I-Gear and Mail-Gear, which
have been added to our product oÅerings.

Restructuring, Site Closures and Other Expenses

Restructuring, site closures and other expenses were approximately $20.4 million, $3.7 million and
$9.0 million during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. During Ñscal 2002, we incurred expenses related
to consolidating smaller sites into a larger facility in Newport News, Virginia, consolidating most of our United
Kingdom facilities to Maidenhead, UK, consolidating our European support functions by moving our Leiden,
Netherlands facility to Dublin, Ireland and relocating our North American support group to SpringÑeld,
Oregon. As a result, we recorded approximately $17.8 million for exit costs, including $12.8 million in rent and
related exit costs remaining on the abandoned facilities and $5.0 million in related abandoned Ñxed asset and
leasehold improvement write-oÅs. In addition, we recorded approximately $2.6 million for costs of severance,
related beneÑts and outplacement services, as we reorganized various operating functions, including former
AXENT operations, and reduced our workforce by 87 employees. During the June 2002 quarter, we will
record costs of severance, related beneÑts and outplacement services, as a result of the relocation of our
Leiden, Netherlands operations to Dublin, Ireland.

During Ñscal 2001, we reorganized various operating functions, including a portion of our operations in
Toronto. We reduced our workforce by 60 employees and ten members of our senior management, and as a
result, we recorded approximately $3.7 million for costs of severance, related beneÑts, outplacement services
and abandonment of certain equipment.

During Ñscal 2000, we reduced our operations and realigned our business units, including operations in
Melville and Toronto and our Internet Tools business unit. We reduced our workforce by 154 employees and
Ñve members of our senior management, and as a result, we recorded approximately $9.7 million for
severance, related beneÑts, outplacement services and abandonment of certain facilities and equipment.

For further discussion on restructuring, site closures and other expenses, see Note 13 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Litigation Judgment

During the March 2002 quarter, we accrued litigation expenses of approximately $3.1 million for post-
judgment interest and other costs related to a judgment by a Canadian court on a decade-old copyright action
assumed by us as a result of our acquisition of Delrina Corporation. For further discussion on our current
litigation, see Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K.

Interest Income, Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense)

Interest income was approximately $31.7 million, $33.3 million and $13.4 million during Ñscal 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Although interest income was relatively Öat during Ñscal 2002 and Ñscal 2001, average
cash balances were higher during Ñscal 2002 as compared to Ñscal 2001, which was oÅset by a decrease in
average interest rates. Interest income increased signiÑcantly during Ñscal 2001 as compared to Ñscal 2000 due
to higher average cash balances during Ñscal 2001.

Interest expense was approximately $9.2 million during Ñscal 2002, nearly all of which was related to the
issuance of $600.0 million of 3% convertible subordinated debentures in October 2001. Interest expense was
not signiÑcant during Ñscal 2001 and 2000.

Other expense, net of approximately $627,000 during Ñscal 2002 was primarily comprised of net losses
from non-functional currency transactions. Other expense, net was approximately $22.5 million during Ñscal
2001 and consisted primarily of impairment charges on our equity investments. Other income, net was
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approximately $1.3 million during Ñscal 2000 and was primarily comprised of net gains from non-functional
currency transactions.

Income, Net of Expense, from Sale of Technologies and Product Lines

Income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines was approximately $15.5 million,
$20.4 million, and $107.4 million during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. During Ñscal 2002 and 2001,
income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines was related primarily to royalties from
Interact Commerce Corporation, who subsequently merged with The Sage Group plc, as a result of the
divestiture of our ACT! product line in December 1999.

Income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines during Ñscal 2000 related primarily to
gains of $68.5 million and $18.3 million on the divestiture of our Visual Caf πe and ACT! product lines,
respectively, in December 1999. In addition, income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product
lines during Ñscal 2000 included $14.7 million related to payments from JetForm Corporation, associated with
our sale of certain software products, technologies and tangible assets to JetForm during Ñscal 1997, and
$5.0 million related to royalties from Interact.

Income Taxes

Our eÅective tax rate on income before one-time charges (acquired in-process research and development,
restructuring, site closures and other expenses), goodwill amortization expense and gain on sale of product
lines was 32% during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000. Our Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 eÅective rates were lower
than the U.S. federal and state combined statutory rate primarily due to a lower statutory tax rate on income
generated by our Irish operations.

Our eÅective tax rate on income before taxes was 162%, 55% and 34% during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The higher eÅective tax rate during Ñscal 2002 and 2001 reÖects the non-deductibility of acquired
in-process research and development and substantially all of the goodwill amortization. In addition, during
Ñscal 2000, tax was provided on the gain on sale of product lines at an eÅective tax rate of 34%. This rate is
lower than the U.S. federal and state combined statutory rate because a portion of the gain is attributable to
our Irish operations and accordingly subject to a lower Irish tax rate.

Realization of approximately $46.0 million of our net deferred tax asset as of March 31, 2002 is
dependent primarily upon future U.S. taxable income of $131.0 million. Realization of the remaining
$12.0 million of our net deferred tax asset as of March 31, 2002 is dependent in part on future taxable income
in certain foreign jurisdictions and on our implementation of tax planning strategies. We believe it is more
likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized based on historical earnings and expected levels
of future taxable income as well as the implementation of tax planning strategies.

Levels of future taxable income are subject to the various risks and uncertainties discussed in the
Business Risk Factors set forth in this Item 7. Additional valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets
may be necessary if it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the net deferred tax assets will not be
realized. We will assess the need for additional valuation allowance on a quarterly basis.

We project our eÅective tax rate to be 32% for Ñscal 2003 as a result of the discontinuation of goodwill
amortization (see Recent Accounting Pronouncements for further discussion). This projection, however, is
subject to change due to potential tax law changes and Öuctuations in the geographic allocation of earnings.

Selected Pro Forma Financial Data

For comparative purposes, the following table displays, on a pro forma basis, our results of operations as if
the acquisition of AXENT had occurred at the beginning of Ñscal 2000 and excluding all acquisition related
amortization and one-time charges and the operating results of the divested Visual Caf πe and ACT! product
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lines. These measures are not in accordance with, or an alternative for, generally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP, and may be diÅerent from pro forma measures used by other companies.

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data;
unaudited)

Pro forma net revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,071,438 $944,150 $826,587

Pro forma net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 200,713 $184,234 $142,523

Pro forma net income per share Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1.30 $ 1.17 $ 0.94

Shares used to compute pro forma net income per share Ì diluted ÏÏ 158,777 157,084 151,990

The following items represent the diÅerence between the pro forma Ñnancial data and the related GAAP
Ñnancial data in the Consolidated Statements of Operations:

‚ During Ñscal 2001 and 2000, pro forma net revenues include AXENT net revenues of approximately
$90.6 million and $80.9 million, respectively, as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
Ñscal 2000.

‚ During Ñscal 2002, the pro forma net income excludes all acquisition related amortization and one-
time charges of approximately $249.7 million (tax beneÑt of $20.8 million). During Ñscal 2001, the pro
forma net income includes AXENT's net loss of approximately $6.2 million and excludes all
acquisition related amortization and one-time charges of $139.3 million (tax beneÑt of $12.8 million).
During Ñscal 2000, the pro forma net income includes AXENT's net income of approximately
$5.0 million and excludes all acquisition related amortization and one-time charges of $40.9 million
(tax beneÑt of $10.0 million) and the operating results of the divested Visual Caf πe and ACT! product
lines of $63.5 million.

‚ During Ñscal 2002, shares used to compute pro forma net income per share (diluted) include
approximately 7.6 million shares issuable from assumed exercise of options and 7.6 million shares
issuable upon conversion of the 3% convertible subordinated debentures issued in October 2001.
Correspondingly, the numerator used to compute pro forma net income (diluted) during Ñscal 2002
excludes the interest expense of approximately $6.2 million from the 3% convertible subordinated
debentures, net of income tax. During Ñscal 2001 and 2000, shares used to compute pro forma net
income per share (diluted) include approximately 20.6 million and 27.6 million shares, respectively,
which represents the number of Symantec shares that would have been exchanged for AXENT's
weighted number of common shares outstanding for the respective periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity is our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments. Cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments increased $818.0 million to approximately $1.4 billion at the end of
Ñscal 2002 from $557.0 million at the end of Ñscal 2001. This increase was largely due to the net proceeds
from the issuance of convertible subordinated debentures of approximately $584.6 million and from cash
provided from operations of $511.2 million, as well as net proceeds from the exercise of stock options and sales
of common stock through our employee stock purchase plan. The cash provided by these factors was partially
oÅset by cash paid to purchase marketable securities and investments, net of proceeds, of approximately
$721.7 million, and to a lesser extent cash paid to repurchase common stock and capital expenditures.

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $511.2 million and was comprised of net
non-cash related expenses of $293.2 million and a net increase of $246.2 million in liabilities, net of a decrease
in assets, oÅset by a net loss of approximately $28.2 million.

Net trade accounts receivable decreased $27.5 million to approximately $89.2 million as of March 31,
2002 from $116.7 million as of March 31, 2001. The decrease in accounts receivable was primarily due to net
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revenues being generated more evenly throughout the March 2002 quarter due primarily to the increase in
sales of consumer products, which resulted in higher cash collections. In prior quarters, we had generated a
larger percentage of net revenues during the last month of each quarter.

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $869.3 million and was comprised primarily of
$721.7 million in net purchases of marketable securities and investments, and $140.9 million of capital
expenditures, including $62.0 million for the implementation of Oracle 11i and a CRM system and $25 million
in January 2002 and $18 million in November 2001 for land and a building in Maidenhead, United Kingdom
and Dublin, Ireland, respectively.

On January 16, 2001, the Board of Directors replaced an earlier stock repurchase program with a new
authorization to repurchase up to $700.0 million, not to exceed 30.0 million shares, of Symantec's common
stock with no expiration date. During the September 2001 quarter, we repurchased 9.6 million shares at prices
ranging from $17.78 to $24.50 per share, for an aggregate amount of approximately $204.4 million. During the
March 2001 quarter, we repurchased 10.0 million shares at prices ranging from $23.04 to $25.58 per share, for
an aggregate amount of approximately $244.4 million.

On October 24, 2001, we completed a private oÅering of $600.0 million of 3% convertible subordinated
debentures due November 1, 2006, the net proceeds of which were approximately $584.6 million. The
debentures are convertible into shares of Symantec's common stock by the holders at any time before maturity
at a conversion price of $34.14 per share, subject to certain adjustments. We may redeem the notes on or after
November 5, 2004, at a redemption price of 100.75% of stated principal during the period November 5, 2004
through October 31, 2005 and 100% thereafter. Interest will be paid semi-annually, commencing May 1, 2002.
We intend to use the net proceeds of the oÅering for general corporate purposes, including working capital,
potential acquisitions, stock repurchases and investments in our infrastructure.

The following table displays our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2002:

Payments Due InTotal
Payments Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2008

Due Fiscal 2003 and 2005 and 2007 and Thereafter

(In thousands)

Convertible subordinated debenturesÏÏÏÏÏ $600,000 $ Ì $ Ì $600,000 $ Ì

Operating leasesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 86,070 26,901 34,687 16,335 8,147

Total contractual obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $686,070 $26,901 $34,687 $616,335 $8,147

The above table assumes that the convertible subordinated debentures will be paid in cash upon maturity
and excludes the balance of our current liabilities.

We believe that existing cash and short-term investments, cash generated from operating results and cash
from the subordinated convertible debenture oÅering will be suÇcient to fund operations for at least the next
year.

Synthetic Leases

We currently have two real estate leasing arrangements that we have classiÑed as operating leases.

One of the lease arrangements is for two existing oÇce buildings in Cupertino, California. Lease
payments for these facilities are based on the three-month LIBOR in eÅect at the beginning of each Ñscal
quarter plus a speciÑed margin. We have the right to acquire the related properties at any time during the
seven-year lease period ending February 1, 2006. If, at the end of the lease term we do not renew the lease,
purchase the properties or arrange for a third party to purchase the properties, we may be obligated to the
lessor for all or some portion of an amount up to the guaranteed residual amount of approximately
$66.0 million, representing approximately 84% of the lessor's purchase price of the property.

On March 30, 2001, we entered into a master lease agreement for land and the construction of two oÇce
buildings, one in Newport News, Virginia, eÅective June 6, 2001, and another in SpringÑeld, Oregon, eÅective
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April 6, 2001. Our lease payments will vary based on one-, three- or six-month LIBOR plus a speciÑed
margin. We have the right to acquire the related properties at any time during the six and one-half year lease
period ending September 28, 2007. We moved into the Oregon facility immediately after the end of the
December 2001 quarter and into the Virginia facility in April 2002. If, at the end of the lease term we do not
renew the lease, purchase the properties or arrange for a third party to purchase the properties, we may be
obligated to the lessor for all or some portion of an amount up to the guaranteed residual amount representing
approximately 85% of the lessor's ultimate purchase price of the properties, up to a maximum amount of
approximately $55.1 million as of March 31, 2002.

As security for each of these arrangements, we are required to maintain a cash collateral balance, which
was approximately $124.3 million as of March 31, 2002. We are required to invest the cash collateral in U.S.
Treasury securities or certiÑcates of deposit with speciÑed lenders and maturities not to exceed two to three
years. In accordance with the lease terms, these funds are not available to meet operating cash requirements.
As of March 31, 2002, the investments related to the California lease totaled approximately $77.4 million and
the investments related to the Oregon and Virginia leases totaled $46.9 million. These amounts were classiÑed
as non-current restricted investments within the consolidated Ñnancial statements.

In addition, we are obligated to maintain certain Ñnancial covenants including a minimum cash balance,
tangible net worth and quarterly earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, and
maximum debt and senior debt to EBITDA ratios. Future acquisitions, Ñnancing activities or operating losses
may cause us to be in violation of these Ñnancial covenants. In the event of default, we may be required to
release the cash collateral and take possession of the buildings. As of March 31, 2002, we were in compliance
with all of the above Ñnancial covenants.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. 141, Business
Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets
deemed to have indeÑnite lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment test.
Other intangibles will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. We will adopt SFAS No. 142 in our
Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, we will stop the amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets deemed to have indeÑnite lives with a net carrying value of approximately $525.9 million, net
of a deferred tax liability, as of March 31, 2002. As a result of the discontinuance of the amortization of
goodwill existing as of March 31, 2002 and excluding the impact of potential impairment charges, the
application of SFAS No. 142 is expected to result in an increase in our results of operations of approximately
$198.4 million during Ñscal 2003. During the Ñrst six months of Ñscal 2003, we will perform the Ñrst of the
required impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indeÑnite lives as of April 1, 2002,
using the two-step process required under SFAS 142. We have not yet determined what eÅect these tests will
have on our earnings and Ñnancial position.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets. SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for the impairment
and disposal of long-lived assets. We will adopt this statement on April 1, 2002. Adoption of this statement is
not expected to have a material impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

The lessors associated with lease agreements relating to certain of our facilities, described under Synthetic
Leases above, are special purpose entities or equivalent structures. Presently, we account for these leases as
operating leases, while the special purpose entities or equivalent structures own and account for the leased
assets and related liabilities in their records. The FASB has indicated that it will, prior to June 30, 2002, issue
proposed new rules on accounting for ""Entities That Lack SuÇcient Independent Economic Substance'',
including special purpose entities, in the form of an Interpretation to SFAS No. 94, Consolidation of All
Majority-Owned Subsidiaries, and Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Based on public comments from the FASB to date, the proposed interpretation will provide guidance for
determining when an entity (such as us), the Primary BeneÑciary, should consolidate another entity, a special
purpose entity or equivalent structure (such as the lessor), that functions to support the activities of the
Primary BeneÑciary. The expected proposed Interpretation may result in us having to consolidate the
operating results of the special purpose entities and equivalent structures, which are the lessors under the
aforementioned operating lease agreements. The eÅective date of these proposed new rules on our current
operating leases could be as early as the beginning of our Ñscal year 2004, and sooner on any new leases
entered into after the new rules' eÅective date which utilize special purpose entities or equivalent structures.

Business Risk Factors

There is uncertainty as to whether or not we will be able to sustain the growth rates in sales of our
products, particularly in consumer antivirus protection products. During the second half of Ñscal 2002, we
experienced a higher than expected rate of growth in sales of our consumer antivirus protection products, and
we may not be able to sustain this high growth rate on a consistent basis going forward. We believe that
consumer antivirus sales were spurred by a number of factors, including outbreaks of the well-publicized Code
Red and Nimda viruses and a reaction from the September 11 terrorist attacks. In addition, although the
release of new operating systems incorporating security and virus protection features, particularly past releases
of Microsoft Windows, have increased competition in our market and had a harmful eÅect on demand, the
recent release of Windows XP may have actually spurred additional sales. These positive factors are likely to
weaken over time, and it is possible that growth rates in sales of antivirus protection products may decline.
These factors may have also had a short-term eÅect on growth in enterprise security products, and we note
that sales of our enterprise security products decreased from the third to the fourth quarter of Ñscal 2002. If
sales of these products decline faster than expected, our stock price may be harmed.

We have grown, and may continue to grow, through acquisitions, which give rise to a number of risks that
could have adverse consequences for our future operating results. We have made six acquisitions since
March 1999, with our acquisition of AXENT Technologies, Inc. in December 2000 being the largest.
Although we cannot assure you that we will be successful in completing them, we will likely pursue future
acquisitions. Integrating acquired businesses has been and will continue to be a complex, time consuming and
expensive process. To integrate acquired businesses, we must implement our technology systems in the
acquired operations and assimilate and manage the personnel of the acquired operations. Our past acquisitions
have given rise to substantial amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets that have been amortized or
written oÅ in subsequent years. Future acquisitions may result in substantial amounts of goodwill that will be
subject to an annual impairment test and other intangible assets that will be amortized, subject to an annual
impairment test or written oÅ. In addition, a number of our acquisitions have resulted in substantial
restructuring and other related expenses and write-oÅs of acquired in-process research and development costs,
and this also may occur as a result of future acquisitions. Further, we may need to issue equity or incur
additional debt to Ñnance future acquisitions, which could be dilutive to our existing stockholders or could
increase our leverage. Any of these and other factors could harm our ability to achieve anticipated levels of
proÑtability from acquired operations or to realize other anticipated beneÑts of an acquisition. Further, the
diÇculties of integrating acquired businesses could disrupt our ongoing business, distract our management
focus from other opportunities and challenges, and increase our expenses and working capital requirements.

Demand for our products is subject to seasonal trends. Although there is no assurance this trend will
continue, our sales of consumer products over the last six years have been seasonal, with higher sales generally
in our December and March quarters. In addition, we anticipate that sales of enterprise security products may
be higher in the March quarter in the future, as our sales force attempts to close transactions before the end of
our Ñscal year. To the extent seasonality makes it more diÇcult to predict our revenues and value our business,
our stock price may suÅer and the volatility of our stock may increase.

Our increased sales of enterprise-wide site licenses may increase Öuctuations in our Ñnancial results.
Sales of enterprise-wide site licenses through our Enterprise Security segment have been increasing and now
represent a major portion of our business. This enterprise market has signiÑcantly diÅerent characteristics than
the consumer market and diÅerent skills and resources are needed to penetrate this market. As our enterprise
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segment becomes more important to our business and our product strategy continues to develop, we may face
new competitors or new levels of competition. Enterprise licensing arrangements involve a longer sales cycle
than sales through other distribution channels, require greater investment of resources in establishing the
enterprise relationship and can sometimes result in lower operating margins. The timing of the execution of
volume licenses, or their nonrenewal or renegotiation by large customers, could cause our results of operations
to vary signiÑcantly from quarter to quarter and could have a material adverse impact on our results of
operations.

Economic and political conditions and conditions aÅecting the network security market in particular may
have a negative impact on our revenues and margins. The market for our products depends on economic
conditions aÅecting the broader network security, Internet infrastructure and related markets. More generally,
the slowdown in the U.S. economy may hurt consumer demand for our services. On the enterprise side, the
continued slowdown in corporate earnings and tightening of corporate budgets may cause potential customers
to delay or cancel security projects, reduce their overall or security-speciÑc information technology budgets, or
reduce or cancel orders for our products. Further, in this environment, customers may experience Ñnancial
diÇculty, cease operations or fail to budget for the purchase of our products. This, in turn, may lead to longer
sales cycles, delays in payment and collection, and price pressures, causing us to realize lower revenues and
margins. In addition, the terrorist acts of September 11, 2001 created an uncertain economic and political
environment in many parts of the world, and we cannot predict the impact of these events, or of any related
military action, on our customers or business.

Piracy of our software may have a signiÑcant impact on our net revenues. While we are unable to
determine the exact extent of piracy of our software products, software piracy may depress our net revenues.
While this would adversely aÅect domestic revenue, revenue loss is believed to be even more signiÑcant
outside of the United States, particularly in countries where laws are less protective of intellectual property
rights. We engage in eÅorts to educate consumers on the beneÑts of licensing genuine products and to educate
lawmakers on the advantages of a business climate where intellectual property rights are protected and we
cooperate with the Business Software Alliance in their eÅorts to combat piracy. However, such continued
eÅorts may not be successful in preventing piracy of our products from occurring.

We are in the process of making substantial changes to our information systems that could disrupt our
business. The information systems that supported our accounting, Ñnance, order management and manufac-
turing systems were based on Oracle 10.7, and many of the business applications used in other aspects of our
business have been tightly coupled with Oracle 10.7. Oracle has released a new version, 11i, and has
announced that support for Oracle 10.7 will be discontinued after June 2002. In addition, as our business has
grown, we have developed needs for an increasingly robust customer relationship management, or CRM,
system. During Ñscal 2002, we began implementing Oracle 11i and a new CRM system. Oracle 11i
implementation occurred in the December 2001 quarter for the United States operations and should be
completed by the June 2002 quarter for the Europe, Middle East and Africa operations. The Ñrst two phases
of the CRM implementation occurred in June 2001 and February 2002, with the remaining implementation
phases scheduled for the Ñrst and third quarters of Ñscal 2003. These types of transitions frequently prove
disruptive to the underlying business of an enterprise and may cause us to incur higher costs than we
anticipate. Failure to manage a smooth transition to the new systems and the ongoing operations and support
of the new systems could materially harm our business operations.
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Our markets are competitive and our operating results and Ñnancial condition could be adversely aÅected
if we are unable to anticipate or react to this competition. Our markets are competitive. If we are unable to
anticipate or react to this competition, our operating results could be adversely aÅected by reducing our sales
or the prices we can charge for our products. In the recent past, many of our competitors have signiÑcantly
lowered the price of their products and we may have to do the same to remain competitive. Our ability to
remain competitive depends, in part, on our ability to enhance our products or develop new products that are
compatible with new hardware and operating systems. We have no control over, and limited insight into,
development eÅorts by third parties with respect to new hardware and operating systems and we may not
respond eÅectively or timely to such changes in the market. In addition, we have limited resources and we
must make strategic decisions as to the best allocation of our resources to position ourselves for changes in our
markets. We may from time to time allocate resources to projects or markets that do not develop as rapidly or
fully as we expect. We may fail to allocate resources to third party products, to markets or to business models
that are more successful than we anticipate.

Our software products and web site may be subject to intentional disruption. Although we believe we
have suÇcient controls in place to prevent intentional disruptions, such as software viruses speciÑcally
designed to impede the performance of our products, we expect to be an ongoing target of such disruptions.
Similarly, experienced computer programmers, or hackers, may attempt to penetrate our network security or
the security of our web site and misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions of our services.
Our activities could be substantially disrupted and our reputation, and future sales, harmed if these eÅorts are
successful.

We face risks associated with our foreign operations. A signiÑcant portion of our net revenues,
manufacturing costs and operating expenses result from transactions outside of the United States, often in
foreign currencies. As a result, our future operating results could be negatively aÅected by Öuctuations in
currency exchange rates and general uncertainty with each country's political and economic structure. In
addition, governmental regulation of imports or exports or our failure to obtain any required export approval of
our technologies, particularly our encryption technologies, could impede our international sales. In light of
recent terrorist activity, governments could enact additional regulation or restrictions on the use, import or
export of encryption technologies. Additional regulation of encryption technology could delay or prevent the
acceptance and use of encryption products and public networks for secure communications. This might
decrease demand for our products and services.

Introduction of new operating systems may adversely aÅect our Ñnancial results and stock price. The
inclusion of security, remote access or virus protection tools in new operating systems and hardware packages
could adversely aÅect our sales. For example, the inclusion of features by Microsoft in future editions of
Windows which directly compete with our products may decrease or delay the demand for certain of our
products, including those currently under development. Additionally, as hardware vendors incorporate
additional server-based network management and security tools into network operating systems, the demand
may decrease for some of our products, including those currently under development.

Our earnings and stock price are subject to signiÑcant Öuctuations. Due to many factors, including those
noted in this section, our earnings and stock price have been and may continue to be subject to signiÑcant
volatility. There have been previous quarters in which we have experienced shortfalls in revenue and earnings
from levels expected by securities analysts and investors, which have had an immediate and signiÑcant adverse
eÅect on the trading price of our common stock. This may occur again in the future. Any such volatility may
make it more diÇcult for us to raise capital in the future or pursue acquisitions that involve issuances of our
common stock or securities convertible or exercisable into our common stock.
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Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results have aÅected our stock price in the past and could aÅect
our stock price in the future. If our quarterly operating results fail to meet the expectations of analysts and
investors, the trading price of shares of our common stock and of the debentures could be negatively aÅected.
Our quarterly operating results have varied substantially in the past and may vary substantially in the future
depending upon a number of factors, including:

‚ the timing of announcements and releases of new or enhanced versions of our products and product
upgrades;

‚ the introduction of competitive products;

‚ uncertainty about and customer conÑdence in the current economic conditions and outlook;

‚ reduced demand for any given product;

‚ seasonality in the end-of-period buying patterns of foreign and domestic software customers; and

‚ the market's transition between new releases of operating systems.

In addition to the foregoing factors, the risk of quarterly Öuctuations is increased by the fact that a
signiÑcant portion of our net revenues has historically been generated during the last month of each Ñscal
quarter. Most resellers tend to make a majority of their purchases at the end of a Ñscal quarter. In addition,
many enterprise customers negotiate site licenses near the end of each quarter. In part, this is because these
two groups are able, or believe that they are able, to negotiate lower prices and more favorable terms at that
time. Our reliance on a large portion of revenue occurring at the end of the quarter and the increase in the
dollar value of transactions that occur at the end of a quarter can result in increased uncertainty relating to
quarterly revenues. Due to this end-of-period buying pattern, forecasts may not be achieved, either because
expected sales do not occur or because they occur at lower prices or on terms that are less favorable to us. In
addition, these factors increase the chances that our results could diverge from the expectations of investors
and analysts.

We must eÅectively adapt to changes in the dynamic technological environment. We are increasingly
focused on the Internet security market, which, in turn is dependent on further acceptance and increased use
of the Internet. The following critical issues concerning the use of the Internet remain unresolved and may
aÅect the market for our products and the use of the Internet as a medium to distribute or support our
software products and the functionality of some of our products:

‚ security;

‚ reliability;

‚ cost;

‚ ease of use;

‚ accessibility;

‚ quality of service; and

‚ potential tax or other government regulations.

In addition, new technologies, such as non PC-based Internet access devices and handheld organizers are
gaining acceptance. We must adapt to these changing technological demands. If we are unable to timely
assimilate changes brought about by the Internet and non PC-based environments, our future net revenues
and operating results could be adversely aÅected.

The results of our research and development eÅorts are uncertain. We will need to incur signiÑcant
research and development expenditures in future periods as we strive to remain competitive. The length of our
product development cycle has generally been greater than we originally expected and we are likely to
experience delays in future product development. In addition, a portion of our development eÅorts have not
been technologically successful and certain products have not achieved market acceptance. As a result, the
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products we are currently developing or may develop in the future may not be technologically successful,
achieve market acceptance or compete eÅectively with products of our competitors.

We are dependent upon certain distribution channels. A large portion of our sales is made through the
retail distribution channel, which is subject to events that cause unpredictability in consumer demand. This
increases the risk that we may not plan eÅectively for the future, which could result in adverse operating
results in future periods. Our retail distribution customers also carry our competitors' products. These retail
distributors may have limited capital to invest in inventory. Their decisions to purchase our products are partly
a function of pricing, terms and special promotions oÅered by our competitors and other factors that we do not
control and cannot predict. Our agreements with retail distributors are generally nonexclusive and may be
terminated by them or by us without cause. We would be adversely aÅected if companies in our chain of
distributors chose to increase purchases from our competition relative to the amount they purchase from us.

Some distributors and resellers have experienced Ñnancial diÇculties in the past. Distributors that
account for a signiÑcant portion of our sales may experience Ñnancial diÇculties in the future. If these
distributors do experience Ñnancial diÇculties and we are unable to move their inventories to other
distributors, we may experience reduced sales or increased write-oÅs, which would adversely aÅect our
operating results.

Product returns may negatively aÅect our net revenues. Product returns can occur when we introduce
upgrades and new versions of products or when distributors or retailers have excess inventories, subject to
various contractual limitations. Our return policy allows distributors, subject to these contractual limitations,
to return purchased products in exchange for new products or for credit towards future purchases. End-users
may return our products through dealers and distributors or to us directly for a full refund within a reasonably
short period from the date of purchase. Future returns could exceed the reserves we have established for
product returns, which could have a material adverse eÅect on our operating results.

We depend on internal communications systems that may be disrupted. Our order management and
product shipping centers are geographically dispersed. A business disruption could occur as a result of natural
disasters or the interruption in service by communications carriers. If our communications between these
centers are disrupted, particularly at the end of a Ñscal quarter, we may suÅer an unexpected shortfall in net
revenues and a resulting adverse impact on our operating results. Communications and Internet connectivity
disruptions may also cause delays in customer access to our Internet-based services or product sales.

We are subject to litigation that could adversely aÅect our Ñnancial results. From time to time, we may
be subject to claims that we have infringed the intellectual property rights of others, or other product liability
claims, or other claims incidental to our business. We are currently involved in a number of lawsuits. We
intend to defend all of these lawsuits vigorously. However, it is possible that we could suÅer an unfavorable
outcome in one or more of these cases. Depending on the amount and timing of any unfavorable resolutions of
these lawsuits, our future results of operations or cash Öows could be materially adversely aÅected in a
particular period.

Although infringement claims may ultimately prove to be without merit, they are expensive to defend and
may consume our resources or divert our attention from day-to-day operations. If a third party alleges that we
have infringed their intellectual property rights, we may choose to litigate the claim and/or seek an
appropriate license from the third party. If we engage in litigation and the third party is found to have a valid
patent claim against us and a license is not available on reasonable terms, our business, operating results and
Ñnancial condition may be materially adversely aÅected.

The trend toward consolidation in the software industry could impede our ability to compete eÅectively.
Consolidation is underway among companies in the software industry as Ñrms seek to oÅer more extensive
suites of software products and broader arrays of software solutions. Changes resulting from this consolidation
may negatively impact our competitive condition. In addition, to the extent that we seek to expand our product
lines and skills and capacity through acquisitions, the trend toward consolidation may result in our
encountering competition, and paying higher prices, for acquired businesses.
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We must attract and retain personnel in a competitive marketplace. We believe that our future success
will depend in part on our ability to recruit and retain highly skilled management, marketing and technical
personnel. To accomplish this, we believe that we must provide personnel with a competitive compensation
package, including stock options. Increases in shares available for issuance under our stock options plans
require stockholder approval in many cases, and institutional stockholders, or stockholders generally, may not
approve future increases. Additionally, there are several proposals in the Congress and in the accounting
industry to require corporations to include a compensation expense in their statement of operations relating to
the issuance of employee stock options. If such a measure is approved, we may decide to issue fewer stock
options. As a result, we may be impaired in our eÅorts to attract and retain necessary personnel.

Our intellectual property and proprietary rights may not be adequately protected from all unauthorized
uses. We regard our software and underlying technology as proprietary. We seek to protect our proprietary
rights through a combination of conÑdentiality agreements and copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret
laws. Third parties may copy aspects of our products or otherwise obtain and use our proprietary information
without authorization or develop similar technology independently. All of our products are protected by
copyright laws, and we have a number of patents and patent applications pending. We may not achieve the
desired protection from, and third parties may design around, our patents. In addition, existing copyright laws
aÅord limited practical protection. Furthermore, the laws of some foreign countries do not oÅer the same level
of protection of our proprietary rights as the laws of the United States, and we may be subject to unauthorized
use of our products. Any legal action that we may bring to protect proprietary information could be expensive
and may distract management from day-to-day operations.

Our products are complex and are operated in a wide variety of computer conÑgurations, which could
result in errors or product failures. Because we oÅer very complex products, undetected errors, failures or
bugs may occur when they are Ñrst introduced or when new versions are released. Our products often are
installed and used in large-scale computing environments with diÅerent operating systems, system manage-
ment software and equipment and networking conÑgurations, which may cause errors or failures in our
products or may expose undetected errors, failures or bugs in our products. In the past, we have discovered
software errors, failures and bugs in certain of our product oÅerings after their introduction and have
experienced delays or lost revenues during the period required to correct these errors. Our customers'
computer environments are often characterized by a wide variety of standard and non-standard conÑgurations
that make pre-release testing for programming or compatibility errors very diÇcult and time-consuming.
Despite testing by us and by others, errors, failures or bugs may not be found in new products or releases after
commencement of commercial shipments. Errors, failures or bugs in products released by us could result in
negative publicity, product returns, loss of or delay in market acceptance of our products or claims by
customers or others. In addition, if an actual or perceived breach of network security occurs in one of our end
customer's security systems, regardless of whether the breach is attributable to our products, the market
perception of the eÅectiveness of our products could be harmed. Because the techniques used by computer
hackers to access or sabotage networks change frequently and generally are not recognized until launched
against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques. Alleviating any of these problems could
require signiÑcant expenditures of our capital and resources and could cause interruptions, delays or cessation
of our product licensing, which could cause us to lose existing or potential customers and would adversely
aÅect results of operations.

Most of our license agreements with customers contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to
potential product liability claims. It is possible, however, that these provisions may not prove eÅective in
limiting our liability.

Increased utilization and costs of our technical support services may adversely aÅect our Ñnancial results.
Like many companies in the software industry, technical support costs comprise a signiÑcant portion of our
operating costs and expenses. Over the short term, we may be unable to respond to Öuctuations in customer
demand for support services, including periods of high customer usage in which delays may be experienced.
We also may be unable to modify the format of our support services to compete with changes in support
services provided by competitors. Further, customer demand for these services could cause increases in the
costs of providing such services and adversely aÅect our operating results.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We do not undertake any speciÑc actions to cover our exposure to interest rate risk and we are not a party
to any interest rate risk management transactions. We do not purchase or hold any derivative Ñnancial
instruments for trading purposes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

As of March 31, 2002, the fair market value of our Ñnancial instruments with exposure to interest risk was
approximately USD 1.2 billion, Euro 388.0 million, and CAD 12.5 million. Sensitivity analysis for a six-month
horizon was performed on our Öoating rate and Ñxed rate Ñnancial investments and Öoating rate liabilities.
Parallel shifts in the yield curve of both °/-50 basis points would result in changes in fair market values for
these investments and Öoating rate liabilities of less than USD 1.0 million, less than Euro 1.0 million and less
than CAD 1.0 million.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

We conduct business in 30 international currencies through our worldwide operations. We have
established a foreign exchange risk management program, utilizing forward exchange contracts with one
Ñscal-month duration to oÅset various non-functional currency exposures. Under this program, increases or
decreases in the value of our non-functional currency assets and liabilities are oÅset by gains and losses on the
forward exchange contracts to mitigate the risk associated with foreign exchange market Öuctuations. We do
not use forward exchange contracts for trading purposes. At the end of each Ñscal month, all non-functional
currency assets and liabilities are revalued using the spot rate of the maturing forward exchange contracts and
the realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in net income (loss) as a component of other income
(expense).

We believe that the use of forward exchange contracts should reduce the risks that arise from conducting
business in international markets. We employ established policies and procedures governing the use of
Ñnancial instruments to manage our exposure to such risks. However, signiÑcant changes in exchange rates
may still result in adverse eÅects on our operating results.

We use sensitivity analyses to quantify the impact that market risk exposures may have on the fair market
values of our Ñnancial instruments. The Ñnancial instruments included in the sensitivity analyses consist of all
of our foreign currency assets and liabilities and all derivative instruments, principally forward exchange
contracts. The sensitivity analyses assesses the risk of loss in fair market values from the impact of
hypothetical changes of instantaneous, parallel shifts in exchange rates and interest rates yield curves on
market sensitive instruments over a six-month horizon.

As of March 31, 2002, the notional amount of our forward contracts was approximately USD
239.6 million. A 10% appreciation or devaluation in foreign currencies would result in a decrease in the fair
value of our forward exchange contracts by approximately USD 12.5 million and an increase in the fair value
of our forward exchange contracts by USD 11.0 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2002, the fair value of our investments in marketable securities denominated in foreign
currencies was approximately USD 345.4 million. A 10% appreciation or devaluation would result in an
increase in the fair value of our investments by approximately USD 37.1 million and a decrease in the fair
value of our investments by USD 32.8 million, respectively.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Annual Financial Statements

See Part IV, Item 14 of this Form 10-K.

Selected Quarterly Data

We have a 52/53-week Ñscal accounting year. Accordingly, we have presented quarterly Ñscal periods
comprised of 13 weeks as follows:

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001

Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30, Mar. 31, Dec. 31, Sep. 30, Jun. 30,

2002 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000

(In thousands, except net income (loss) per share; unaudited)

Net revenues ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $310,783 $290,247 $242,372 $228,036 $250,606 $219,294 $192,296 $191,358

Gross margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 254,754 237,682 198,477 185,915 212,129 188,356 165,688 163,521

Amortization of goodwill ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 48,997 49,413 49,416 48,980 48,994 11,965 5,202 5,175

Acquired in-process research and
development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 22,300 Ì Ì

Restructuring, site closures and
other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,005 9,377 Ì 2,046 2,382 1,282 Ì Ì

Income, net of expense, from sale
of technologies and product lines 2,257 4,387 4,642 4,250 4,250 5,000 5,284 5,914

Net income (loss)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,779 100 (11,812) (21,218) (27,448) 13,874 39,113 38,397

Net income (loss) per share Ì

basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.03 $ 0.00 $ (0.08) $ (0.14) $ (0.18) $ 0.11 $ 0.32 $ 0.32

dilutedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.03 $ 0.00 $ (0.08) $ (0.14) $ (0.18) $ 0.11 $ 0.31 $ 0.30

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive OÇcers of the Registrant

Information with respect to this Item may be found in the section captioned ""Directors and Manage-
ment Ì Directors and Executive OÇcers'' appearing in the deÑnitive Proxy Statement that we will deliver to
stockholders in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on September 12, 2002. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information with respect to this Item may be found in the section captioned ""Directors and Manage-
ment Ì Compensation of Executive OÇcers'' appearing in the deÑnitive Proxy Statement to be delivered to
stockholders in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on September 12, 2002. Such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information with respect to this Item may be found in the sections captioned ""Directors and Manage-
ment Ì Security Ownership of Certain BeneÑcial Owners and Management'' appearing in the deÑnitive
Proxy Statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held on September 12, 2002. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plans

A summary of our stockholder approved and non-approved equity compensation plans as of March 31,
2002 was as follows (in thousands, except exercise price):

Number of Securities Number of Securities
to be Issued Weighted Average Remaining Available for

Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Issuance Under Equity
Plan Category Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Compensation Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders* ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24,528 $23.03 11,611

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,514 $21.87 4,046

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,042 $22.88 15,657

* Our 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan contains an ""evergreen'' provision whereby the number of shares
available for issuance increases automatically on January 1 of each year (beginning in 2000) by 1% of our
outstanding shares of common stock on each immediately preceding December 31 during the term of the
plan, provided that the aggregate number of shares issued over the term of the plan does not exceed
16 million shares.

The total number of shares to be issued upon exercise does not include approximately 742,000
outstanding options as of March 31, 2002 that were assumed as part of various acquisitions. The weighted
average exercise price of these outstanding options was $18.52 as of March 31, 2002. In connection with these
acquisitions, we have only assumed outstanding options and rights, but not the plans themselves, and
therefore, no further options may be granted under these acquired-company plans.

Our non-stockholder approved equity compensation plans include the following:

‚ 2001 Non-QualiÑed Equity Incentive Plan

‚ Options assumed in connection with our acquisition of AXENT

‚ 1999 Acquisition Plan

‚ Non-qualiÑed stock option and restricted shares granted to John Thompson, CEO of Symantec

‚ 1994 Patent Incentive Plan
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The following is a description of the material features of each of these plans:

2001 Non-QualiÑed Equity Incentive Plan

Number of Shares Subject to the Plan.

A total of 6.0 million shares of common stock are authorized and reserved for issuance under the plan. If
an outstanding stock option or award terminates or is forfeited before the option is exercised or the shares
subject to the award are issued, or if shares granted under the plan but subject to a right of repurchase by us
are forfeited or repurchased by us, those shares will again be available for grant and issuance under the plan.
As of March 31, 2002, approximately 2.7 million options were outstanding under this plan.

Eligibility for Participation.

Options may be granted to employees, oÇcers, directors, consultants, independent contractors and
advisors to us, or of any parent, subsidiary or aÇliate of Symantec as the board of directors or the
compensation committee may determine. Our employees who are not oÇcers, directors or other persons
subject to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 must receive at least 50% of all shares that are
available for grant under the plan. A person may be granted more than one award under the plan.

Terms of Options.

Our compensation committee determines many of the terms and conditions of each option granted under
the plan, including the number of shares for which the option will be granted, the exercise price of the option
and the periods during which the option may be exercised. Each option is evidenced by a stock option
agreement in such form as the committee approves and is subject to the following conditions (as described in
further detail in the plan itself):

‚ Vesting and Exercisability: Options and restricted shares become vested and exercisable, as applica-
ble, within such periods, or upon such events, as determined by the compensation committee in its
discretion and as set forth in the related stock option or restricted stock agreement. To date, as a matter
of practice, options under the plan have generally been subject to a four-year vesting period. Options
terminate ten years or less from the date of grant.

‚ Exercise Price: The exercise price, of each option granted, may not be less than 100% of the fair
market value of the shares of common stock on the date of the grant.

‚ Tax Status: All options granted under the plan are non-qualiÑed stock options.

‚ Method of Exercise: The option exercise price is typically payable in cash or by check, but may also
be payable, at the discretion of the committee, in a number of other forms of consideration, including
cancellation of indebtedness, fully paid shares of Symantec common stock, delivery of a promissory
note, waiver of compensation due or accrued to an optionee for services rendered, through a ""same day
sale,'' through a ""margin commitment,'' or any combination of the foregoing.

‚ Termination of Employment: Options granted under the plan generally expire three months after the
termination of the optionee's service to us or a parent or subsidiary of Symantec, except in the case of
death or disability, in which case the options generally may be exercised up to 12 months following the
date of death or termination of service. However, if the optionee is terminated for cause (i.e. for
committing an alleged criminal act or intentional tort against us), that optionee's options expire upon
termination. Options cease vesting on the date of death or termination of service.

‚ Stock Splits and Similar Events: The number of shares subject to any award, the exercise price, and
the number of shares issuable under the plan, are subject to proportionate adjustment in the event of a
stock dividend, recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, subdivision, combination, reclassiÑca-
tion or similar change relating to our capital structure without consideration.
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‚ Corporate Transactions: In the event of a dissolution or liquidation, or in the event that we enter into
a transaction in which we are acquired by merger, sells substantially all of its assets, or other similar
transaction speciÑed in the plan, then all outstanding awards may be assumed, converted or replaced by
the successor corporation, or the successor corporation may substitute equivalent awards or provide
substantially similar consideration to participants as was provided to stockholders. In the event a
successor corporation fails to assume or substitute options issued under the plan in a change of control
transaction, all options will expire upon a change in control. Additionally, options may be issued under
the plan in connection with an acquisition in order to substitute or assume options issued by another
company.

Term and Amendment of the Plan.

The term of the plan is ten years, commencing on the date the plan was adopted in January 2001, and
ending in January 2011. The plan may be amended or terminated without stockholder approval.

Options assumed in connection with our acquisition of AXENT

In December 2000, as a result of our acquisition of AXENT, we assumed all outstanding AXENT stock
options. Each AXENT stock option assumed by us is exercisable for one share of Symantec common stock for
each one share of AXENT common stock that was previously subject to the option, at the same exercise price.
Each option is otherwise subject to the same terms and conditions as the original grant and generally vests
over four years and expires ten years from the date of grant. No further options may be granted under the
AXENT plans. As of March 31, 2002, approximately 741,000 options were outstanding.

1999 Acquisition Plan

The purpose of this plan was to issue stock options in connection with our acquisition of URLabs in
September 1999.

Number of Shares Subject to the Plan.

A total of 1.0 million shares of common stock are authorized and reserved for issuance under the plan. As
of March 31, 2002, approximately 417,000 options were outstanding under this plan.

Eligibility for Participation.

Employees, oÇcers, consultants, independent contractors and advisors to us, or of any subsidiary or
aÇliate of Symantec, are eligible to receive stock options under this plan. Options awarded to oÇcers may not
exceed in the aggregate 30% percent of all shares that are available for grant under the plan.

Terms of Options.

Many of the terms of the options are determined by the compensation committee, and are otherwise
generally the same in all material respects as the terms described above with respect to our 2001 Non-
QualiÑed Equity Incentive Plan, except that the 1999 Acquisition Plan does not contain a provision that
provides for the expiration of employees' options upon a termination for cause.

Term and Amendment of the Plan.

The term of the plan is ten years, commencing on the date the plan was adopted in July 1999, and ending
in July 2009. The plan may be amended or terminated without stockholder approval.

Non-QualiÑed Stock Option and Restricted Shares Granted to John Thompson, CEO of Symantec

In accordance with the employment agreement dated April 11, 1999 between Mr. Thompson and us, the
board of directors approved the issuance of a non-qualiÑed stock option to acquire 400,000 shares of common
stock to Mr. Thompson. The option exercise price is 100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. The
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shares subject to the option vest monthly as to 1/12 of the shares beginning in April 2003 and the option has a
term life of ten years. In addition, in April 1999, we entered into a restricted stock purchase agreement with
Mr. Thompson pursuant to which he purchased 200,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase
price of $1,000. These shares were granted subject to a company right of repurchase which lapsed as to 50% of
the shares in April 2000 and as to the remaining shares in April 2001.

1994 Patent Incentive Plan

The purpose of this plan is to increase awareness of the importance of patents to our business and to
provide employees with incentives to pursue patent protection for new technologies that may be valuable to us.

Number of Shares Subject to the Plan.

A total of 800,000 shares of common stock are authorized and reserved for issuance under this plan. As of
March 31, 2002, a total of approximately 58,000 shares had been issued under this plan. The plan only
provides for the issuance of shares of common stock, not stock options.

Eligibility for Participation.

All employees other than executive oÇcers and directors are eligible to receive awards under the plan. No
employee is eligible to receive more than 100,000 shares of common stock at any time during the term of the
plan.

Terms of Stock Awards.

Stock awards may be paid in the form of cash, shares or a combination of the two, based on the fair
market value of the shares on the date of payment. The 1994 plan does not provide for the issuance of awards
in connection with acquisitions of other companies by us.

Term and Amendment of the Plan.

The term of the plan is ten years, commencing on the date the plan was adopted in January 1995, and
ending in January 2005. The plan may be amended or terminated without stockholder approval.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information with respect to this Item may be found in the section captioned ""Certain Transactions''
appearing in the deÑnitive Proxy Statement to be delivered to stockholders in connection with the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be held on September 12, 2002. Such information is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

Upon written request, we will provide, without charge, a copy of our annual report on Form 10-K,
including the consolidated Ñnancial statements, Ñnancial statement schedules and any exhibits for our most
recent Ñscal year. All requests should be sent to:

Helyn Corcos
Investor Relations
Symantec Corporation
20330 Stevens Creek Boulevard
Cupertino, California 95014
408-517-8324

(a) The following documents are Ñled as part of this report:

Page
Number

1. Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 50

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2002 and 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 51

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended March 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended March 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 53

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended March 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54

Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 55

2. Financial Statement Schedules. The following Ñnancial statement schedule of Symantec Corpora-
tion for the years ended March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is Ñled as part of this Form 10-K and should
be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Symantec Corporation.

Schedule

II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 87

Schedules other than that listed above have been omitted since they are either not
required, not applicable or the information is otherwise included.

3. Exhibits. The following exhibits are Ñled as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this
Form 10-K:

Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

2.01 The AXENT Merger Agreement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-4 333-46264 2.01 09/20/00

3.01 The Registrant's Restated CertiÑcate of
Incorporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ * 000-17781 Annex G 10/17/95

3.02 The Registrant's Bylaws, as amended and
restated eÅective August 11, 1998ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8-K 3.1 08/19/98

4.01 Registration Rights Agreement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-4 33-35385 4.02 06/13/90
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

4.02 Amendment No. One to Registration Rights
Agreement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 4.03 04/02/93

4.03 Amendment No. Two to Registration
Rights Agreement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 4.04 04/02/93

4.04 Plan of Arrangement and Exchangeable
Share Provisions related to the acquisition
of Delrina ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ * Annex D 10/17/95

4.05 Support Agreement, dated November 22,
1995, between Symantec and Delrina ÏÏÏÏÏÏ * Annex E 10/17/95

4.06 Form of Voting and Exchange Trust
Agreement, dated November 22, 1995,
between Symantec and Delrina ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ * Annex F 10/17/95

4.07 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 12,
1998, between Symantec Corporation and
BankBoston, N.A., as Rights Agent, which
includes as Exhibit A the Form of
CertiÑcate of Designations of Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock, as
Exhibit B the Form of Right CertiÑcate and
as Exhibit C the Summary of Rights to
Purchase Preferred Shares ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8-A 4.1 08/19/98

4.08 Form of Note for Registrant's 3%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due
November 1, 2006ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-3 333-77072 4.08 01/22/02

4.09 Indenture between the Registrant, as Issuer,
and State Street Bank and Trust Company
of California, N.A., as Trustee, dated
October 24, 2001 related to the Registrant's
3% Convertible Subordinated Notes due
November 1, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-3 333-77072 4.09 01/22/02

4.10 Registration Rights Agreement between the
Registrant and Credit Suisse First Boston
Corporation dated October 24, 2001 related
to the Registrant's 3% Convertible
Subordinated Notes due November 1, 2006 S-3 333-77072 4.10 01/22/02

10.01 Form of Indemnity Agreement with OÇcers
and Directors and Amendment No. 1ÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-1 33-28655 10.17 05/19/89

06/21/89

10.02 Amended Agreement Respecting Certain
Rights of PublicityÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-4 33-35385 10.04 06/13/90

10.03** Symantec Corporation Section 401(k) Plan,
Summary Plan Description, amended as of
August 1, 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.04** Form of Stock Option Agreement and Form
of Stock Option Exercise Request, as
currently in eÅect, under the Registrant's
1988 Employees Stock Option Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-4 33-35385 10.10 06/13/90
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10.05** 1988 Employees Stock Option Plan, as
amended to date ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 33-88694 4.02 01/23/95

10.06** 1993 Directors Stock Option Plan, as
amended ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.07 09/30/94

10.07** 1994 Patent Incentive Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 33-60141 4.01 06/09/95

10.08** 1996 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended
September 12, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.09** Symantec Corporation Deferred
Compensation Plan, dated as of
November 7, 1996ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.11 06/24/97

10.10** Symantec Corporation 1998 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-52200 99.2 12/19/00

10.11** Symantec Corporation Acquisition Plan,
dated July 15, 1999ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-31526 4.03 03/02/00

10.12** Symantec Corporation 2000 Directors
Equity Incentive Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-47648 99.1 10/10/00

10.13** Symantec Corporation 2001 Non-QualiÑed
Equity Incentive Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-56874 99.1 03/12/01

10.14** Symantec Corporation 1999 Acquisition
Plan Stock Option Agreement with
Acceleration by and between Symantec
Corporation and Gary P. Warren ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.01 08/11/00

10.15** Supplemental Option Vesting and Severance
Arrangement terms and conditions between
the Company and Greg MyersÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.63 07/01/99

10.16** Employment Agreement between Symantec
Corporation and John W. Thompson ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.67 07/01/99

10.17** Symantec Corporation Restricted Stock
Purchase Agreement with John W.
Thompson, dated April 14, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-31632 4.03 03/03/00

10.18** Symantec Corporation Stock Option Grant
to John W. Thompson, dated
April 14, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-8 333-31540 4.03 03/03/00

10.19** Employment oÅer by and between
Symantec Corporation and Gail Hamilton ÏÏ 10-Q 10.03 08/11/00

10.20** OÅer Letter between Symantec Corporation
and John Schwarz, dated December 20,
2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.02 02/07/02

10.21** Termination agreement by and between
Symantec Corporation and Dana E. Siebert 10-Q 10.01 08/08/01

10.22** Symantec Executive Severance PlanÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.93 06/22/01

10.23** FY2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
President and CEO Plan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.24** FY2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Chief Operating OÇcer ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.03 02/07/02
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10.25** FY2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Vice President Plan-grades 15, 16 & 20
(with Division/Business Unit Objectives) ÏÏ X

10.26** FY2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Vice President Plan-grades 15, 16 & 20
(No Division/Business Unit Objectives) ÏÏÏ X

10.27** FY2002 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Vice President Plan-grade 18ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.28** FY2002 Executive 6-month Incentive
Plan Ì President and CEO PlanÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.29** FY2002 Executive 6-month Incentive
Plan Ì Chief Operating OÇcerÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.30** FY2002 Executive 6-month Incentive
Plan Ì Vice President Plan-grades 15, 16,
18 & 20ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.31** FY03 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Chief Executive OÇcer ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.32** FY03 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
President and Chief Operating OÇcer ÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.33** FY03 Executive Annual Incentive Plan Ì
Vice President Plan-grades 15, 16,
18 & 20ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

10.34** Promissory Note issued by Mansour Safai
in favor of Symantec Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.52 07/01/99

10.35** Promissory Note issued by John W.
Thompson in favor of Symantec
Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.54 07/01/99

10.36 Amended and Restated Participation
Agreement, dated as of February 9, 1999 by
and among Symantec Corporation,
Sumitomo Bank Leasing and Financing,
Inc, The Bank of Nova Scotia, the other
Various Financial Institutions IdentiÑed
Herein and the Sumitomo Bank, Limited,
Los Angeles Branch ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.15 07/01/99

10.37 Amendment #2 to the Amended and
Restated Participation Agreement, Master
Lease and Deed of Trust, and Appendix A,
dated as of February 2, 2000, by and among
Symantec Corporation, Sumitomo Bank
Leasing and Financing, Inc, The Bank of
Nova Scotia, the other Various Financial
Institutions IdentiÑed Herein and the
Sumitomo Bank, Limited, Los Angeles
Branch ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.18 06/26/00
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10.38 Third Amendment to Amended and
Restated Participant Agreement, dated as of
December 28, 2001, by and among
Symantec Corporation, SMBC Leasing and
Finance, Inc., other Institutions IdentiÑed
Herein, The Bank of Nova Scotia, and
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation ÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.05 02/07/02

10.39 Restated and Amended Appendix A to
Participation Agreement, Master Lease,
Lease Supplements Loan Agreements,
Pledge Agreement, Lessor Mortgages, and
GuarantyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.17 07/01/99

10.40 Amended and Restated Master Lease and
Deed of Trust, dated as of February 9,
1999, between Symantec Corporation and
Sumitomo Bank Leasing and Finance, Inc 10-K 10.19 07/01/99

10.41 Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated as
of February 9, 1999, made by Symantec
Corporation in favor of Various Financial
Institutions IdentiÑed Herein and The
Sumitomo Bank, Limited, San Francisco
Branch ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.21 07/01/99

10.42 Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement,
dated as of February 2, 1999, made by
Symantec Corporation and Delrina
Corporation, in favor of Sumitomo Bank,
Limited, Los Angeles Branch for the beneÑt
of the Lenders, and Donaldson, Lufkin,
Jenrette Securities Corporations, as
collateral agentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.24 07/01/99

10.43 Amended and Restated Assignment of
Lease and Rent, dated as of February 9,
1999, from Sumitomo Bank Leasing and
Finance, Inc., The Sumitomo Bank,
Limited, San Francisco Branch ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.26 07/01/99

10.44 Amended and Restated Loan Agreement,
dated as of February 9, 1999, among
Sumitomo Bank Leasing and Finance, Inc.,
Various Financial Institution IdentiÑed
Herein, The Bank of Nova Scotia and The
Sumitomo Bank, Limited, Los Angeles
Branch ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.37 07/01/99

10.45 Limited Waiver and Amendment, dated
September 30, 1999, by and among
Symantec Corporation, Sumitomo Bank
Lease and Finance, Inc., The Bank of Nova
Scotia, and The Sumitomo Bank, LimitedÏÏ 10-Q 10.03 11/15/99
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10.46 Participation Agreement, dated as of
March 30, 2001, by and among Symantec
Corporation, The Symantec 2001 Trust,
Wilmington Trust Company, the Holders
and Lenders (as deÑned in the Participation
Agreement), Fuji Bank, Limited, KeyBank
National Association, and The Bank of
Nova Scotia ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.94 06/22/01

10.47 Second Amendment to Participation
Agreement, dated as of December 28, 2001,
by and among Symantec Corporation, The
Symantec 2001 Trust, the Holders and
Lenders (as deÑned in the Participation
Agreement), and The Bank of Nova Scotia 10-Q 10.04 02/07/02

10.48 Annex A to Participation Agreement ÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.95 06/22/01

10.49 First Amendment to Annex A to
Participation Agreement, dated as of
June 6, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.96 06/22/01

10.50 Master Lease Agreement, dated as of
March 30, 2001, between The Symantec
2001 Trust and Symantec Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.97 06/22/01

10.51 Lease Supplement No. 1, dated as of
April 6, 2001, between The Symantec 2001
Trust and Symantec CorporationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.98 06/22/01

10.52 Lease Supplement No. 2, dated as of
June 6, 2001, between The Symantec 2001
Trust and Symantec CorporationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.99 06/22/01

10.53 Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of
March 30, 2001, between Symantec
Corporation and The Bank of Nova Scotia 10-K 10.001 06/22/01

10.54 Construction Agency Agreement, dated as
of March 30, 2001, between The Symantec
2001 Trust and Symantec Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.002 06/22/01

10.55 Supplement No. 1 to Construction Agency
Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2001,
between The Symantec 2001 Trust and
Symantec Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.003 06/22/01

10.56 Supplement No. 2 to Construction Agency
Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2001,
between The Symantec 2001 Trust and
Symantec Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-K 10.004 06/22/01

10.57 OÇce building lease, dated as of April 10,
1991, between the Registrant and Maguire
Thomas Partners Colorado Place regarding
property located in Santa Monica, California 10-K 10.25 03/31/91

10.58 Fifth Amendment to Lease, dated as of
June 24, 1999, by and between Colorado
Place Partners, LLC and Symantec
Corporation, regarding property located in
Santa Monica, California ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.01 11/15/99
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Incorporated by ReferenceExhibit Filed
Number Exhibit Description Form File No. Exhibit Filing Date Herewith

10.59 OÇce building lease, dated as of April 9,
1998, between Hill Samuel Bank Limited
and Symantec (UK) Limited and Symantec
Corporation regarding property located in
Maidenhead, United KingdomÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10-Q 10.03 08/11/98

10.60 Assignment of Copyright and Other
Intellectual Property Rights ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ S-4 33-35385 10.37 06/13/90

10.61 Software License Agreement, dated as of
September 27, 1998, between Symantec
Corporation and Intel Corporation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8-K 10.01 10/05/98

10.62 Software License Agreement, dated
December 6, 1999, by and among
SalesLogix Corporation, Symantec
Corporation and Symantec Limited ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8-K 99.01 01/14/00

21.01 Statement Regarding Computation of Ratios X

21.02 Subsidiaries of the Registrant ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

23.01 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP,
Independent Auditors ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ X

* Form is the Registrant's Joint Management Information Circular and Proxy Statement.

** Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K: We did not Ñle any current reports on Form 8-K during the last quarter
covered by this report.

(c) Exhibits: We hereby Ñle as part of this Form 10-K the exhibits listed in Item 14(a) 3, as set forth
above.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules: We hereby Ñle as part of this Form 10-K the schedule listed in
Item 14(a) 2, as set forth above.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Symantec Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Symantec Corporation as of
March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and
cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002. Our audits also included the
Ñnancial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 14(a). These Ñnancial statements and schedule are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ñnancial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Ñnancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the Ñnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and signiÑcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
Ñnancial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Ñnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated Ñnancial position of Symantec Corporation at March 31, 2002 and 2001, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash Öows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the
related Ñnancial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic Ñnancial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
April 22, 2002
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands,
except par value)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,375,051 $ 557,027
Trade accounts receivable, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 89,223 116,661
Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,463 5,855
Deferred income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 68,621 76,426
Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22,461 25,932

Total current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,562,819 781,901
Restricted investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 124,313 74,534
Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 186,305 93,219
Deferred income taxesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,152 3,900
Acquired product rights, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 72,193 104,287
Goodwill, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 521,949 713,550
Other, net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31,874 20,190

$2,502,605 $1,791,581

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 70,057 $ 66,109
Accrued compensation and beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 54,419 46,420
Deferred revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 331,100 183,256
Other accrued expensesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 70,745 43,385
Income taxes payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 52,777 73,547

Total current liabilities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 579,098 412,717
Convertible subordinated debentures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 600,000 Ì
Other long-term obligations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,631 2,363

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock (par value: $0.01, authorized: 1,000; issued and

outstanding: none) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì
Common stock (par value: $0.01, authorized: 300,000; issued and

outstanding: 143,559 and 144,012 shares, respectively)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,436 720
Capital in excess of par valueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,194,173 1,179,675
Accumulated other comprehensive lossÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (53,013) (48,872)
Unearned compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (372) (895)
Retained earningsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 177,652 245,873

Total stockholders' equity ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,319,876 1,376,501

$2,502,605 $1,791,581

The accompanying Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except
net income (loss) per share)

Net revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,071,438 $853,554 $745,725

Cost of revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 194,610 123,860 121,073

Gross margin ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 876,828 729,694 624,652

Operating expenses:

Research and development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 163,979 126,673 108,425

Sales and marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 428,495 349,921 306,755

General and administrative ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 53,880 44,784 42,150

Amortization of goodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 196,806 71,336 17,884

Amortization of other intangibles from acquisitionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 2,144 1,416 917

Acquired in-process research and development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 22,300 4,300

Restructuring, site closures and other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20,428 3,664 9,018

Litigation judgment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,055 Ì Ì

Total operating expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 868,787 620,094 489,449

Operating incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,041 109,600 135,203

Interest incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31,717 33,257 13,408

Interest expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (9,169) Ì (22)

Income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product
lines ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,536 20,448 107,358

Other income (expense), net ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (627) (22,525) 1,344

Income before income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 45,498 140,780 257,291

Provision for income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 73,649 76,844 87,143

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (28,151) $ 63,936 $170,148

Net income (loss) per share Ì basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.49 $ 1.47

Net income (loss) per share Ì dilutedÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.47 $ 1.37

Shares used to compute net income (loss) per share Ì basic ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 129,474 115,740

Shares used to compute net income (loss) per share Ì diluted ÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 136,474 124,428

The accompanying Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Notes Accum

Capital in Receivable Other Total

Common Excess of from Comp Unearned Retained Stockholders'

Stock Par Value Stockholders Loss Compensation Earnings Equity

(In thousands)

Balances, March 31, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 569 $ 315,698 $(144) $(19,110) $ Ì $ 48,100 $ 345,113
Components of comprehensive

income:
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 170,148 170,148
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (2,069) Ì Ì (2,069)
Translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (6,528) Ì Ì (6,528)

Total comprehensive income 161,551

Issued common stock:
8,676 shares under stock plans ÏÏÏÏ 43 70,640 Ì Ì Ì Ì 70,683
200 shares of restricted stockÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1 1,299 Ì Ì (1,300) Ì Ì

Amortization of unearned
compensationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 623 Ì 623

Agreement with former CEO ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 1,232 120 Ì Ì Ì 1,352
Repurchased 2,000 shares of common

stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10) (10,571) Ì Ì Ì (8,149) (18,730)
Income tax beneÑt related to stock

options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 57,365 Ì Ì Ì Ì 57,365

Balances, March 31, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 603 435,663 (24) (27,707) (677) 210,099 617,957
Components of comprehensive

income:
Net income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì 63,936 63,936
Unrealized gain on available-for-

sale securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 2,987 Ì Ì 2,987
Translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (24,152) Ì Ì (24,152)

Total comprehensive income 42,771

Issued common stock:
4,338 shares under stock plans ÏÏ 22 45,612 Ì Ì Ì Ì 45,634
29,056 shares to AXENT

stockholders and assumption of
outstanding AXENT stock
options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 145 906,212 Ì Ì (992) Ì 905,365

Amortization of unearned
compensationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 774 Ì 774

Repayment of notes receivable from
stockholderÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 24 Ì Ì Ì 24

Repurchased 10,000 shares of
common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (50) (216,198) Ì Ì Ì (28,162) (244,410)

Income tax beneÑt related to stock
options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 8,386 Ì Ì Ì Ì 8,386

Balances, March 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 720 1,179,675 Ì (48,872) (895) 245,873 1,376,501
Components of comprehensive (loss):

Net loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì Ì (28,151) (28,151)
Unrealized gain on available-for-

sale securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì 104 Ì Ì 104
Translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì (4,245) Ì Ì (4,245)

Total comprehensive loss ÏÏÏ (32,292)

Issued common stock:
9,187 shares under stock plans ÏÏ 61 133,281 Ì Ì Ì (8) 133,334
Stock dividendÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 703 Ì Ì Ì Ì (703) Ì

Amortization of unearned
compensationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì Ì Ì 523 Ì 523

Repurchased 9,640 shares of common
stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (48) (165,013) Ì Ì Ì (39,359) (204,420)

Income tax beneÑt related to stock
options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 46,230 Ì Ì Ì Ì 46,230

Balances, March 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $1,436 $1,194,173 $ Ì $(53,013) $ (372) $177,652 $1,319,876

The accompanying Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SYMANTEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Operating Activities:

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (28,151) $ 63,936 $170,148
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and leasehold improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38,777 31,977 25,011
Amortization of debt issuance costs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,300 Ì Ì
Amortization and write-oÅ of acquired product rights ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 33,840 16,112 7,719
Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles from acquisitionsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 198,950 72,752 18,801
Write-oÅ of equipment and leasehold improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,232 Ì 3,283
Acquired in-process research and developmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 22,300 4,300
Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,482 (18,333) (26,263)
Net loss on equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 24,226 Ì
Gain on divestiture of ACT! product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (18,285)
Gain on divestiture of Visual Caf πe product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (68,523)
Gain on divestiture of the web access management product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (392) Ì Ì
Net change in assets and liabilities, excluding eÅects of acquisitions:

Trade accounts receivable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26,628 (48,165) 26,495
Inventories ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,638) (390) (150)
Other current assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,000 (4,585) (2,184)
Other assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 174 3,368 (5,425)
Accounts payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,414 14,556 (1,463)
Accrued compensation and beneÑts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,112 21,517 5,931
Deferred revenueÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 152,376 72,594 34,848
Other accrued expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,066 (26,391) 2,858
Income taxes payable ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (20,471) 69,490 (11,432)
Other long-term obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,268 1,173 1,190
Income tax beneÑt from stock options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 46,230 8,386 57,365

Net cash provided by operating activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 511,197 324,523 224,224

Investing Activities:

Capital expenditures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (140,857) (61,172) (28,455)
Purchased intangibles ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,060) (1,500) (1,138)
Purchase of Foster-Melliar ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2,000) Ì Ì
Purchase of Lindner & Pelc ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2,137) Ì Ì
Purchase of equity investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,000) (18,000) Ì
Purchase of 20/20 Software ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,535) (10,760) Ì
Proceeds from divestiture of Visual Caf πe product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 75,000
Purchase of L-3 Network Security's operations ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (20,090)
Purchase of URLabs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (42,100)
Purchase of IBM's antivirus businessÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (8,000)
Purchase of Quarterdeck ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì (16,394)
Cash acquired in business purchases ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 37,414 61
Purchases of marketable securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,311,697) (591,776) (569,688)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 642,802 662,592 286,607
Purchases of long-term, restricted investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (49,779) Ì (10,551)
Proceeds from sales of long-term investmentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 7,422 4,270

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (869,263) 24,220 (330,478)

Financing Activities:

Net proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinated debentures ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 584,625 Ì Ì
Repurchases of common stock ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (204,420) (244,410) (18,730)
Net proceeds from sale of common stock and other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 133,857 46,432 71,314
Principal payments on long-term obligationsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì (363) (1,092)

Net cash provided by (used in) Ñnancing activities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 514,062 (198,341) 51,492

EÅect of exchange rate Öuctuations on cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (4,682) (10,452) (1,128)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 151,314 139,950 (55,890)
Beginning cash and cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 227,923 87,973 143,863

Ending cash and cash equivalentsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 379,237 $ 227,923 $ 87,973

Supplemental cash Öow disclosures:

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) during the yearÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 34,240 $ 24,223 $ 66,309

The accompanying Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Business

Symantec provides a broad range of content and network security software and appliance solutions to
enterprises, individuals and service providers. We are a leading provider of client, gateway and server security
solutions for virus protection, Ñrewall and virtual private network, vulnerability management, intrusion
detection, Internet content and e-mail Ñltering, remote management technologies and security services to
enterprises and service providers around the world. Founded in 1982, we have oÇces in 38 countries
worldwide.

All Symantec share and per share amounts have been adjusted to reÖect the two-for-one stock split
eÅected as a stock dividend, which became eÅective January 31, 2002.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated Ñnancial statements include the accounts of Symantec Corporation and
its wholly owned subsidiaries. All signiÑcant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Acquisitions and Divestitures

During the three years ended March 31, 2002, we acquired:

‚ Lindner & Pelc Consult GmbH in the September 2001 quarter;

‚ the enterprise security division of Foster-Melliar Limited also in the September 2001 quarter;

‚ AXENT Technologies, Inc. in the December 2000 quarter;

‚ L-3 Network Security's operations in the March 2000 quarter;

‚ 20/20 Software also in the March 2000 quarter; and

‚ URLabs in the September 1999 quarter.

Each of these acquisitions was accounted for as a purchase and, accordingly, their operating results have
been included in our consolidated Ñnancial statements since their respective dates of acquisition.

We divested our web access management product line on August 24, 2001 and the Visual Caf πe and
substantially all of the ACT! product lines on December 31, 1999. These product lines are included in the
results of operations prior to disposition and are included in our Other segment.

See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal Years

We have a 52/53-week Ñscal accounting year. Accordingly, all references as of and for the periods ended
March 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 reÖect amounts as of and for the periods ended March 29, 2002, March 30,
2001 and March 31, 2000, respectively. The Ñscal accounting years ended March 29, 2002, March 30, 2001
and March 31, 2000 each comprised 52 weeks of operations. The Ñscal accounting year ending April 2, 2003
will comprise of 53 weeks of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of Ñnancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aÅect the amounts reported in the consolidated
Ñnancial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could diÅer from those estimates.
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Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaries is the local currency. Assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate on the balance sheet dates. The translation
adjustments resulting from this process are shown separately as a component of stockholders' equity.
Revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are included in the determination of net income (loss).

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenue primarily from sales of packaged products, perpetual license agreements, product
maintenance and professional services, and recognize this revenue in accordance with Statement of Position,
or SOP, 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition, as modiÑed by SOP 98-9, and StaÅ Accounting Bulletin
No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements, when the following conditions have been met:

‚ persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

‚ passage of title occurs;

‚ delivery has occurred or services have been rendered;

‚ if applicable, customer acceptance has been received;

‚ collection of a Ñxed or determinable license fee is considered reasonably assured; and

‚ if appropriate, reasonable estimates of future product returns have been made.

We sell packaged products through a multi-tiered distribution channel. We defer revenue on all
distribution and reseller channel inventory in excess of speciÑed inventory levels in these channels. We oÅer
the right of return of our products under various policies and programs with our distributors, resellers and end-
user customers. We estimate and record reserves for end-user product returns and channel and end-user
rebates, and we account for these reserves as an oÅset to revenue.

We enter into perpetual software license agreements through direct sales to customers and indirect sales
with distributors and resellers. The license agreements generally include product maintenance agreements, for
which the related revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the period of the agreements.

Our professional services include consulting, education, and managed security services. We recognize
consulting services revenue as services are performed or upon written acceptance from customers, if
applicable. We recognize education services revenue as services are performed. We recognize managed
security services revenue ratably over the period that such contracted services are provided.

In arrangements that include software licenses and maintenance and/or professional services and
packaged products with content updates (""multiple elements''), we allocate and defer revenue for the
undelivered items based on vendor-speciÑc objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value of the undelivered
elements, and recognize the diÅerence between the total arrangement fee and the amount deferred for the
undelivered items as revenue. VSOE of each element is based on the price for which the undelivered element
is sold separately. If VSOE does not exist for undelivered items such as maintenance or professional services,
then the entire arrangement fee is recognized over the performance period.

Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments and Restricted Investments

We consider investments in highly liquid instruments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. All of our cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted investments are
classiÑed as available-for-sale as of the balance sheet dates. These securities are reported at fair market value
and any unrealized gains and losses are included as a component in stockholders' equity in accumulated other

56



SYMANTEC CORPORATION

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Ì (Continued)

comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than
temporary on available-for-sale securities are included in other income (expense). The cost of securities sold
is based upon the speciÑc identiÑcation method.

Equity Investments

We have equity investments in privately held companies for business and strategic purposes. These
investments are included in other long-term assets and are accounted for under the cost method. Under the
cost method, the investment is recorded at its initial cost and is periodically reviewed for impairment. We
regularly review our investment's actual and forecasted operating results, Ñnancial position and liquidity, and
business and industry factors in assessing whether a decline in value of an equity investment has occurred that
is other than temporary. When such a decline in value is identiÑed, the fair value of the equity investment is
estimated based on the preceding factors and an impairment loss is recognized in other income (expense).

Derivative Financial Instruments

We utilize some natural hedging to mitigate our foreign currency exposures and we manage certain
residual exposures through the use of one-month forward exchange contracts. We enter into forward exchange
contracts with Ñnancial institutions primarily to minimize currency exchange risks associated with certain
balance sheet positions.

Gains and losses on the contracts are included in other income (expense) in the period that gains and
losses on the underlying transactions are recognized, and generally oÅset. The fair value of forward exchange
contracts approximates cost due to the short maturity periods.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is principally determined using currently
adjusted standards, which approximate actual cost on a Ñrst-in, Ñrst-out basis. Inventory consists of raw
materials and Ñnished goods.

Property, Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation and amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the respective assets as follows:

‚ computer hardware and software Ì three to Ñve years;

‚ oÇce furniture and equipment Ì three to Ñve years;

‚ leasehold improvements Ì the shorter of the lease term or seven years; and

‚ buildings Ì twenty Ñve to thirty years.

Acquired Product Rights

Acquired product rights are comprised of purchased product rights, technologies and workforce-in-place
and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization of purchased product rights and
technologies is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets,
generally three to Ñve years, and is included in cost of revenues or income (net of expense) from sale of
technologies and product lines. EÅective April 1, 2002, the net balance of workforce-in-place will be
reclassiÑed to goodwill and will no longer be amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment test (see
Recent Accounting Pronouncements).
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Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded through acquisitions and is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. For
acquisitions completed prior to July 1, 2001, amortization in each case was provided on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the respective goodwill, generally four to Ñve years, and was included in
operating expenses. EÅective April 1, 2002, the net balance of goodwill related to acquisitions completed prior
to July 1, 2001 will no longer be amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment test (see Recent
Accounting Pronouncements). For acquisitions completed subsequent to June 30, 2001, goodwill was not
amortized and will be subject to an annual impairment test.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including property, equipment, leasehold improvements, acquired product rights and
goodwill, are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the
undiscounted future net cash Öows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is
less than its carrying amount. Such impairment loss would be measured as the diÅerence between the carrying
amount of the asset and its fair value based on the present value of estimated future cash Öows. No
impairments have been indicated to date. EÅective April 1, 2002, impairment of goodwill and other long-lived
assets will be assessed according to new accounting guidelines (see Recent Accounting Pronouncements).

Income Taxes

Income taxes are computed in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS,
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion, or APB, No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and to
nonemployees using the fair value method in accordance with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. In addition, we apply applicable provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board, or
FASB, Interpretation, or FIN, No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation,
an interpretation of APB No. 25.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the periods. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding and potentially dilutive common shares during the periods. Diluted net
income (loss) per share also includes the assumed conversion of all of the outstanding convertible
subordinated debentures and assumed exercising of options, if dilutive in the period. Potentially dilutive
common shares are excluded in net loss periods, as their eÅect would be antidilutive.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our product revenues are concentrated in the software industry, which is highly competitive and rapidly
changing. SigniÑcant technological changes in the industry or customer requirements, or the emergence of
competitive products with new capabilities or technologies, could adversely aÅect operating results. In
addition, a signiÑcant portion of our revenues and net income (loss) is derived from international sales and
independent agents and distributors. Distributors that accounted for more than 10% of net revenues included:
Ingram Micro Inc. of 23%, 26% and 39% during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively; Tech Data Group of
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11% and 12% during Ñscal 2002 and 2000, respectively; and Merisel of 11% during Ñscal 2000. Fluctuations of
the U.S. dollar against foreign currencies, changes in local regulatory or economic conditions, piracy or
nonperformance by independent agents or distributors could adversely aÅect operating results.

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
equivalents, short-term investments, restricted investments and trade accounts receivable. Our investment
portfolio is diversiÑed and consists of investment grade securities. We are exposed to credit risks in the event
of default by these institutions to the extent of the amount recorded on the balance sheet. The credit risk in
our trade accounts receivable is substantially mitigated by our credit evaluation process, reasonably short
collection terms and the geographical dispersion of sales transactions. We maintain reserves for potential
credit losses and such losses have been within management's expectations.

Legal Expenses

We accrue estimated legal expenses for lawsuits only when both of the conditions of SFAS No. 5,
Accounting for Contingencies, are met. Costs for external attorney fees are accrued when the likelihood of the
incurrence of the related costs is probable and management has the ability to estimate such costs. If both of
these conditions are not met, management records the related legal expenses when incurred. Amounts accrued
by us are not discounted. The material assumptions used to estimate the amount of legal expenses include:

‚ the monthly legal expense incurred by our external attorneys on the particular case being evaluated;

‚ communication between us and our external attorneys on the expected duration of the lawsuit and the
estimated expenses during that time;

‚ our strategy regarding these lawsuits;

‚ deductible amounts under our insurance policies; and

‚ past experiences with similar lawsuits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, eÅective for Ñscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. SFAS No. 141 requires that all
business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indeÑnite lives will no longer
be amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment test. Other intangibles will continue to be amortized
over their useful lives. We will adopt SFAS No. 142 in our Ñrst quarter of Ñscal 2003. Upon adoption of SFAS
No. 142, we will stop the amortization of goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indeÑnite lives with a
net carrying value of approximately $525.9 million, net of a deferred tax liability, as of March 31, 2002. As a
result of the discontinuance of the amortization of goodwill existing as of March 31, 2002 and excluding the
impact of potential impairment charges, the application of SFAS No. 142 is expected to result in an increase
in our results of operations of approximately $198.4 million during Ñscal 2003. During the Ñrst six months of
Ñscal 2003, we will perform the Ñrst of the required impairment tests of goodwill and intangible assets deemed
to have indeÑnite lives as of April 1, 2002, using the two-step process required under SFAS 142. We have not
yet determined what eÅect these tests will have on our earnings and Ñnancial position.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets. SFAS No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and addresses Ñnancial accounting and reporting for the impairment
and disposal of long-lived assets. We will adopt this statement on April 1, 2002. Adoption of this statement is
not expected to have a material impact on our Ñnancial position or results of operations.

59



SYMANTEC CORPORATION

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Ì (Continued)

The lessors associated with lease agreements relating to certain of our facilities, described under Synthetic
Leases in Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, are special purpose entities or equivalent
structures. Presently, we account for these leases as operating leases, while the special purpose entities or
equivalent structures own and account for the leased assets and related liabilities in their records. The FASB
has indicated that it will, prior to June 30, 2002, issue proposed new rules on accounting for ""Entities That
Lack SuÇcient Independent Economic Substance'', including special purpose entities, in the form of an
Interpretation to SFAS No. 94, Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiaries, and Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements. Based on public comments from the FASB to date, the
proposed interpretation will provide guidance for determining when an entity (such as us), the Primary
BeneÑciary, should consolidate another entity, a special purpose entity or equivalent structure (such as the
lessor), that functions to support the activities of the Primary BeneÑciary. The expected proposed Interpreta-
tion may result in us having to consolidate the operating results of the special purpose entities and equivalent
structures, which are the lessors under the aforementioned operating lease agreements. The eÅective date of
these proposed new rules on our current operating leases could be as early as the beginning of our Ñscal year
2004, and sooner on any new leases entered into after the new rules' eÅective date which utilize special
purpose entities or equivalent structures.

ReclassiÑcations

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassiÑed to conform to the current presentation format
with no impact on net income (loss). All related Ñnancial information has been restated to conform to this
presentation.
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Note 1. Balance Sheet Information

March 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments:

Cash ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 123,030 $ 97,685

Cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 256,207 130,238

Short-term investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 995,814 329,104

$1,375,051 $557,027

Trade accounts receivable, net:

Receivables ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 99,304 $125,000

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (10,081) (8,339)

$ 89,223 $116,661

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, net:

Computer hardware and software ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 260,170 $189,497

OÇce furniture and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 49,887 43,752

Buildings and land ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 41,671 Ì

Leasehold improvements ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 35,265 30,313

386,993 263,562

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortizationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (200,688) (170,343)

$ 186,305 $ 93,219

Acquired product rights, net:

Purchased product rights, technologies and workforce-in-placeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 136,112 $136,029

Less: accumulated amortization of purchased product rights, technologies and
workforce-in-placeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (63,919) (31,742)

$ 72,193 $104,287

Goodwill, net:

GoodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 814,152 $808,947

Less: accumulated amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (292,203) (95,397)

$ 521,949 $713,550

Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 718 $ 614

Cumulative translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (53,731) (49,486)

$ (53,013) $(48,872)
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Note 2. Statement of Operations Information

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Technical support costs included in sales and marketing ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $18,415 $26,968 $32,427

Advertising expense ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $34,657 $46,884 $43,630

Technical support costs, included in sales and marketing, relate to the estimated cost of providing free
post-contract support and were accrued at the time of product sale. Advertising expenditures were charged to
operations as incurred.

Note 3. Acquisitions and Divestitures

Acquisition of Lindner & Pelc

On August 30, 2001, we purchased 100% of the outstanding shares of Lindner & Pelc Consult GmbH, a
security services and implementation company in Berlin, Germany, for approximately $2.2 million. The
transaction was accounted for as a purchase and we recorded approximately $2.1 million in goodwill. As we
acquired Lindner & Pelc subsequent to June 30, 2001, the related goodwill will not be amortized, but will be
subject to an annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Under the terms of the agreement,
we may also be liable for contingency payments based on targeted future sales through September 2004. The
maximum aggregate amount of such contingency payments is approximately $2.0 million.

Acquisition of Foster-Melliar's Enterprise Security Management Division

On July 11, 2001, we acquired the enterprise security management division of Foster-Melliar Limited, an
IT services company located in Johannesburg, South Africa. We paid approximately $1.5 million for these
assets and the IT services business. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase and we recorded
approximately $1.5 million of goodwill. As we acquired Foster-Melliar's enterprise security management
division subsequent to June 30, 2001, the related goodwill will not be amortized, but will be subject to an
annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Under the terms of the agreement, we may also be
liable for contingency payments based on targeted future sales through Ñscal year 2004. The maximum
aggregate amount of such contingency payments is $1.5 million. During the March 2002 quarter, an amount of
$500,000 was recorded as goodwill, as it was determined that such amounts will be paid. The amount of
$500,000 represents contingency payments, of which the entire amount remains as an accrual as of March 31,
2002.

Acquisition of AXENT

On December 18, 2000, we acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of AXENT Technologies,
Inc. by issuing approximately 29,056,000 shares of our common stock to AXENT shareholders. We also
assumed all of the outstanding AXENT employee stock options valued at approximately $87.0 million. A
valuation specialist used our estimates to establish the amount of acquired in-process research and
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development. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase. The acquisition was initially recorded during
Ñscal 2001 for approximately $924.7 million and allocated as follows (in thousands):

Net tangible assets of AXENTÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $130,517

In-process research and development ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 22,300

TradenameÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,100

Workforce-in-place ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,670

Developed technologyÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 75,500

Deferred income taxes ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (19,080)

Unearned compensation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 992

GoodwillÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 699,660

Total purchase price ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $924,659

During Ñscal 2001, we also accrued approximately $18.3 million in acquisition related expenses, which
included Ñnancial advisory, legal and accounting, duplicative site and Ñxed assets, and severance costs. These
acquisition related expenses were paid by the end of the December 2001 quarter.

After Ñling the pre-acquisition tax returns of AXENT during the December 2001 quarter, we identiÑed
additional tax losses and other beneÑcial tax attributes available from the pre-acquisition periods of AXENT.
As a result, we recorded additional deferred tax assets of $5 million attributable to these carryforward tax
beneÑts, with a corresponding oÅset to goodwill.

During the September 2001 quarter, we divested the web access management product line that we
acquired with our acquisition of AXENT. As a result, we wrote oÅ approximately $804,000 of net workforce-
in-place related to this product line (see Divestiture of Web Access Management Product Line).

During the June 2001 quarter, we resolved certain pre-acquisition contingencies, and as a result, we
increased the purchase price and goodwill by $4.5 million, of which $1.2 million remains as an accrual as of
March 31, 2002.

The amount allocated to tradename, workforce-in-place, developed technology and goodwill is being
amortized over their useful lives of four years. Commencing in Ñscal 2003, however, the remaining balance of
workforce-in-place and goodwill will no longer be amortized. Instead they will be subject to an annual
impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142. The unearned compensation related to the options
assumed as part of the acquisition is being amortized over the remaining vesting period.

Acquisition of 20/20 Software

On March 31, 2000, we purchased 100% of the outstanding common stock of 20/20 Software for up to
$16.5 million. The terms of the agreement required two guaranteed payments totaling approximately
$7.5 million. We originally recorded approximately $6.1 million for goodwill and $2.3 million for acquired
product rights, oÅset by $900,000 in related income tax liabilities, which accounted for the $7.5 million
guaranteed purchase price. In addition, the agreement required contingent payments that were based on
targeted future sales of certain of our products from July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001, with a cumulative
maximum contingency amount of $9.0 million. We recorded contingent amounts of approximately $523,000,
$4.2 million and $1.6 million during the September 2000, March 2001 and June 2001 quarters, respectively,
resulting in a cumulative increase in the purchase price of $6.3 million, which was allocated to goodwill. The
goodwill and acquired product rights are being amortized over a Ñve-year period. Commencing in Ñscal 2003,
however, the remaining balance of goodwill will no longer be amortized. Instead it will be subject to an annual
impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142.
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Acquisition of L-3 Network Security

On March 9, 2000, we acquired the operations of L-3 Network Security for a one-time cash payment of
approximately $20.1 million. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase. In connection with the
transaction, we recorded approximately $3.1 million for acquired in-process research and development,
$12.4 million for goodwill, $3.9 million for acquired product rights and $900,000 for other tangible and
intangible assets. A valuation specialist used our estimates to establish the amount of acquired in-process
research and development. The goodwill, acquired product rights and other intangibles are being amortized
over a Ñve-year period. Commencing in Ñscal 2003, however, the remaining balance of workforce-in-place and
goodwill will no longer be amortized. Instead they will be subject to an annual impairment test in accordance
with SFAS No. 142.

Acquisition of URLabs

On July 21, 1999, we purchased 100% of the outstanding common stock of URLabs for a one-time cash
payment of approximately $42.1 million. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase. In connection with
the transaction, we recorded approximately $1.2 million for acquired in-process research and development,
$37.0 million for goodwill, $5.2 million for acquired product rights, $1.4 million for other intangible assets and
$600,000 for other acquired assets, oÅset by approximately $2.7 million in related income tax liabilities. A
valuation specialist used our estimates to establish the amount of acquired in-process research and
development. The goodwill, acquired product rights and other intangibles are being amortized over a Ñve-year
period. Commencing in Ñscal 2003, however, the remaining balance of workforce-in-place and goodwill will no
longer be amortized. Instead they will be subject to an annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS
No. 142.

The following table outlines the values of the above referenced Ñscal 2000 acquisitions' net tangible and
intangible assets, adjusted for Ñnal purchase price allocations, as certain pre-acquisition contingencies that
existed upon acquisition have been resolved:

Allocated Purchase Price Components

Acquired Acquired Income Other
Purchase In-Process Product Other Tax Assets

Price R&D Rights Goodwill Intangibles Liabilities Acquired

(In thousands)

20/20 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $13,864 $ Ì $ 2,250 $12,437 $ Ì $ (900) $ 77

L-3 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20,240 3,100 3,860 12,396 600 Ì 284

URLabs ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 42,700 1,200 5,210 37,000 1,400 (2,710) 600

Total ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $76,804 $4,300 $11,320 $61,833 $2,000 $(3,610) $961

Pro Forma (unaudited)

The following summary of pro forma results of operations data during Ñscal 2001 and 2000 are presented
as if the AXENT acquisition had occurred at the beginning of Ñscal 2000. The pro forma information excludes
$22.3 million of acquired in-process research and development. The pro forma information has been prepared
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for comparative purposes only and is not indicative of what operating results would have been if the
acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of Ñscal 2000 or of future operating results.

Year Ended March 31,

2001 2000

(In thousands,
except net income per

 share; unaudited)

Net revenuesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $944,150 $867,437

Net incomeÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 75,841 $169,312

Basic net income per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.49 $ 1.17

Diluted net income per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 0.48 $ 1.11

Divestiture of the Web Access Management Product Line

On August 24, 2001, we sold assets and transferred liabilities and employees related to our web access
management product line to PassGo Technologies Ltd. for approximately $1.1 million in cash. The assets
primarily consisted of Ñxed assets. The liabilities related to certain revenue deferrals related to the web access
management products. We wrote oÅ and transferred approximately $2.3 million of net Ñxed assets and
$804,000 of net workforce-in place. In addition, we accrued approximately $311,000 in transaction costs.
These expenses were oÅset by approximately $2.9 million in revenue deferrals due to the fact that no future
obligations existed for us. We recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $392,000 on the divestiture, which was
recorded in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

We also entered into an exclusive license and option agreement with PassGo whereby they will license
our web access management technology products. In consideration for the license, PassGo is required to pay
us quarterly royalties based on their net revenue starting at 30% and declining to 10% over a four-year period.
Because the royalties are not guaranteed and the quarterly amounts to be received are not determinable until
earned, we are recognizing these royalties as payments are due. We believe that we will ultimately realize the
remaining value attributable to the developed technology related to the web access management products,
and, therefore, we will continue to amortize this remaining value, which was initially determined in connection
with the purchase price of AXENT, as referred to above. During Ñscal 2002, we recorded approximately
$1.1 million for the amortization of developed technology in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies
and product lines on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. PassGo also has an option to purchase the
technology at a price starting at $18.8 million and declining to $3.3 million over a four-year period.

Divestiture of the Visual Caf πe Product Line

On December 31, 1999, we sold the principal assets and liabilities of the Visual Caf πe product line to
WebGain, Inc. The assets primarily consisted of Ñxed assets and intangible assets. The liabilities related to
certain revenue deferrals recorded on our balance sheet as of December 31, 1999. In exchange for the assets
and liabilities sold to WebGain, we received $75.0 million in a lump-sum cash payment on December 31,
1999. We wrote oÅ or transferred approximately $4.7 million of capitalized software, Ñxed assets and inventory
related to the Visual Caf πe product line. In addition, we accrued approximately $1.4 million in transaction costs
and $400,000 in severance packages for the aÅected employees. As a result, we recorded a pre-tax gain of
approximately $68.5 million on the divestiture during Ñscal 2000, which was recorded in income, net of
expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Divestiture of ACT! Product Line

On December 31, 1999, we licensed substantially all of the ACT! product line technology, on an exclusive
basis, to Interact Commerce Corporation, previously SalesLogix, for a period of four years. In addition, we
sold the inventory and Ñxed assets related to the ACT! product line to Interact. In consideration for the license
and assets, Interact transferred to us 623,247 shares of its unregistered common stock. These shares were
valued at approximately $20.0 million as of December 6, 1999, the date the license was signed and the date the
number of shares was determined. As a result of the license, we recognized approximately $20.0 million from
the shares received and wrote oÅ or transferred to Interact $400,000 of inventory and Ñxed assets attributed to
the ACT! product line. In addition, we accrued approximately $1.3 million for transaction related costs. After
recognizing these above amounts, we recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately $18.3 million during Ñscal
2000, which was recorded in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During the March 2001 quarter, Interact entered into a plan to merge with The Sage Group plc and we
recorded a loss of approximately $12.5 million as other expense related to the other than temporary decline in
value of our investment in Interact. As a result of the merger, we received approximately $7.5 million upon the
surrender of the Interact shares in July 2001.

In addition to the shares received from Interact, Interact is required to pay us quarterly royalty payments
for four years. Interact will pay these royalties based on future revenues set forth in the License, up to an
aggregate maximum of $57.0 million. Because the royalties are not guaranteed and the quarterly amounts to
be received are not determinable until earned, we are recognizing these royalties as payments are due. We
recorded approximately $15.5 million, $19.3 million and $5.0 million of royalty payments during Ñscal 2002,
2001 and 2000 in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations. At the end of the four-year period, Interact has the exclusive option, for a period of
30 days, to purchase the licensed technology from us for $60 million less all royalties paid to us to date.

Other Royalties and Transition Fees

In accordance with individual transition agreements, PassGo, WebGain and Interact paid us royalties
and/or fees for invoicing, collecting receivables, shipping and other operational and support activities. We
recorded approximately $694,000, $801,000 and $894,000 for these royalties and/or fees during Ñscal 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively, in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Divestiture of Electronic Forms

During September 1996, we sold our electronic forms software product line and related tangible assets to
JetForm Corporation, payable in installments through the June 2000 quarter. We received installment
payments from JetForm of approximately $397,000 and $14.7 million during Ñscal 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Due to the uncertainty regarding the ultimate collectibility of these installments, we recognized
the related amounts as payments were due and collectibility was assured from JetForm. Installment payments
from JetForm were recorded in income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The components of income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product lines were as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Royalties from Interact ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $15,500 $19,250 $ 5,000

Gain on divestiture of:

Web access management product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 392 Ì Ì

Visual Caf πe product line ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 68,523

ACT! product lineÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì Ì 18,285

Amortization of developed technology related to web access
management product lineÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,050) Ì Ì

Other royalties and transition fees ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 694 801 894

Payments from JetFormÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 397 14,656

Income, net of expense, from sale of technologies and product
lines ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $15,536 $20,448 $107,358

Note 4. Acquired Product Rights

During Ñscal 2002, we recorded approximately $1.1 million of non-acquisition product rights. This
increase was oÅset by a write oÅ of $804,000 for net workforce-in-place related to our divestiture of our web
access management product line. During Ñscal 2001, we recorded approximately $86.2 million of acquired
product rights, related to our acquisition of AXENT. During Ñscal 2000, we recorded approximately
$11.3 million of acquired product rights, primarily related to our acquisitions of 20/20, L-3 and URLabs.

During Ñscal 2002, amortization of acquired product rights totaled approximately $32.2 million, of which
$31.1 million and $1.1 million was recorded in cost of revenues and income (net of expense) from sale of
technologies and product lines, respectively. During Ñscal 2001 and 2000, amortization of acquired product
rights totaled approximately $17.3 million and $9.7 million during Ñscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, and was
recorded in cost of revenues. Acquired product rights, with the exception of workforce-in-place, will be
amortized over the next four years. EÅective April 1, 2002, the remaining balance of workforce-in-place of
approximately $3.9 million, net of a deferred tax liability, will no longer be amortized but will be subject to an
annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 142. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Note 5. Investments

Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments and Trading Investments

All cash equivalents and short-term investments were classiÑed as available-for-sale securities, except for
our trading securities. We maintain a trading asset portfolio in connection with our executive deferred
compensation arrangements that consists of marketable equity securities, which had a fair value of
approximately $1.1 million and $1.2 million as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Any activity related
to these trading assets has a corresponding eÅect on the carrying value of the related deferred compensation
liability. These trading assets have not been separately disclosed on the balance sheet due to their immaterial
amounts and were instead included in the following tabular disclosures.
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The estimated fair value of the cash equivalents and short-term investments consisted of the following:

March 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)

Corporate securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 478,632 $ 218,010

Taxable auction rate securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 226,906 5,006

Money market fundsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 201,107 66,597

Asset backed securitiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 168,427 Ì

Corporate bonds ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 104,015 Ì

US government and government-sponsored securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 65,089 15,262

Bank securities and deposits ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,845 146,988

Equity securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 7,479

Total available-for-sale and trading investments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,252,021 459,342

Less: amounts classiÑed as cash equivalents ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (256,207) (130,238)

$ 995,814 $ 329,104

The estimated fair value of cash equivalents and short-term investments by contractual maturity as of
March 31, 2002 was as follows:

(In thousands)

Due in one year or lessÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 871,822
Due after one year and through 3 yearsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 380,199

$1,252,021

Except for equity securities, fair values of cash equivalents, short-term investments and trading assets
approximate cost primarily due to the short-term maturities of the investments and the absence of changes in
security credit ratings.

As of March 31, 2002, we held no publicly traded equity securities. As of March 31, 2001, equity
securities of approximately $7.5 million consisted of 623,247 shares of Interact. During the March 2001
quarter, Interact entered into a plan to merge with The Sage Group plc and we recorded a loss of
approximately $12.5 million as other expense related to the other than temporary decline in value of our
investment in Interact. As a result of the merger, we received approximately $7.5 million upon the surrender
of the Interact shares in July 2001.

Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are reported as a component of stockholders'
equity and were approximately $718,000 and $614,000 as of March 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Unregistered Equity Investments

As of March 31, 2002 and 2001, we held unregistered equity investments of approximately $8.4 million in
three privately held companies and $5.4 million in one privately held company, respectively. These
investments were recorded at cost. These investments were classiÑed as other long-term assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the March 2001 quarter, we recognized a decline in value of approximately $12.6 million
determined to be other than temporary on our privately held investment. Also during the March 2001 quarter,
we recorded a gain of approximately $900,000 on another investment, as a result of this privately held
company being acquired by another entity. This investment was acquired as a result of our acquisition of

68



SYMANTEC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

AXENT. The other than temporary decline in value and gain on investment were recorded as other income
(expense) on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Restricted Investments

As of March 31, 2002 and 2001, the estimated fair value of our restricted investments was approximately
$124.3 million and $74.5 million, respectively, and consisted of U.S. Treasury securities or certiÑcates of
deposits. Our available-for-sale restricted investments relate to certain collateral requirements for lease
agreements associated with our corporate facilities in Cupertino, California and facilities in Newport News,
Virginia and SpringÑeld, Oregon. These amounts were classiÑed as non-current restricted investments on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Derivative Financial Instruments

During the periods covered by the consolidated Ñnancial statements, we did not use any derivative
instrument for trading purposes. We utilize some natural hedging to mitigate our exposures and we manage
certain residual balance sheet exposures through the use of one-month forward exchange contracts. We enter
into forward exchange contracts with Ñnancial institutions primarily to minimize currency exchange risks
associated with certain balance sheet positions. The fair value of forward exchange contracts approximates
cost due to the short maturity periods. As of March 31, 2002, the notional amount of our forward exchange
contracts was approximately $239.6 million, all of which mature in 35 days or less. We do not hedge our
foreign currency translation risk.

Note 6. Convertible Subordinated Debentures

On October 24, 2001, we completed a private oÅering of $600.0 million of 3% convertible subordinated
debentures due November 1, 2006, the net proceeds of which were approximately $584.6 million. The
debentures are convertible into shares of Symantec's common stock by the holders at any time before maturity
at a conversion price of $34.14 per share, subject to certain adjustments. We may redeem the debentures on or
after November 5, 2004, at a redemption price of 100.75% of stated principal during the period November 5,
2004 through October 31, 2005 and 100% thereafter. Interest will be paid semi-annually, commencing May 1,
2002. Debt issuance costs related to the 3% convertible subordinated debentures will be amortized on a
straight-line basis through November 1, 2006. We have reserved approximately 17.6 million shares of
common stock for issuance upon conversion of the 3% convertible subordinated debentures.

Note 7. Commitments

We lease certain of our facilities and equipment under operating leases that expire at various dates
through 2018. We currently sublease some space under various operating leases that will expire at various
dates through 2012.
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The future Ñscal year minimum operating lease commitments were as follows as of March 31, 2002:

(In thousands)

2003 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 26,901

2004 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20,185

2005 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 14,502

2006 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,314

2007 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,021

ThereafterÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,147

Operating lease commitments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 86,070

Sublease income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (22,818)

Net operating lease commitments ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 63,252

Synthetic Leases

In addition, we have two real estate leasing arrangements that we have classiÑed as operating leases. The
related future minimum commitments for these leases were included in the above table.

One of the lease arrangements is for two existing oÇce buildings in Cupertino, California. Lease
payments for these facilities are based on the three-month LIBOR in eÅect at the beginning of each Ñscal
quarter plus a speciÑed margin. We have the right to acquire the related properties at any time during the
seven-year lease period ending February 1, 2006. If, at the end of the lease term we do not renew the lease,
purchase the properties or arrange for a third party to purchase the properties, we may be obligated to the
lessor for all or some portion of an amount up to the guaranteed residual amount of approximately
$66.0 million, representing approximately 84% of the lessor's purchase price of the property.

On March 30, 2001, we entered into a master lease agreement for land and the construction of two oÇce
buildings, one in Newport News, Virginia, eÅective June 6, 2001, and another in SpringÑeld, Oregon, eÅective
April 6, 2001. Our lease payments will vary based on one-, three- or six-month LIBOR plus a speciÑed
margin. We have the right to acquire the related properties at any time during the six and one-half year lease
period ending September 28, 2007. We moved into the Oregon facility immediately after the end of the
December 2001 quarter and into the Virginia facility in April 2002. If, at the end of the lease term we do not
renew the lease, purchase the properties or arrange for a third party to purchase the properties, we may be
obligated to the lessor for all or some portion of an amount up to the guaranteed residual amount representing
approximately 85% of the lessor's ultimate purchase price of the properties, up to a maximum amount of
approximately $55.1 million as of March 31, 2002.

As security for each of these arrangements, we are required to maintain a cash collateral balance, which
was approximately $124.3 million as of March 31, 2002. We are required to invest the cash collateral in U.S.
Treasury securities or certiÑcates of deposit with speciÑed lenders and maturities not to exceed two to three
years. In accordance with the lease terms, these funds are not available to meet operating cash requirements.
As of March 31, 2002, the investments related to the California lease totaled approximately $77.4 million and
the investments related to the Oregon and Virginia leases totaled $46.9 million. These amounts were classiÑed
as non-current restricted investments within the consolidated Ñnancial statements.

In addition, we are obligated to maintain certain Ñnancial covenants including a minimum cash balance,
tangible net worth and quarterly earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, and
maximum debt and senior debt to EBITDA ratios. Future acquisitions, Ñnancing activities or operating losses
may cause us to be in violation of these Ñnancial covenants. In the event of default, we may be required to
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release the cash collateral and take possession of the buildings. As of March 31, 2002, we were in compliance
with all Ñnancial covenants.

Rent expense charged to operations totaled approximately $25.2 million, $22.9 million and $15.5 million
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note 8. Stock Split

On December 14, 2001, the Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split of Symantec's common
stock eÅected as a stock dividend, which became eÅective as of January 31, 2002 to stockholders of record on
January 17, 2002. Based on the number of shares outstanding on January 17, 2002, the stock dividend resulted
in the issuance of approximately 70.7 million additional shares of Symantec's common stock. All Symantec
share and per share amounts in prior periods have been adjusted to give retroactive eÅect to the stock
dividend.

Note 9. Common Stock Repurchases

On January 16, 2001, the Board of Directors replaced the March 22, 1999 stock repurchase program with
a new authorization to repurchase up to $700.0 million, not to exceed 30.0 million shares, of Symantec's
common stock with no expiration date. During Ñscal 2002, we repurchased 9.6 million shares at prices ranging
from $17.78 to $24.50 per share, for an aggregate amount of approximately $204.4 million. During Ñscal 2001,
we repurchased 10.0 million shares at prices ranging from $23.04 to $25.58 per share, for an aggregate amount
of approximately $244.4 million.

On March 22, 1999, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $75.0 million of Symantec
common stock with no expiration date. During Ñscal 2000, we repurchased 2.0 million shares at prices ranging
from $8.95 to $9.94, for an aggregate amount of approximately $18.7 million.

Note 10. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

The components of net income (loss) per share were as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Basic Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(28,151) $ 63,936 $170,148

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 129,474 115,740

Basic net income (loss) per share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.49 $ 1.47

Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(28,151) $ 63,936 $170,148

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
period ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 129,474 115,740

Shares issuable from assumed exercise of options ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 7,000 8,688

Total shares for purpose of calculating diluted net income (loss) per
share ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 143,604 136,474 124,428

Diluted net income (loss) per shareÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ (0.20) $ 0.47 $ 1.37
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During Ñscal 2002, approximately 7.6 million shares issuable upon conversion of the 3% convertible
subordinated debentures were excluded from the computation of diluted net income (loss) per share, as their
eÅect would have been anti-dilutive.

During Ñscal 2002, 2001, and 2000, approximately 13.8 million, 8.3 million and 928,000 shares,
respectively, issuable from assumed exercise of options were excluded from the computation of diluted net
income (loss) per share, as their eÅect would have been anti-dilutive.

Note 11. Adoption of Stockholder Rights Plan

On August 11, 1998, the Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan designed to ensure orderly
consideration of any future unsolicited acquisition attempt to ensure fair value of us for our stockholders.

In connection with the plan, the Board of Directors declared and paid a dividend of one preferred share
purchase right for each share of Symantec common stock outstanding on the Record Date, August 21, 1998.
Each right entitles the holder, under certain circumstances, to purchase from us one two-thousandth of a share
of our Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, at a price of $150.00 per one
one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, subject to adjustment.

The rights are initially attached to Symantec common stock and will not trade separately. If a person or a
group, an Acquiring Person, acquires 20% or more of our common stock, or announces an intention to make a
tender oÅer for 20% or more of our common stock, the rights will be distributed and will thereafter trade
separately from the common stock.

If the rights become exercisable, each right (other than the Acquiring Person) will entitle the holder to
purchase, at a price equal to the exercise price of the right, a number of shares of our common stock having a
then-current value of twice the exercise price of the right. If, after the rights become exercisable, we agree to
merge into another entity or we sell more than 50% of our assets, each right will entitle the holder to purchase,
at a price equal to the exercise price of the right, a number of shares of common stock of such entity having a
then-current value of twice the exercise price.

We may exchange the rights at a ratio of one share of common stock for each right (other than the
Acquiring Person) at any time after an Acquiring Person acquires 20% or more of our common stock but
before such person acquires 50% or more of our common stock. We may also redeem the rights at our option
at a price of $0.001 per right at any time before an Acquiring Person has acquired 20% or more of our common
stock. The rights will expire on August 12, 2008.

Note 12. Employee BeneÑts

401(k) Plan

We maintain a salary deferral 401(k) plan for all of our domestic employees. This plan allows employees
to contribute up to 20% of their pretax salary up to the maximum dollar limitation prescribed by the Internal
Revenue Code. We match 100% of the Ñrst $500 of employees' contributions and then 50% of the employees'
contribution. The maximum employer match in any given plan year is 3% of the employees' eligible
compensation. Our contributions under the plan were approximately $4.1 million, $3.0 million and $2.4 mil-
lion during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Restricted Shares

During Ñscal 1999, we issued 200,000 restricted shares to our current CEO for a purchase price of $0.005
per share, vesting 50% at each anniversary date, with the Ñrst anniversary date being April 14, 2000. Unearned
compensation equivalent to the market value of the common stock on the date of grant, less par, was charged
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to stockholders' equity and was amortized into compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting
term. As of March 31, 2002, there were 200,000 shares fully vested and outstanding.

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

In September 1998, our stockholders approved the 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and reserved a
total of 1.0 million shares of common stock for issuance. The plan was subsequently amended by our
stockholders on September 15, 1999, to increase the shares available for issuance by approximately 1.5 million
shares and to add an ""evergreen'' provision whereby the number of shares available for issuance increases
automatically on January 1 of each year (beginning in 2000) by 1% of our outstanding shares of common
stock on each immediately preceding December 31 during the term of the plan, provided that the aggregate
number of shares issued over the term of the plan does not exceed 16.0 million shares. On January 1, 2002,
2001 and 2000, the number of shares available for issuance automatically increased by approximately
1.4 million, 1.5 million and 1.2 million shares, respectively, for a total of approximately 6.6 million shares of
common stock reserved under the plan. Subject to certain limitations, our employees may purchase, through
payroll deductions of 2% to 10% of their compensation, shares of common stock at a price per share that is the
lesser of 85% of the fair market value as of the beginning of the oÅering period or the end of the purchase
period. As of March 31, 2002, approximately 1.5 million shares had been issued and 5.1 million shares remain
available under the plan.

Stock Award Plans

In September 2000, our stockholders approved the 2000 Directors Equity Incentive Plan and reserved
50,000 shares of common stock for issuance under this plan. The purpose of this plan is to provide the
members of the Board of Directors with an opportunity to receive common stock for all or a portion of the
retainer payable to each director for serving as a member. Each director may elect to receive 50% to 100% of
the retainer to be paid in the form of stock. As of March 31, 2002, a total of approximately 14,000 shares had
been issued under this plan.

In January 1995, the Board of Directors approved the terms of the 1994 Patent Incentive Plan. The
purpose of this plan is to increase awareness of the importance of patents to our business and to provide
employees with incentives to pursue patent protection for new technologies that may be valuable to us. Our
executive oÇcers are not eligible for awards under the 1994 Patent Incentive Plan, and no employee is eligible
to receive more than 100,000 shares of common stock at any time during the term of the plan. The Board of
Directors reserved 800,000 shares of common stock for issuance under this plan. As of March 31, 2002, a total
of approximately 58,000 shares had been issued under this plan.

Stock awards issued under these stock award plans are recorded as compensation expense.

Stock Option Plans

We maintain stock option plans pursuant to which an aggregate total of approximately 76.6 million shares
of common stock have been reserved for issuance as incentive and nonqualiÑed stock options to employees,
oÇcers, directors, consultants, independent contractors and advisors to us, or of any parent, subsidiary or
aÇliate of Symantec as the Board of Directors or committee may determine. The purpose of these plans is to
attract, retain and motivate eligible persons whose present and potential contributions are important to our
success by oÅering them an opportunity to participate in our future performance through awards of stock
options and stock bonuses. Under the terms of these plans, the option exercise price may not be less than 100%
of the fair market value on the date of grant and the options have a maximum term of ten years and generally
vest over a four-year period.
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In January 2001, the Board of Directors approved the terms of the 2001 Non-QualiÑed Equity Incentive
Plan, under which we grant options to employees, oÇcers, directors, consultants, independent contractors and
advisors to us, or of any parent, subsidiary or aÇliate of Symantec as the Board of Directors or committee may
determine. Options awarded to insiders may not exceed in the aggregate Ñfty (50%) percent of all shares that
are available for grant under the plan and employees of the company who are not insiders must receive at least
Ñfty (50%) percent of all shares that are available for grant under the plan. The terms of this plan are similar
to those of our 1996 Equity Incentive Plan, except that it was adopted, and may be amended, without
stockholder approval. The Board of Directors reserved 6.0 million shares of common stock for issuance under
the plan. As of March 31, 2002, approximately 2.7 million options were outstanding under this plan.

In December 2000, as a result of our acquisition of AXENT, we assumed all outstanding AXENT stock
options. Each AXENT stock option assumed by us is exercisable for one share of Symantec common stock for
each one share of AXENT common stock that was previously subject to the option, at the same exercise price.
Each option is otherwise subject to the same terms and conditions as the original grant and generally vest over
four years and expires ten years from the date of grant. No further options may be granted under the AXENT
plans. As of March 31, 2002, approximately 741,000 options were outstanding.

In July 1999, the Board of Directors approved the terms of the 1999 Acquisition Plan. Options awarded
to oÇcers may not exceed in the aggregate thirty (30%) percent of all shares that are available for grant under
the plan. The terms of this plan are similar to those of our 1996 Equity Incentive Plan, except that it was
adopted, and may be amended, without stockholder approval. The Board of Directors reserved 1.0 million
shares of common stock for issuance under the plan. As of March 31, 2002, approximately 417,000 options
were outstanding under this plan.

In accordance with the employment agreement dated April 11, 1999 between our current CEO and
Symantec, the Board of Directors approved the issuance of a non-qualiÑed stock option to acquire 400,000
shares of common stock to the CEO. The option was granted at 100% of the fair market value on the date of
grant, has a term life of ten years and vest over a Ñve-year period. As of March 31, 2002, all 400,000 options
were outstanding.

In May 1996, our stockholders approved the 1996 Equity Incentive Plan and subsequently approved
amendments to increase the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plan to a total
of approximately 42.5 million shares, including approximately 7.2 million, 4.8 million and 6.0 million shares
approved on September 12, 2001, December 15, 2000 and September 18, 2000, respectively. As of March 31,
2002, approximately 24.2 million options were outstanding under this plan. The material features of this plan
are described in our proxy statement Ñled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 26, 2001.

As of March 31, 2002, approximately 285,000 options granted to employees and 75,000 options granted to
directors were outstanding under the 1988 Employees Stock Option Plan, which was superseded by the 1996
Equity Incentive Plan, and the 1993 Directors Stock Option Plan, respectively. No further options may be
granted under these plans.

74



SYMANTEC CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Ì (Continued)

Stock option activity was as follows:
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Number Price
of Shares Per Share

(In thousands, except
weighted average exercise

price per share)

Outstanding as of March 31, 1999 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 21,056 $ 9.19

Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,362 22.47

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (7,874) 8.02

CanceledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,506) 10.23

Outstanding as of March 31, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 20,038 16.34

Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 18,334 19.57

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,542) 10.30

CanceledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,102) 20.88

Outstanding as of March 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 31,728 18.43

Granted ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,450 30.26

Exercised ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (8,254) 14.56

CanceledÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (3,140) 20.67

Outstanding as of March 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,784 $22.77

Stock option balances were as follows:

March 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)

Authorized and/or outstandingÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 38,511 39,834

Available for future grants ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,727 8,106

Exercisable and vested ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,434 9,568

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding as of March 31, 2002:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted

Number Contractual Average Number Average
of Shares Life Exercise of Shares Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices (In thousands) (In years) Price (In thousands) Price

$ 2.81 - $17.25 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 7,886 6.99 $11.99 4,027 $10.89

17.28 - 20.91 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,091 8.71 17.83 1,269 17.69

20.94 - 32.00 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,190 8.35 25.88 1,892 26.55

32.05 - 34.44 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,714 9.19 33.16 730 34.32

34.45 - 42.40 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,903 8.63 36.51 516 36.41

28,784 8.27 $22.77 8,434 $19.01

These options will expire if not exercised by speciÑc dates through March 2012. Prices for options
exercised during the three years ended March 31, 2002 ranged from $1.57 to $37.56.
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We elected to follow APB No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, in accounting for our
employee stock options because, as discussed below, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, requires the use of option valuation models that
were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB No. 25, because the exercise price
of our employee stock options generally equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant,
no compensation expense is recognized in our consolidated Ñnancial statements.

Pro forma information regarding net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share is required by SFAS
No. 123. This information is required to be determined as if we had accounted for our employee stock options,
including shares issued under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, collectively called ""options'', granted
subsequent to March 31, 1995 under the fair value method of that statement. The fair value of options granted
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 reported below has been estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model assuming no expected dividends and the following weighted average
assumptions:

Employee Stock Employee Stock
Options Purchase Plans

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Expected life (years)ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5.62 5.01 4.99 0.50 0.50 0.50

Expected volatility ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 0.76 0.71 0.65 0.80 0.84 0.68

Risk free interest rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4.60% 4.50% 6.50% 2.70% 6.00% 5.20%

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility. Because our options
have characteristics signiÑcantly diÅerent from those of traded options and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially aÅect the fair value estimate, in our opinion, the existing models do not
necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of our options.

The weighted average estimated fair values of employee stock options granted during Ñscal 2002, 2001
and 2000 were approximately $20.66, $12.70 and $13.62 per share, respectively. The weighted average
estimated fair value of employee stock purchase rights granted under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan
during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 were approximately $14.56, $10.53 and $10.03, respectively.

For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the options was amortized to expense
over the options' vesting period, for employee stock options, and the six-month purchase period, for stock
purchases under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Options assumed as the result of our acquisition of
AXENT were not included in the estimated fair value. Shares purchased through the AXENT Purchase Plan
subsequent to the closing date of the AXENT acquisition were included in the estimated fair value and were
included in the pro forma information as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands, except per share data)

Net income (loss) Ì basic Ì pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(107,292) $7,256 $137,829

Net income (loss) Ì diluted Ì pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (107,292) 7,256 137,829

Net income (loss) per share Ì basic Ì pro formaÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.75) 0.06 1.25

Net income (loss) per share Ì diluted Ì pro forma ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (0.75) 0.06 1.16

The eÅects on pro forma disclosures of applying SFAS No. 123 are not likely to be representative of the
eÅects on pro forma disclosures of future years.
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A summary of our stockholder approved and non-approved equity compensation plans as of March 31,
2002 was as follows (in thousands, except exercise price):

Number of Securities Number of Securities
to be Issued Weighted Average Remaining Available for

Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of Issuance Under Equity
Plan Category Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Compensation Plans

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders* ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 24,528 $23.03 11,611

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 3,514 $21.87 4,046

TotalÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 28,042 $22.88 15,657

* Our 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan contains an ""evergreen'' provision whereby the number of shares
available for issuance increases automatically on January 1 of each year (beginning in 2000) by 1% of our
outstanding shares of common stock on each immediately preceding December 31 during the term of the
plan.

The total number of shares to be issued upon exercise does not include approximately 742,000
outstanding options as of March 31, 2002 that were assumed as part of various acquisitions. The weighted
average exercise price of these outstanding options was $18.52 as of March 31, 2002. In connection with these
acquisitions, we have only assumed outstanding options and rights, but not the plans themselves, and
therefore, no further options may be granted under these acquired-company plans.

Our non-stockholder approved equity compensation plans include the following:

‚ 2001 Non-QualiÑed Equity Incentive Plan

‚ 1999 Acquisition Plan

‚ 1994 Patent Incentive Plan

‚ Non-qualiÑed stock option and restricted shares granted to John Thompson, CEO of Symantec

‚ Options assumed in connection with our acquisition of AXENT

See above in this Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for descriptions of these plans.

Note 13. Restructuring, Site Closures and Other Expenses

Restructuring, site closures and other expenses consisted of the following:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Employee severance and outplacement ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 2,639 $3,524 $8,065

Excess facilities and equipmentÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 17,789 140 953

Total restructuring, site closures and other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $20,428 $3,664 $9,018

During the March 2002 quarter, we recorded approximately $8.1 million for exit costs associated with the
expansion of our Newport News, Virginia site to a larger facility in Newport News, consolidation of most of
our United Kingdom facilities to Maidenhead, UK, and relocation of our Leiden, Netherlands operations to
Dublin, Ireland, in eÅorts to consolidate our European support functions. These costs included approximately
$5.8 million in rent remaining on the abandoned facilities and related exit costs, and $2.3 million in related
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abandoned Ñxed asset and leasehold improvement write-oÅs. As of March 31, 2002, we had an accrual of
approximately $6.8 million outstanding related to rent and related exit costs of the facilities and related
abandoned Ñxed asset and leasehold improvement write-oÅs. During the June 2002 quarter, we will record
costs of severance, related beneÑts and outplacement services, as a result of the relocation of our Leiden,
Netherlands operations to Dublin, Ireland.

Also during the March 2002 quarter, we recorded approximately $950,000 for the costs of severance,
related beneÑts and outplacement services, as we reorganized various operating functions. As a result, our
workforce was reduced by 29 employees. As of March 31, 2002, we had an accrual of approximately $536,000
outstanding for related severance, beneÑts and outplacement services.

During the December 2001 quarter, we recorded approximately $9.4 million for exit costs associated with
the relocation of our North American support group from Eugene, Oregon to an expanded facility in
SpringÑeld, Oregon. These costs included approximately $6.7 million in rent remaining on the abandoned
facilities in Eugene, Oregon and related exit costs, and $2.7 million in related abandoned leasehold
improvement write-oÅs. As of March 31, 2002, we had an accrual of approximately $6.2 million outstanding
related to rent and related exit costs of the facilities.

During the June 2001 quarter, we recorded approximately $2.0 million for the costs of employee
severance, related beneÑts, outplacement services and abandonment of certain facilities primarily related to
former AXENT operations. As a result, our workforce was reduced by 58 employees. These severance, related
beneÑts and outplacement costs were paid by the end of the September 2001 quarter. As of March 31, 2002,
we had approximately $233,000 accrual remaining related to the abandoned facilities.

Details of the Ñscal 2002 restructuring, site closures and other expenses were as follows:

Cash/ Original Amount Amount Balance
Non-cash Charge Paid/Used Adjusted at 3/31/02

(In thousands)

Employee severance and outplacementÏÏÏÏ Cash $ 2,639 $(2,103) $Ì $ 536

Excess facilities and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Cash/non-cash 17,789 (4,627) Ì 13,162

Total restructuring, site closures and
other expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $20,428 $(6,730) $Ì $13,698

During the March 2001 quarter, we reorganized various operating functions, thereby reducing our
workforce by 50 employees, and recorded approximately $1.1 million for the costs of severance, related
beneÑts and outplacement services. In addition, we provided approximately $1.2 million for costs of severance
and related beneÑts for six members of our senior management due to a realignment of certain responsibilities.
These severance, related beneÑts, and outplacement costs were paid by the end of the September 2001
quarter.

During the December 2000 quarter, we reduced a portion of our operations in Toronto, thereby reducing
our workforce by 10 employees, and recorded approximately $400,000 for the costs of severance, related
beneÑts and abandonment of certain equipment. In addition, approximately $900,000 was provided for costs of
severance and related beneÑts for four members of our senior management due to a realignment of certain
responsibilities. These severance and related beneÑts were paid by the end of the March 2001 quarter.
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Details of the Ñscal 2001 restructuring, site closures and other expenses were as follows:

Cash/ Original Amount Amount Balance
Non-cash Charge Paid/Used Adjusted at 3/31/02

(In thousands)

Employee severance and outplacementÏÏÏÏÏ Cash $3,524 $(3,524) $Ì $Ì

Excess equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Non-cash 140 (140) Ì Ì

Total restructuring, site closures and other
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $3,664 $(3,664) $Ì $Ì

During the March 2000 quarter, we reduced our operations in our Melville and Toronto sites, thereby
reducing our workforce by 96 employees. As a result, we vacated the facility in Melville and reduced the space
occupied in Toronto. We recorded approximately $3.4 million for employee severance, outplacement and
abandonment of certain facilities and equipment during the March 2000 quarter. In addition, we provided
approximately $700,000 for costs of severance, related beneÑts and outplacement services for two members of
senior management due to the realignment of our business units and their resulting departures during the
March 2000 quarter. These expenses were paid by the end of the December 2001 quarter.

During the December 1999 quarter, we reduced our Internet Tools business unit's workforce and reduced
our sales workforce. There were 48 employees in the Internet Tools business unit aÅected, resulting in a
charge of approximately $1.8 million for severance, related beneÑts and outplacement services. The sales
workforce reduction aÅected 10 employees, resulting in a charge of approximately $400,000 for severance,
related beneÑts and outplacement services. These severance and related beneÑts were paid by the end of the
December 2001 quarter.

During the September 1999 quarter, we provided approximately $700,000 for costs of severance, related
beneÑts and outplacement services for two members of senior management due to the realignment of our
business units and their resulting departures. We also recorded approximately $2.7 million for certain costs
related to an agreement reached with our former CEO during the June 1999 quarter. These costs were
comprised of severance and acceleration of unvested options. These severance and related beneÑts were paid
by the end of the December 2001 quarter.

Details of the Ñscal 2000 restructuring, site closures and other expenses were as follows:

Cash/ Original Amount Amount Balance
Non-cash Charge Paid/Used Adjusted at 3/31/02

(In thousands)

Employee severance and outplacementÏÏÏÏÏ Cash/non-cash $8,733 $(8,733) $Ì $Ì

Excess facilities and equipment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Cash/non-cash 953 (953) Ì Ì

Total restructuring, site closures and other
expenses ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $9,686 $(9,686) $Ì $Ì

The exit plans associated with each of the reductions in workforce and facility closures above speciÑcally
identiÑed all the signiÑcant actions, including:

‚ the names of individuals who would not continue employment with us;

‚ the termination dates and severance packages for each terminating employee;

‚ the planned date we would vacate the facilities which were under existing operating leases; and

‚ the speciÑc excess equipment, furniture, Ñxtures and leasehold improvements to be disposed.

Employee severance and outplacement was primarily comprised of severance packages for employees
who were terminated as a result of the restructurings. As part of each restructuring plan, we speciÑcally
identiÑed those individuals who would not continue employment with us. The severance periods ranged from
one to six months. The total cost of the severance packages was accrued and included in a restructuring charge
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after the identiÑed employees had their severance packages communicated to them. Additionally, we accrued
estimated costs associated with outplacement services to be provided to terminating employees, as these costs
have no future economic beneÑt to us. The remaining accrual as of March 31, 2002 was for outstanding
severance and outplacement costs.

Excess facilities and equipment included 1) remaining lease payments associated with building leases
subsequent to their abandonment dates, 2) net of estimated sublease income, and/or 3) estimated least
termination costs. The cash outlays for these leases are to be made over the remaining term of each lease,
unless a lease termination payment is required. In addition, we wrote oÅ the carrying value of site-speciÑc
equipment, furniture, Ñxtures and leasehold improvements, which would no longer be utilized. The accrual as
of March 31, 2002 relates to the remaining lease payments, net of estimated sublease income, which will be
paid over the remaining lease term subsequent to the abandonment of each facility.

Note 14. Other Comprehensive Loss

The components of other comprehensive loss were as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Other comprehensive loss:

Change in unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
securities ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 104 $ 2,987 $(2,069)

Change in cumulative translation adjustment ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (4,245) (24,152) (6,528)

Total other comprehensive loss ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $(4,141) $(21,165) $(8,597)

Note 15. Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes were as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Current:

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $24,508 $ 55,019 $51,193

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,543 14,741 16,600

International ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 26,045 30,411 27,995

60,096 100,171 95,788

Deferred:

Federal ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 13,802 (16,677) (5,735)

State ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,512 (5,386) (1,957)

International ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,761) (1,264) (953)

13,553 (23,327) (8,645)

$73,649 $ 76,844 $87,143
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The diÅerence between our eÅective income tax rate and the federal statutory income tax rate as a
percentage of income before income taxes was as follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

Federal statutory rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State taxes, net of federal beneÑt ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15.8 4.3 3.0

Acquired in-process research and development charges with no tax
beneÑtÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 5.5 Ì

Non-deductible goodwill amortization ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 148.5 16.8 2.1

Foreign earnings taxed at less than the federal rate ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (30.8) (11.5) (5.6)

Valuation allowance for potential non-deductible loss on investment ÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 3.1 Ì

Research tax credits ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.2) (0.7) (0.4)

BeneÑt of exempt foreign sales income ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.0) (0.2) (0.1)

Other, netÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (2.4) 2.3 (0.1)

161.9% 54.6% 33.9%

The principal components of deferred tax assets were as follows:

March 31,

2002 2001

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Tax credit carryforwards ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 1,618 $ 6,222

Net operating loss carryforwards of acquired companiesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 25,029 27,267

Other accruals not currently tax deductible ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11,652 15,902

Accrued compensation and beneÑtsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,299 7,799

Deferred revenue ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 9,736 7,394

Sales incentive programsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,488 2,803

Non-deductible accrual for product returns ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,982 7,924

Loss on investments not currently tax deductible ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 10,199 10,199

Intercompany proÑt elimination ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,257 10,808

Book over tax depreciation ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ Ì 9,075

Other ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 4,418 6,075

94,678 111,468

Valuation allowanceÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (5,111) (5,111)

Deferred tax assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 89,567 106,357

Deferred tax liability:

Acquired intangible assetsÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (14,408) (24,229)

Tax over book depreciationÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,697) Ì

Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ (1,689) (1,802)

Net deferred tax assets ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 71,773 $ 80,326

Realization of a signiÑcant portion of the $71.8 million of net deferred tax assets is dependent upon our
ability to generate suÇcient future taxable income and the implementation of tax planning strategies. We
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believe that it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized based on historical
earnings, expected levels of future taxable income in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions, and the
implementation of tax planning strategies. The valuation allowance remained unchanged during Ñscal 2002
and increased by $5.1 million during Ñscal 2001 due to a write-down of an equity investment, the loss of which
may not be deductible for tax purposes.

As of March 31, 2002, we have tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1.6 million that expire during
Ñscal 2004 through 2005. In addition, we have net operating loss carryforwards attributable to Quarterdeck of
approximately $40.8 million that expire during Ñscal 2011 through 2019. We also have net operating loss
carryforwards attributable to AXENT of approximately $19.1 million that expire during Ñscal 2007 through
2018. Because of the ""change in ownership'' provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the net
operating loss carryforwards of Quarterdeck and AXENT are subject to an annual limitation of approximately
$2.4 million and $10.6 million, respectively, regarding their utilization against taxable income in future
periods.

Pretax income from international operations was approximately $168.4 million, $144.9 million and
$116.8 million during Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

No provision has been made for federal or state income taxes on approximately $287.2 million of
cumulative unremitted earnings of certain of our foreign subsidiaries as of March 31, 2002, since we plan to
indeÑnitely reinvest these earnings. As of March 31, 2002, the unrecognized deferred tax liability for these
earnings was approximately $74.7 million.

Note 16. Litigation

On August 15, 2001, a customer Ñled a lawsuit in Michigan state court, purportedly on behalf of a class of
customers who had experienced a particular error message when using the Symantec LiveUpdate feature. The
complaint alleged violations of the Michigan Consumer Protection Act and breach of implied warranty. The
parties agreed to dismiss the lawsuit with no payment by us, and the court ordered the matter dismissed on
January 9, 2002.

On December 23, 1999, Altiris Inc. Ñled a lawsuit against us in the United States District Court, District
of Utah, alleging that unspeciÑed Symantec products including Norton Ghost Enterprise Edition, infringed a
patent owned by Altiris. The lawsuit requests damages, injunctive relief, costs and attorney fees. In October
2001, a stipulated judgment of non-infringement was entered following the court's ruling construing the claims
of the Altiris patent, and Altiris has appealed the ruling. We believe this claim has no merit, and we intend to
defend the action vigorously.

On May 12, 1999, a venture capital entity and a former stockholder owning less than a majority share of
CKS Limited, which AXENT acquired in March 1999, commenced an action in the SuÅolk County Superior
Court in Boston, Massachusetts against AXENT and its directors. The action alleged violations of the
Massachusetts Uniform Securities Act, negligent misrepresentation and unfair trade practices. We inherited
this case upon our acquisition of AXENT. The case was settled and dismissed during the September 2001
quarter on conÑdential terms not material to us.

In July 1998, the Ontario Court of Justice (General Division) ruled that we should pay a total of
approximately $4.7 million for damages, plus interest, to Triolet Systems, Inc. and Brian Duncombe in a
decade-old copyright action, for damages arising from the grant of a preliminary injunction against them. The
damages were awarded following the court's ruling that evidence presented later in the case showed the
injunction was not warranted. We inherited this case through our acquisition of Delrina Corporation, which
was the plaintiÅ in this lawsuit. Our appeal of the decision was denied, and we have requested leave to seek
further review of that decision. We recorded a charge of approximately $5.8 million during the June 1998
quarter, representing the unaccrued portion of the judgment plus costs, and an additional charge of
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approximately $3.1 million for post-judgment interest and other costs during the March 2002 quarter. As of
March 31, 2002, we believe that we have adequately accrued for both the damages and costs.

In October 1997, a complaint was Ñled in the United States District Court for the District of Utah on
behalf of PowerQuest Corporation, against Quarterdeck, which we acquired in March 1999. The complaint
alleges that Quarterdeck's partitioning software, included in Partition-It and Partition-It Extra Strength,
violated a patent held by PowerQuest. In January 1998, PowerQuest obtained a second patent relating to
partitioning and has amended its complaint to allege infringement of that patent as well. The plaintiÅ has
added us as a defendant and seeks an injunction against distribution of Partition-It and Partition-It Extra
Strength and monetary damages. We believe this claim has no merit, and we intend to defend the action
vigorously.

On September 15, 1997, Hilgraeve Corporation Ñled a lawsuit in the United States District Court,
Eastern District of Michigan, against us, alleging that unspeciÑed Symantec products infringe a patent owned
by Hilgraeve. The lawsuit requests damages, injunctive relief, costs and attorney fees. In March 2000, the
court granted our summary judgment motions and dismissed the case. In September 2001, the Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit reversed the summary judgment and ordered the case returned to the District
Court. We believe this lawsuit has no merit, and we intend to defend the action vigorously.

Over the past few years, it has become common for software companies, including us, to receive claims of
patent infringement. At any given time, we are evaluating claims of patent infringement asserted by several
parties, with respect to certain of our products. The outcome of any related litigation or negotiation could have
a material adverse impact on our future results of operations or cash Öows.

We are also involved in a number of other judicial and administrative proceedings that are incidental to
our business. We intend to defend all of the aforementioned pending lawsuits vigorously and although adverse
decisions (or settlements) may occur in one or more of the cases, the Ñnal resolution of these lawsuits,
individually or in the aggregate, is not expected to have a material adverse aÅect on our Ñnancial condition,
although it is not possible to estimate the possible loss or losses from each of these cases. Depending, however,
on the amount and timing of an unfavorable resolution of these lawsuits, it is possible that our future results of
operations or cash Öows could be materially adversely aÅected in a particular period. We have accrued certain
estimated legal fees and expenses related to certain of these matters; however, actual amounts may diÅer
materially from those estimated amounts.

The total amount of legal and settlement expenses accrued as of the respective year-ends and the
amounts expensed for the years ended are reÖected below:

Balance as of March 31, 2002 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $12.5 million Amount expensed during Ñscal 2002ÏÏ $9.0 million
Balance as of March 31, 2001 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 8.4 million Amount expensed during Ñscal 2001ÏÏ $3.4 million
Balance as of March 31, 2000 ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 8.7 million Amount expensed during Ñscal 2000ÏÏ $7.3 million

The legal expenses accrued by us are deemed probable because the lawsuits have been Ñled, management
has determined its plans of action with regards to the cases and, accordingly, knows that it will incur legal
expenses related to the particular lawsuit. Utilizing the assumptions noted in the accounting policy, see
Summary of SigniÑcant Accounting Policies, management is able to estimate a minimum amount of legal fees
to be incurred in these lawsuits.

Note 17. Segment Information

Our operating segments are signiÑcant strategic business units that oÅer diÅerent products and services,
distinguished by customer needs. We have Ñve operating segments: Enterprise Security, Enterprise Adminis-
tration, Consumer Products, Services and Other.
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The Enterprise Security segment focuses on providing Internet security technology, global response and
services necessary for organizations to manage their information security needs. The Enterprise Administra-
tion segment oÅers products that enable companies to be more eÅective and eÇcient within their information
technology departments. The Consumer Products segment focuses on delivering our security and problem-
solving products to individual users, home oÇces and small businesses. The Services segment is focused on
providing information security solutions that incorporate best-of-breed technology, security expertise and
global resources to help enable e-business success. The Other segment is comprised of sunset products and
products nearing the end of their life cycle. Also included in the Other segment are all indirect costs, general
and administrative expenses, amortization of goodwill and charges that are one-time in nature, such as
acquired in-process research and development, legal judgments and settlements and restructuring, site
closures and other expenses which are not charged to the other operating segments.

We shifted our focus to these operating segments during Ñscal 2000, with additional realignment in Ñscal
2002 and 2001. Due to this change, we have presented the Ñscal 2001 and 2000 segment information to
conform to our current segments.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of signiÑcant
accounting policies. There are no intersegment sales. Our chief operating decision maker evaluates perform-
ance based on direct proÑt or loss from operations before income taxes not including nonrecurring gains and
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses and miscellaneous other income and expenses. Assets and liabilities
are not discretely allocated or reviewed by segment.

Enterprise Enterprise Consumer Total
Security Administration Products Services Other Company

(In thousands)

Fiscal 2002

Revenue from external
customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $454,925 $222,543 $376,137 $ 10,905 $ 6,928 $1,071,438

Operating income (loss)ÏÏÏ 95,663 150,248 136,911 (21,955) (352,826) 8,041

Depreciation &
amortization expenseÏÏÏÏ 10,667 439 2,861 629 258,271 272,867

Fiscal 2001

Revenue from external
customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 282,769 230,644 330,363 2,280 7,498 853,554

Operating income (loss)ÏÏÏ 35,666 164,173 108,368 (7,120) (191,487) 109,600

Depreciation &
amortization expenseÏÏÏÏ 7,408 243 3,806 93 109,291 120,841

Fiscal 2000

Revenue from external
customers ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 166,763 216,710 319,078 427 42,747 745,725

Operating income (loss)ÏÏÏ 19,802 138,260 135,334 220 (158,413) 135,203

Depreciation &
amortization expenseÏÏÏÏ 3,586 266 3,173 10 44,496 51,531
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Geographical Information

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Net revenues from external customers:

United States ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $ 566,837 $440,512 $409,952

Other foreign countries ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 504,601 413,042 335,773

$1,071,438 $853,554 $745,725

March 31,

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Long-lived assets:

United StatesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $738,177 $905,379 $159,392

United Kingdom ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 29,240 5,779 805

Ireland ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23,394 5,602 4,905

Japan ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 5,340 4,043 3,965

Canada ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 1,021 1,243 1,851

Other foreign countriesÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 15,149 9,200 8,789

$812,321 $931,246 $179,707

SigniÑcant Customers

The following distributors covered all segments and accounted for more than 10% of net revenues during
Ñscal 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Year Ended March 31,

2002 2001 2000

Ingram Micro, Inc. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 23% 26% 39%

Tech Data Corp. ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 11 * 12

Merisel ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ * * 11

* Amount is less than 10% of net revenues.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

(Registrant)

By /s/ JOHN W. THOMPSON

(John W. Thompson,
Chairman and Chief Executive OÇcer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated below.

Signature Title Date

Chief Executive OÇcer:

/s/ JOHN W. THOMPSON Chairman, Chief Executive June 14, 2002
OÇcer and Director(John W. Thompson)

Chief Financial OÇcer and Chief
Accounting OÇcer:

/s/ GREGORY MYERS Chief Financial OÇcer and June 14, 2002
Senior Vice President of Finance(Gregory Myers)

Additional Directors:

/s/ TANIA AMOCHAEV Director June 14, 2002

(Tania Amochaev)

/s/ CHARLES M. BOESENBERG Director June 14, 2002

(Charles M. Boesenberg)

/s/ PER-KRISTIAN HALVORSEN Director June 14, 2002

(Per-Kristian Halvorsen)

/s/ ROBERT S. MILLER Director June 14, 2002

(Robert S. Miller)

/s/ BILL OWENS Director June 14, 2002

(Bill Owens)

/s/ GEORGES REYES Director June 14, 2002

(Georges Reyes)

/s/ DANIEL H. SCHULMAN Director June 14, 2002

(Daniel H. Schulman)
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SCHEDULE II

SYMANTEC CORPORATION

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and End
of Period Expenses* Write-oÅs of Period

(In thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Year ended March 31, 2000ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ $4,946 $4,031 $(2,533) $ 6,444

Year ended March 31, 2001ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 6,444 3,287 (1,392) 8,339

Year ended March 31, 2002ÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏÏ 8,339 2,349 (607) 10,081

* During Ñscal 2001, amount represents a balance sheet increase in allowance for doubtful accounts as a
result of a balance acquired from our acquisition of AXENT. Bad debt expense was not signiÑcant during
Ñscal 2001.
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